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Vil I
il 4,739,998,968.53 7,878,354,473.52
R YR 3K 16,627,462.52 17,638,196.29
FUAF I 882,289,184.89 894,793,214.91
Fo At 7 4R 4,961,712,825.19 2,522,498.,845.28
5 6,228,109,325.98 6,410,645,850.58
HA B 461,927,439.71 323,131,239.59

BN A 17,290,665,206.82 18,047,061,820.17

E S RZIN
K HA Rz Wiz 522,370,840.71 522,370,840.71
K H IR AR 654,778,259.62 230,419,236.08
H AR 2 T B4R 406,556,878 447,041,504
Fo At 4F I B 2 Bk 3R 50,000,000 -
BIMEH= 14,972,450,000 12,871,003,000,
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e GRIND A IR 84 8 fiur 2021 4 Z R &

B = % = 419,216,244.99 449,568,947.76
EEIE 1,591,619.85 238,272.02
5 F AR H = 142,652,902.56 92,326,944.18
Vi 680,292.3 1,191,727.11
K A 8 5 6,532,793.9 7,250,899.67
% JE P45 A 9 448,568,974.52 478,787,245.97
HA A R B 604,040,639.32 20,093,378.78
FEGENH AT 18,229,439,445.77 15,120,291,996.28
F =R 35,520,104,652.59 33,167,353,816.45
T ff
5 HA 1 3K 220,305,555.56 45,082,511.46
RLAT F 232,112,530.09 60,360,000
BT IR 3K 1,473,930,983.24 983,729,702.17
Tk I 7,677,395.33 4,281,013.6
& | f e 874,961,463.9 1,265,372,836.92
7 AT ER T 37 B 69,786,520.54 80,661,921.94
KL 35 4. % 2,657,767,705.36 2,670,811,083.75
FoAth BT AR 3,103,126,383.43 1,270,999,154.44

HF: MR

Bz A A

45,217,144 .33

—F WEHR R T

1,469,883,171.89

5,032,582,251.88

H AR 3 R 75,711,518.39 95,889,598.39
W R At 10,185,263,227.73 11,509,770,074.55
FE R AR
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KH = 6,483,296,270.64 6,415,185,701.68
R AT i 5 1,594,133,623.68 -
ALE LR 139,593,959.05 90,058,374.17

# FE T A3 B 4T

2,920,269,473.88

2,591,618,331.36

IR AR A 11,137,293,327.25 9,096,862,407.21
At 21,322,556,554.98 20,606,632,481.76
R
FRRAR (A 42,632,000 42,632,000
AR AR 5 1,537,459,144.94 479,031,792.84
A YN 21,316,000 21,316,000
x4 B A E 12,594,722,804.31 12,022,673,664.36
V38 T8 E BB # X2 a1t 14,196,129,949.25 12,565,653,457.2
D E R AR A 1,418,148.36 -4,932,122.51
B & # AX 32 &1t 14,197,548,097.61 12,560,721,334.69
A5 An B A AR RE R 35,520,104,652.59 33,167,353,816.45

ERRERAN: BHRFEE 2T THERTA:

(=) BATEF AR

APB I AFTA: FRL

B T
T H 2021 £ 12 A 31 H 2020 4£ 12 A 31 H
W=
BT K S 1,784,347,972.5 2,000,025,320.89
R YR 3K 1,324,229.17 1,300,000
T K 1,259,177.6 190,674.68
Fob R T K 7,919,665,480.05 4,407,076,411.17
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5 17,446,181.34 19,919,463 .41
H bR B F 19,577,985.14 28,230,299.31
BN A 9,743,621,025.8 6,456,742,169.46
eGP
K HA AT 3 2,264,300,000 2,264,300,000
HAth 3E T B 2 Bk 3T 50,000,000 -
]I = 1,308,720,000 1,307,320,000
B = % = 12,852,238.28 13,240,615.26
T * = 176,435.4 339,568.44
A A T B 554,153,583.45 -
FEGENH A 4,190,202,257.13 3,585,200,183.7
R =R 13,933,823,282.93 10,041,942,353.16
ViR
RLAT T K 2,941,986.9 4,496,263.88
T K I 34,861.74 32,665.62
7 AT ER T 37 B 249,982 323,929.33
KL 35 4. % 320,941.39 334,111.31
FoAth BT AR 8,119,897,897.09 5,692,002,270.31
— £ N E B H IR A R 108,275,605.21 2,283,509,012.34

T fUfR ATt 8,231,721,274.33 7,980,698,252.79
Je Bl 7 f5w
KH &K 552,089,640 516,249,640
BT 5t 1,594,133,623.68 -
 JE P 15 A1 55 294,327,728.35 286,486,830.81
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e GRIND A IR 84 8 fiur 2021 4 Z R &

Fe B BT At 2,440,550,992.03 802,736,470.81
At 10,672,272,266.36 8,783,434,723.6
P& & R 42
TR RAR (A 42,632,000 42,632,000
RN 21,316,000 21,316,000
K4 B 3,197,603,016.57 1,194,559,629.56
B & # A3 A1t 3,261,551,016.57 1,258,507,629.56
A5 An B A AR RE R 13,933,823,282.93 10,041,942,353.16

(=) A3#flEk

B 70
B H 2021 4 & 2020 4 &

—. Bl EEA 3,993,900,558.35 5,273,184,134.06
He: Bl 3,993,900,558.35 5,273,184,134.06
Z. BlRAR 3,047,662,175.74 3,822,578,744.15
He: Bl AR 2,023,612,505.35 2,362,301,007.36
Pt 4 B [t A 140,328,656.17 468,128,912.07
HE %A 138,144,734.02 122,573,548.44
CEX 262,657,708.23 276,783,984.66
W %- %% F 482,918,571.97 592,791,291.62
R FE A 504,142,339.91 704,846,023.11
Fl RN 58,830,350.85 130,609,426.81
A H bl i 6,306,858.78 11,901,630.49
HFAE (kL “=” SHEP)D 24,474,479.31 36,243,200.94

NANERF R E (FELL “-7 SHEF)D

-211,943,858.31

-162,791,000
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K& GRID AR E A E s 2021 F F ] E

FRRBERK WREU “=” FHF|)

-24,756.68

-7,335,534.88

A ERE (BREU “-7 FHEI]

33,570.03

11

EWANE (FRU “-7 FHEFD

765,084,675.74

1,328,623,686.46

R IX L PN

1,485,896.17

3,524,625.09

W Bsh

5,648,969.75

18,186,917.12

UQ\ ;F]Jﬂij ,%ﬁ (Fik)\/ugﬁu “ iﬁglj)

760,921,602.16

1,313,961,394.43

W Priefi sk A 189,273,186.22 427,973,327.85
A, A (FTHRU -7 FEF)D 571,648,415.94 885,988,066.58

(=) BEEFEHL K

I HFEZEHEAE FTHU -7 SHT)D 571,648,415.94 885,988,066.58

2. &4 b2 ERAE GFTHIU “-7 FHF])

(=) EHAKAR S %

1. VBT &0 5 B A & e g A 572,049,139.95 887,311,011.54

2. VBB R M -400,724.01 -1,322,944.96

7~ EGE Ao B B % A 1,058,427,352.1 259,472,957.52
V3 & B B TR A B SR Bl s B AR B 98 AT 1,058,427,352.1 259,472,957.52
(=) TREQRAF I EME A -30,363,469.5 -70,562,992.5

L BT EREZH IR - -

2. Mtk T Re #1480 H A 4 A Mk 4t - -

3 AN TAREAANER -30,363,469.5 -70,562,992.5

4. N B &5 AR A B 5

5. H At

(2) BESXRAMBHEEME &l

1,088,790,821.6

330,035,950.02

1 A s ok T ] #2019 L 4R 6 R i

7,706,608.88
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2. R F A AN E LS

JEMAFESRITANAME Sk EHE
#

4. HA BT R B E RS

5. e MEEHH A

6. ShTH Ut S 4 AR I B E A

7. H A

1,081,084,212.72

330,035,950.02

V3BT D BB R AR 6 R G % B

t. ZodkaE A

1,630,075,768.04

1,145,461,024.1

V3BT /A E TR & R A R R

1,630,476,492.05

1,146,783,969.06

IEVEASE - O &N €l -400,724.01 -1,322,944.96
ERREAN: BHHFZTELXHIEATA: RPELXTIMATA: ALL
(m)  FrEFEx
B T
FH 2021 4 & 2020 4 &
—. Bl 69,899,634.11 53,505,934.3
e B R AR 2,473,282.07 1,012,685.2
it 2 Bt A 7,703,861.39 2,260,685.12
HE % A 313,382.7 509,211.61
CEX 9,950,529.09 10,888,299.3
Bt & 5% A
W %- %% Fl 39,925,148.56 3,021,893.11

A A EHA

177,804,747.93

179,432,811.71

| &

s
=

A

163,360,931.82

214,835,470.31

ame Ak

318.12

1,675.91
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BHkaE (BEAMU “—7 FHF])

2,000,000,000

nANEER K E (FEU “—” SHEF] 1,400,000 23,120,000
fERRBMER K FEU =7 FHF)D - -7,325,800]
—. BLAE (FHU -7 SEP)D 2,010,933,748.42 51,609,035.87
Ame B AN 536.23 802.78
B BAAEH 0.1 1,666.22
=, FlEEF (THREHU “=” SHEF)D 2,010,934,284.55 51,608,172.43
W BT AR5 A 7,890,897.54 9,601,646.54

W, BAE CETHU -7 FHEFD

2,003,043,387.01

42,006,525.89

(=) HEZLEAETE (FTHU -7 FHF)D

2,003,043,387.01

42,006,525.89

(Z) £ EAAE FTHRU -7 FEHHD

H, Hfhsr e BB R % B

. Hadam B

2,003,043,387.01

42,006,525.89

(£) &#ALREX

B T

jauf

T

2021 4

2020 4

—. BEEHFENALRE:

HEWS. REFFRANIAL

3,847,743,472.84

5,293,766,143.16

e B 9 A 5% R L

398,386.43

40,805,652.64

KE M EZEEH RN 4

6,821,963,497.42

6,545,393,432.52

ZEFENALRADIT

10,670,105,356.69

11,879,965,228.32

WEH R, BXFHIANAL

1,857,922,911.52

2,173,813,360.71

INERIURARI XA 4

376,326,115

331,764,557.7

AT HY A TR 5%

576,124,593.15

904,672,176.53
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e GRIND A IR 84 8 fiur 2021 4 Z R &

XA HEMELEES R KNI L

6,506,673,765.4

5,542,964,175.61

ZEFENI LW ANt

9,317,047,385.07

8,953,214,270.55

ZEFBENFENIERER D

1,353,057,971.62

2,926,750,957.77

. BEEHAENIALRE:

ek & RS 290,189,562.88 143,631,652.26

BAEH AR EKE W4 27,502,099.44 22,823,347.27

AEBEEERE. THEFFHE KR~ d B8 830204 ]
4 % e

A E TN E R EAME L AT 0 BB I A B 236,178.09 -13,748,834.49

KR E 57 RESNE AN H 4 763,480,465.33 171,032,033.46

KR BEAA &R

1,081,416,607.78

323,738,198.5

GRS AN v A W LR N i

A&

3,895,637.7

2,153,188.35

HEXAHWIA 4

590,638,884.74

109,978,075.16

BUR T8 REME b 2 AW L4 %

215,170,801

XN EMERFENETRAA L

1,245,157,828.25

382,167,322.07

R EFH I U & Nt

1,839,692,350.69

709,469,386.58

B I ES W2 E S AT -758,275,742.91 -385,731,188.08
Z.ERBFAFENTLRE:

SO & & NS 4,400,000 -

e FRERBRDERAR T U E I 2 4,400,000 -

R fe sk 2l eI &

3,066,638,999.97

2,111,188,812.86

KBt 5 % B R R4

1,600,000,000

693,309,578.09

FF BRI

4,671,038,999.97

2,804,498,390.95

BEEREF AL

6,429,726,715.04

3,947,665,307.04

A BBRA. FUEHSEMNA R X H T L

739,404,039.44

845,658,880.24
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e GRIND A IR 84 8 fiur 2021 4 Z R &

AT EME & K ESH RN &

80,820,112.24

47,736,535.16

% FE AR AN

7,249,950,866.72

4,841,060,722.44

EHEN LRI LR E ST

-2,578,911,866.75

-2,036,562,331.49

W, CEEZNHA & RALFN MR H

26,874.1

i, A& BRI & F N mE

-1,984,129,638.04

504,484,312.3

im: B e BRI & F N R H

4,380,555,367.97

3,876,071,055.67

~. BRI R e FNH R 2,396,425,729.93 4,380,555,367.97
(X)) BARTLREEXR
Bl T
T H 2021 4 & 2020 4 &
—. BEE NI LR E:
HERE., BREFHUEHAL 73,372,582.77 56,187,738.75

KE M EZEEH RN 4

2,611,925,058.69

1,937,155,442.27

ZEFENA LRI

2,685,297,641.46

1,993,343,181.02

EF &, EXFHFIXFRA e 1,524,692.6 6,027,230.79
IMHEBRIURARIT A4 1,074,302.38 1,057,904.36
X ATH & T F 11,280,057.78 4,762,397.23
IHEMEZEFH AN L 1,522,356,811.82 2,238,880,338.62

ZEFENI LWL /Mt

1,536,235,864.58

2,250,727,871

ZETE T AN LT ESE 1,149,061,776.88 -257,384,689.98
Z. BRED LRI AR E:
KR E 57 RESNE AN 4 335,042,000.22 15,232,293.2

KR EAA 2RI

335,042,000.22

15,232,293.2

GRS AN v A i LR i
Ae

393,980
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HHE XTI 4 50,000,000 -
B F 5 R EME b A 44 - -
XA HEMERFESHH AN L 14,158,736.1 148,370,260.9
R FEN I AR EH /T 64,158,736.1 148,764,240.9

R ED = E I LR EF

270,883,264.12

-133,531,947.7

Z.EREN AR E:
B R 2y 4 252,340,000 270,000,000
KB E 5 ZEREST RNA & 1,600,000,000 693,309,578.09
&R IEH I 2 RN 1,852,340,000 963,309,578.09
e S N-E RS 2,368,025,900 780,855,260
AEEA FUE SR AR A H 4 246,335,775.71 234,116,413.85
X HEMEE R ENT XA e 16,070,200 -

FFEN IR E /T

2,630,431,875.71

1,014,971,673.85

ERED T ENI L REF G

-778,091,875.71

-51,662,095.76

W, CEEZNHA & RIALFN MR H

#. Wa BRI AN %L 641,853,165.29 442,578,733 .44
fm: A A R4 EN WA 552,961,240 995,539,973.44
. BRI AR L FNIAR R 1,194,814,405.29 552,961,240
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O& A MAE A

BT RAT NN 5 58 B AR SR
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JA4 3 674,330.54 674,330.54
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(2) 1IF R
o H 2021 4 12 A 31 H 2020412 H 31 H
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4345 P v R0 ) 238,218,870.66 60,461,454.86
FRIEHA S0 H 78,605,335.68 71,362,174.88
HAth 1,935,478.66 2,176,414.68
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(3) FEMITR
W H 2021 ¥ 12 A 31 H 2020 4E 12 A 31 H
LERHERF 0 (FEHD 404,370,044.08 160,744,147.98
s E prAEs (FEED 1,573,707,291.57 984,799,441.31
Gt E iy (FEED R44,177,654.70 685,131,751.88
&it 2,822,254,990.35 1,830,675,341.17
(4) B5 LH R
W H 2021412 A 31 H 2020 4E 12 A 31 H
25 1866 Tk 1] 17,446,181.34 19,919,463.41
€L RHAERT— 233,063,585.63 934,500,114.29
Hh b, 7 B E R - 3,937,145.21 3,037,145.21
SREL 16,408,621.25 16,408,621.25
e AEE 22,429,002.59 22,429,002.59
W 35,146,858.90 35,146,858.90
Bt 33 T LA 14,022,154.51 14,022,154.51
il il 3L 7 Tk 35,021,861.81 35,021,861.81
AR B 55,866,459.09 55,866,459.09
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4,013,467,856.69
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JREURC ) A 31,181,953.19 51,213,192.60
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- W _H 2021 4F 12 H 31 H 2020 4F 12 A 31 H
IV ST 522,370,840.71 522,370,840.71
ik SRMCHE R
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(1) &L T 43 35
W H EHH AR At EARM
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i LU PR AL A
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(1) oAb T RSB I

o H 2021 E 12 A31 H 20204 12 H 31 H
i T AR 406,556,878.00 447,041,504.00
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2.2 A hn <= 2,017,030,805.32 160,393,454.04 2,180,253,497.94
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(1) 2l 51,706,607.60 10,957,454.04 65,493,300.22
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4,2021 F 12 H31 H 14,468,850,000.00 503,600,000.00 14,972,450,000.00
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(2) dlbfrdf '
Hm )
3. 24 3 o A 6
W 20,147,336.46 258,846.00 | 1,558,567.00 155,356.00 | 22,120,105.46
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42021 4£ 12
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1.20204 12 H
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2. 20204 12 A
31 H W 4

441,634,152.67

1,753,817.90
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2,4 W 1 6 40 72,733,707.43 72,733,707.43
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WA R — 4 1 i W B8 576,200,639.32 20,093,378.78
A} Ak 27,840,000.00
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SR E 87,126,125.88 171,368,456.88
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HAh 2 B £ R 716,001,419.64 173,159,672.33
At 13,545,847.20 25,852,146.18
it 3,103,126,383.43 1,225,782,010.11
27. — 45 P B I e Bh £ il
m A 2021 %212 H 31 H 2020412 H 31 H

—fEREA I CERTL 28)

1,373,007,431.04

2,809,178,815.04

—AE P EI A CERLAL. 29D

50,398,538.82

2,129,521,768.01

66



TESUEBHO CRYID ATIRAR

I 55418 FE Pk

M H 2021 4E 12 H 31 H 20204 12 A 31 H
— 4R MG S R, 300 20,127,079.85 | 17,258,054.56
— 4 1 30 3 14 LA ) S8 26,350,122.18 76,623,614.27
&t 1,469,883,171.89 5,032,582,251.88

Ve ARITAEHC TP R R A0 969 7 208 ) LA B e,V LB AL, 50,

28, FLAbyfizh # i
m H 20214612 A31H | 2020412 7 31 H
R B DR Ty A W 47 2 75,711,518.39 95,889,598.39
it 75,711,518.39 95,889,598.39
29. K
W H 2021 4 12 A 31 H 20204 12 A 31 B
JEAP A I 7,588,963,701.68 8,228,380,516.72
TREUSIER 254,340,000.00 978,484,000.00
FRIEAEAK 13,000,000.00 17,500,000.00
it 7,856,303,701.68 9,224,364,516.72
wk: —EN B IGEK GERTL. 260 1,373,007,431.04 2,800,178,815.04
it 6,483,296,270.64 6,415,185,701.68

Ve ARITAR, TR R B 2 LA R S L VE LB L 50,

30. N4
(1) A fili 25
W H 20214 12 A 31 H 20204E 12 A 31 H
I 2 ) Al 1,644,532,162.50 2,129,521,768.01
ANt 1,644,532,162.50 2,129,521,768.01
W —AE P EIWIR R4S SE CRELEL. 26) 50,398,538.82 2,129,521,768.01
it 1,594,133,623.68
(2) RAFHR A AR B
filt 4 4 7 i RATEM | MR RAT & 2020 4F 12 A 31 H
16 4% 01 | 2,600,000,000.00 | 2016-8-26 5S4 | 2,600,000,000.00 |  2,129,521,768.01
21 4% 01 | 1,400,000,000.00 | 2021-8-17 54 | 1,400,000,000.00
91 %8 02 | 200,000,000.00 | 2021-8-17 54 200,000,000.00
it 4,200,000,000.00 4,200,000,000.00 |  2,129,521,768.01

67



TE P& 5 b= CERIID F B2 7] W e Bt e

(4 E3)
Msar | AMBRT  PEEAGHRRR | MO | AWESE  po21 12 A1H
16 £33 01 108,202,820.73 |-15,995,868.01 2,221,818,720.73
21 #4501 [1,400,000,000.00 |  44,098,721.46 | -5,133,079.28 1,438,065,642.18
21 %#% 02 | 200,000,000.00 |  6,299,817.36 | -733,297.04 205,566,520.32

ey 1,600,000,000.00 158,691,359.55 L21,862,244,33 2,221,818,720.73 1,644,532,162.50
31. FiLGE A ft

m H 2021 £ 12 A 31 H 20204F 12 A 31 H
ALY A 246,242,208.73 153,499,223.28
Wik AT RL B 0T 86,521,169.83 46,182,794.55

ANt | 159,721,038.90 107,316,428.73
W —EPEIMRAE AN GERE. 26 20,127,079.85 17,258,054.56
it 139,593,959.05 00,058,374.17
32, el HE A
2020 4 2021 4
i 25 A AW | A Wk AR EER (%
12 431 H 12431 H
ERBHRHEAT IR AH] | 42,632,000.00 42,632,000.00 100
&it 42,632,000.00 42,632,000.00 100

68



P61 6SH LES ] 01 TSELTHF'SSO'T | L LYTOPT0SE | TE669°696'LT O1'66T'LEY'OEY'T | PR TOL IE0'6LY | HEBMMESHNE
. XSS
88°809°00L°L 32°209°00L°L 28°809°00L°L
Tl k(o | FTIW
(=8
QG LTI'CSTTSF L TLTITHR0TR0'T | $THOF TOE00E | TE669°696°LT STOIESIFGOF'T | ¥R FI600T 10F
HHEAYREY
UTAHEY ¥
o | . o . TGS GRS
FFOEL 166'68F' 1 09°1Z8°06L°880°T | ¥YTHOP'IOE09E | TE'669696'LT QI STE ITI'LLY'T | ¥E+16°00T 10
FUFEeLEH T
_ _ . . R EEEGY-THE
- 0S80 LYY LE 05 69 €9 0E- 0S'9ST'IZT'01- 00979 FEF O | D0'SLS'0ESLL
EFTEARY DY
. . L | . ) ENSEHYEE
0S80V L9V LY 08 69F COE 0E- 059S1°1Z1'01- D0'9Z9'FRF 0 | 00°SLST0ESLL
e L EE L —
S XE U HEHE T e
EVE-LEHEEY HEYEH 8 HicH Tl
BIft HU1 & 1007 B4 LEHEHEE SERE i “ﬂ T E I — H i
JUE TR s _
BXhSHWE e

Eadii 2.0 20

B (1) AR




TE e b= G ATPR 2]

Mo iR ME

4. BRLH
(TR 20204 12 A 31 H | ANABm | AmipE | 2021 4212 A 31 H
HEREAR 21,316,000.00 21,316,000.00
& 21,316,000.00 21,316,000.00
35, KA HFIHE
m o H 2021 $EJF 2020 EHF
AT - A A A BRI 12,022,673,664.36 11,135,362,652.82
TS A Ay e A T H . GO, i —)
T S5 WA o 2 e AU 12,022,673,664.36 11,135,362,652.82

I A WAVE T 824 8 A 2 A0 R

572,049,139.95

887,311,011.54

W HRHEERRAR

AR A A A
HoAh
A A A B v 12,594,722,804.31 12,022,673,664.36
36. BN BB L R A
(1) Elbie A, Bl
2021 £ 2020 4
5 H i HEJE
[N A (PN A
EX 2 3,993,900,558.35 | 2,023,612,505.35 | 5,273,184,134.06 | 2,362,301,007.36
aif 3,003,900,558.35 | 2,023,612,505.35 | 5,273,184,134.06 | 2,362,301,007.36
(2) FEEHWA GriTikd
% H 2021 4 2020 4
T i 5 A AR LN 3,052,218,293.09 4,488,584,007.82
LA A 464,171,325.05 448 .852,014.50
bty IR A 477,510,940.21 335,747,211.74
it 3,993,900,558.35 5,273,184,134.06
(3) EEWFHEA Tl
W H 2021 SR [ 2020 —
T o 35 4 R A 1,660,485,352.40 2,070,211,918.04
MEWwA 35,566,151.01 40,385,832.50
L IRFIA 327,561,001.94 251,703,256.82
Hit 2,023,612,505.35 2,362,301,007.36

70



T Dy = CGRYID FPRA ] I 25 R 2 MITE
37, BL &AM
m A 2021 # ¥ 2020 4L

b (AR, 84,358,414.59 405,401,084.81
ElE S g 11,710,117.62 19,080,440.69
HTT BRI 8,364,351.21 13,757,196.77
I 31,477,736.96 22,792,626.34
S Hu I B 2,086,857.47 2,583,962.07
oAl 2,331,178.32 4,513,601.39
it 140,328,656.17 468,128,912.07

e S TIU A R BRI P T BRI B R BRI

38. i 47 2 A
W H 2021 4 2020 #E
F B H 695,728,154.45 877,539,612.44
Hoep AR YR GBS 11,540,639.30 10,428,341,13
Yiie: ) S 58,830,350.85 130,609,426.81
e A BEEAA G 191,585,814.54 172,693,589.33
T N 1,713,318.79
Dz ISR 26,874.10
A, 35,893,264.12 18,581,569.42
it 482,918,571.97 592,791,291.62
39, JLphlic i
W H 2021 R 2020 4E
SUCAAR R BURF AR 6,306,858.78 11,901,630.49
it 6,306,858.78 11,901,630.49
40. 3B ad
7 1 B WL R R R 2021 4 2020 4EJ¥
B R S B R R B i -1,247,300.34 1,100,593.94
Kb ST 25 ) P A Y A B I 2,789,214.19 12,319,259.73
HA U 124,325.46 23,347.27
A 2 T LA R I LA P AR A 22,808,240.00 22,800,000.00
it 24,474,479.31 36,243,200.94

7



TESEHE B b= CIRIID A7 R4 )

W 45 R W

41. 2 st ZEsh ik

P o (R R )RR 2021 4E 2020 #EJE
4% e v AR 2 10 5 Hb -211,943,858.31 -162,791,000.00
it -211,943,858.31 -162,791,000.00
42. 1 VR E AR 2R
IE 2021 ¥ 2020
UL A I 4 2 -24,756.68 -9,734.88
A RIS A M A0 -7,325,800.00
it -24,756.68 -7,335,534.88
43. B4k R
W H 2021 4EJE 2020 £
b A ) 4 AT A A [ e AR TR
Az e A 7 R T T 0 7 1 AL L 74 I A i
Mo, fEBEreALH 33,570.03
it 33,570.03
44. Bk A
B uW A 2021 45 2020 4F/¥
ek 58,790.00 1,600,000.00
e e B 836,939.27 958,107.83
JeAh, 590,166.90 966,517.26
i 1,485,896.17 3,524,625.09
45. Bk AN
WoH 2021 4 2020 4 ¥
AR Ah B 7 SR A 40 2k 3,947.96 9,461.44
e, [ s B SR AR A 40 3,947.96 9,461.44
A1 184 S 3,054,000.00 17,922,000.00
AN a5 2,331,830.58 7,151.43
e 4 1.59
JAth 259,191.21 248,302.66
it 5,648,969.75 18,186,917.12

72



TEDEEED T GRYID A7HR2E] W 25 4 T

46. Fr8RLotH
i H 2021 EHF 2020 EE
14 Y00 T 75 A 9 180,644,020.01 310,397,804.85
¥ 3iE FITAR B 4 8,629,166.21 117,575,523.00
&t 189,273,186.22 427,973,327.85
47. HAher Al

A A B 25 T L T B L e A5 2 8 20 B B At % M i 5 H I

Y 0 DB T 33 LA i .

48. B Mk 78 BB
(1) B4t et 76 5k
76 Bk 2021 fEHF 2020 2 Ji

L, v R 7 Yo # B e AL
ERLLE 571,648,415.94 885,088,066.58
fine B IR
{F PR RAAR 5 24,756.68 7,335,534.88
DR g 0 o 2 s e 1 2 O 7 e 4
P ——— 25,585,749.05 26,099,698.21
e BLBE AT IH 22,407,749.05 19,384,986.64
T T 1 k4 511,434.81 1,495,671.12
-He U3 B 0 A 1,357,620.75 3,775,514.59
Ab B S e . TO T e AILABAC WA BE 7 A 2R —
Clf 2 BA—" S 3 F1D T
[ s B AR e e (gl LA — R ED 3,947.96 9,461.44
o fe A s ge (R Bl —" T 30F1)) 211,943 ,858.31 162,791,000.00
I 95 A (i A — D 482,099,897.15 634,561,287.68
W Ol i ble—"S 3D -24,474,479.31 -36,243,200.94
o 4E AL BE P (B — D 30,218,271.45 115,858,386.69
380 E AR e (ol BL— B 1D -21,589,105.22 1,717,136.31
FEIR A (el — 5 315D -527,855,523.66 254,845,968.45
ot ST E > (KN Ll — S 151D -1,535,165,354.22 | -1,095,562,036.94
2 WP LA 0T R CRiZb BLe—> S 30D 2,116,307,162.85 1,944,693,483.06
At
RN R A I B & L 1,353,057,971.62 2,926,750,957.77
2. b B i TR B RN 06 B TR 3l

73



TE Péfie iy = G AR 2

Ui 25 . e P

A1 78 B 2021 4 [¥ 2020 S
il 55 6 9 i A
— 45 P 1 30 £ T A Ak 24 ) {1
Fih ¢ L D 2 B
3. Wb BBV &S AT AR 1L
1 £ RO A SR 0 2,396,425,729.93 4,380,555,367.97
W Bl i WA AR 4,380,555,367.97 3,876,071,055.67
s < A 0 £ A S
yibe 3G I I S
0 e e T A 4 0 300 I -1,984,129,638.04 504,484,312,30

(2) B S 030 G AR Ao b i T

W H 2021 fE 12 31 H | 2020412 A 31 0
— W& - 2,396,425,729.93 4,380,555,367.97
eh: FRIEHLG: 282,796.99 237,130.13
A e} P TS A SRAT AR (D 2,396,142,932.94 4,380,318,237.84
Y i P A 8 A B 0 e
—. BESNHY
Hoep: =A-A A RIS 18 5
=L WAL S A LS A A s 2,396,425,729.93 4,380,555,367.97

VE: A IR WA G B B 4 S U g pR e BT B T S A ) ARAT 7 A A A e i 53 R TN
WFE4r 158,930,642.85 T, LT T 40 e R ) CCARERE MR TR S, SR 3K o 3 R L
B iR M AT L WM A, NS5 M TR IR IR, T 5 A N < T A
e 0 A T 20 DR ) B2 B <6z 111,396,889.06 T

49. Sh B HETH

o H | 20214812 A 31 AARRAW | HAICE | 2021 48 12 A 31 BIFHAR TR
T 102,831.41 0.8416 84,088.16
Horr: HET 102,831.41 0.8416 84,088.16

0. FTAT AR RS2 Wb 7

W H 2021 4 12 A 31 HMK{ (i 5 PR SR
HhiHHe 1,812,948,238.60 {RUE B R A B 4
151 4,778,854,051.84 i AR A AL B R
B g 10,501,745,157.55 i A
] 5 6 = 122,192,894.48 i IS
A TR 406,556,878.00 AR LA

74



TE PR = CRIND HIRA R I 55418 22 Bl ik

AN A HIEHEAEE

1. e T Ak 3F

A2 A i 5 WAZE AR R — i) F 4k 9F
2, [ F kA

A2 B 4t TG ) — 43t F il 9
3. X%

A2 F R4 W S 1 D S )

4. WH-TAT

A S K Ak

MR HAAL | Al |3 g el | RN I
e o i s et i |TTRNAE | MEARREX
| T owm o wRTanm

T4y B 2 A
W A A 2021 4 6
tmm&ﬂ%wmﬁﬁ §36,000.00 | 100.00% | Hifif N BAENR 2,789,214.19
A R
5. [T e 7 i 8 S 9 4
7

6. FLAh R ER A 5 A2
A AR AT TR S R S AR A, 8T TR
‘ “B{‘]'?jﬁ:'b\ 1‘\ E%i&ﬂ'?mﬂﬁﬁ"n

i, FEIAE A AL
1. FETFA T A

' e KM o) | B s
| FATLHK WA | N
FAT 2K ey | owmen COT »
BTGRP TR IRAT I I | BeIER | 100 5t
TR M R AT AT |G | EI | miEsm | 100 i

75




IEQERE B RO CGRYID 7AW W 5 0 A B

i FeRR L) | T8
FARGHK WG | LR
- o mp g |
TR RHRAT  |NT MR | SR | 100 $iik
ENEEBILY (i HRAT (i
”Hﬁﬁ W HRAT GE | o s | peseR | 100 il
NS EREMEERARAD  |NT M | BaEER | 03 3ty
VI B A AT A BN | | AR 00| Bk
BRI RATRAT I | | B 100 | i
YT A AT EAT A 7] B |y | s 00| Wi
BTG ST B A A 7] i [femin | s 100 | Wik
R A 24 e | | e g 100 | Wik
1 1 535 74 4 X 25 G
fﬁ RRMUERBEAR | (o | srsremmss 100 | Wi
oy
SRRE RS ATRAT | SR | AT | Pl RS 100 | 30
P
GO R TRAT | BT | B if & 100 | #ik
IR G TS WARAR W | | FH 100 | i
B G R T AT TR 7] wolsT | He | A% si| g
s R MUBEIATRAR | LRSI | e 100 | %
A S 2 A B2 AR %
RATRRBUEEARIARL | gy | BEER 5| i
= Sdk
IR VAT A o o | e 0| Wi
T e
i i B T R w00 | 3¢
BRI B B3 R AT LA SO | | ma 100 | ik
4 A M= T T T 24
:mmﬁﬂﬁ o Ol (won | BaeTER 100 | ik
UM RRIAAIRAR (QE2) |90 B9 | Bl 100 | Wik
T T AR T M [ | Sems 100 | ik
AR B R A A WO | | 100 | #ik

VE L: 40 TR 0 0E DL B = (R # PR ] 100% A 2 B Tk B, BRI AP 2 2019
ETHIEHE2023ETH3LH;

VE 20 AR ZTARYI TG BHO R T R A A T A WA RS AT AR AR

76



1E P 3 1

CIRYID 7R AT

W 97 A WA

T 530 o M TF A PR 7] 100 6 MRAL B F - OIAT,  AMIBR 415 2021 £ 9 A 10 H % 2029
9 H 10 H. 201945 A 10 HE 20294 5 4 31 Ho

2. FETA T RPTA B IR A2k BT A 7 3L 5
ATV TEAET 4 70 BT 8 B AR 0 R A A A ATy 43 724 W) A2 B T O o
3, PEAER A BRI Aok rp AL

A AERE | | : " R B (%) (R AR R R A
o | | NG ) IR Ty [ | soraie
b I T 19
= v o T =
R RATRAT N WY | bR 40 A RPR
el v R AR A i " G .
A AT g1 g | BRI R 19.72 VB
4, MEPIEFAEE
AT HR 45 W T3 ) 45 8 AR OO
5. FEAGIN AT 2540 2830 0 45 4 Ak 2 e v AR
A TR T AN A I 55 0 00 1 ) 5 4 A
I\ KIETT B RIRAE B
1. A2 w82 F L
BAFEN AT | BFA TR AL ]
AR EE g ik sk % :
B NATER A e _&%ﬁ$ AR (%) |MR BRBLEL T (%)
R RATIR AR | i |[REBRARIES |HKD10,000 100 100
2. AAT AT
AT T T A VE LB A 3 e LA
3, AAT A E B A i
$ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%#ﬂ%ﬁt~&E%$W$Wﬂﬁa
4, A HE I FAR S TT 1 O
Hofth Ik T R Wi SAEXAFXR

MR

S frdzmlA

7



IE 2B b= CARAID A IR A P TiA 25 1022 B

el R AR AR T RR
A 4t A 2 HEARBA
ML 5 A — B
G CHIRD MR A AT AT LIRS
PRI Sl 2 RAT IR 7 I3 — IR )
PRI AT IR A A T B — IR
TR (R A LA A — IR
P e A LA REAE T — I e
APV 2 55 AT WA ) A I — I 2 )
& AT A R
BB R 1R AT i 5 — B AR )
HitE LA B LA IR I ) — )
DRI AR A B S A TR A ) e ) — IR A
BRI R ST A A IR
it 4 B 7 4 A S — IS
T U A B4 AR — IR
BB RHEATIRA W IR — IR
PN B e A LA ) R — A
P BT A L ¢ ) I S — IR A )
S A R A A LS — 2

BREYI TR 22 e A REEA TR A 5 Sy S A A Jy (R — S b 1

TR DI ER R ol A 1 A7 PR 24 ) S5 S bR A g ] — SR
VRN T 4 A% E % JE A DR A4 ) S0 Ay St R ) A Ja I8 — SRR R
5. REKI 5
(1) WA T BROLAN R 35 %5 10 DR AE B
HH 8 7 AR B BT S L
KT KA B AE | 2020 EERAEE | 2020 FRAAEM
PRI T 22 2 A R G WA T AR YA 404,940.86 183,103.34
PN b R A ] RO AR AU A 1,835,877.47
WAS RS & 2o I S g PRUERR SN 36,622,054.81 20,598,736.57
T B S E
KWK KWEAE S M | 2021 FFSERAEN | 2020 4EFER AW
PRI A Sl R R A TR A el e 4 3 3,138,421.09

78



IE M B H = CERAID ATRRA 5]

I 55 1 2

(2) RBEIH GRG0

DA W WA ) 2 F AR {E R R IT

JHAR AT
AR AR A RV AEGE | BESME | celfr
e
Wil 11 4 SR R AL AT A R 850,000,000.00 | 2020-12-31 | 2028-12-31 2.5*
e ofe 7 G B AHR IR AT LA 1,310,000,000,00 | 2021-6-29 | 2029-6-29 7
tpd CpUED MR IR AE 100,000,000.00 | 2021-10-26 | 2022-10-26 &
G0 ChED MR RREAIRAT | 360,000,000.00 | 2021-7-22 | 2022-8-30 1
AR CRUED MRATIRAF | 200,000,000.00 | 2021-4-30 | 2022-4-30 %
SIR Co ) P HEHEAT B Y ) 158,000,000.00 | 2019-7-8 2022-8-8 %
A CrhIED M A PR A R 284,000,000.00 | 2019-7-11 | 2022-8-11 7
sim Co[ED MR YEARAT | 342,000,00000 | 2021-3-4 | - 2024-4-4 i)
SR CRED M RPEAIMAR | 23800000000 | 2021-3-4 | 2024-4-4 i
G CHpED =B EEA B A ] 30,000,000.00 | 2021-6-24 | 2024-7-24 5
ae CRIED M A PR A ] 50,700,000.00 | 2021-6-2 2022-7-2 &
BRI CPRED s RBEARAT 28,200,000.00 | 2021-9-15 | 2022-10-15 il
RPN R0 T kAT PR A R 3,196,500,000.00 | 2018-7-23 | 2023-7-25 i
VRIS {E Sl B AT B2 ) 15,280,000.00 | 2018-7-27 2025-8-1 T
AR AR W AT 13,520,000.00 | 2017-8-2 2025-8-1 [
T Sl R A IR ) 13,520,000.00 | 2017-8-1 | 2025-8-1 &
T R AR AR B A R A @ 996,769,197.66 | 2020-12-7 | 2023-8-31 e
@A/ B A A ] 2 o mAE R AR TS
GRS T
| R H R 42 80 s H | HEBME P
S8 (D MR AT R AT | 117,600,000.00 | 2019-5-31 | 2029-5-31 &
i (P ED s A F 3,449,760.00 2019-7-23 | 2029-5-31 i
S (o [E) e BEAT IR 2 @) 38,050,240.00 | 2019-7-19 |  2029-5-31 &
SRS NS N 618,513,076.00 2019-7-31 2023-7-31 H
A Cp D M= AT IR A s
SRERRRI LR 200,000,000.00 | 2019-12-13 |  2023-7-31 &
G CRIE D) M3 A PRA A N |
= ol i ol —|  400,000,000.00 2020-1-3 | 2023-7-31 &
R CoP[ED MR B A 7 T
A S L A R % ) 761,526,924.00 2019-8-2 |  2023-7-31 i

79



TE 3B 7 ™= CERBID A BR A 5]

I 55 J 2 Bl T

; ‘ AR

AR/ EERVS 1 BigERGHE | RERHNE oo e
4 (o D bR A TR
4 T4 B () A TR 5
e A
M A - 138,500,000.00 2020-6-24 | 2024-11-25 F
s CPIED b RBEAT IR A R
L i 150,000,000,00 | 2020-9-30 |  2024-9-29 5
WM T &k s
bt S 100,000,000.00 |  2020-11-30 | 2024-9-29 %
AT 2
oo i 140,000,000.00 | 2021-3-16 |  2024-9-23 %
WA S
ENEERl SRR 68,000,000.00 | 2019-4-30 | 2022-4-30
WA T4 T
G (o[ MR B IR T | 1,448,938,000.00 | 2021-3-31 | 2041-10-26 %5
Byl Z BN N 13,000,000.00 |  2019-4-29 | 2022-4-29 %
B 6 g A
WA A 199,800,000,00 |  2021-9-10 |  2029-9-10 5
Wk fF Ao . 300,000,000.00 | 2021-10-27 | 2029-9-10 i
BT ot 100,000,000.00 2021-11-3 2029-9-10 5
HOH s BB R LRI | s 00000 | 2021023 2024923 %
— S D 1 Al o

80



18

£ 6T-6-7T0T 0£-6-0Z0T | 00°000°000°0ST B EE Y EETREY L o7 B L EE AR
g ST11-#T0T ¥2-9-020T | 007000°00S BET [ BB MR TR AR e FE eSS
g2 6-1-S£0T 6-1-0T0T 00°000'008°LE [ 7 2 B2 A B s L I o7 B B ME T E I LA
8 ¥-TI-STOT T1-S10T 00°000°000°0t =73 B A A S I o Y B R TEE A I
2 SI-01-€20T 91-01-0T0T | 00'000'000TET [ 37 i B3 o e S 0 L R [ 7 B () L B R
g €Z-T1-+T0T PEZ-TI-1T0T | 00°000°000°0ST ETEeFAmEEEU Y 7 B ) LT E R
g 1£-L-€T0T 736107 00 +E6'9TS T9L Ty (8% AWEBRKT [o 7 B M A s I
5 1€-L-€T0T €-1-0T0T 00°000°000°00% [27EE (BN AREENT o7 8 B SR ERE
g 16-L-€20T €1-TI-610C | 00°000°000°00T o7 E (BN APMETRDT o7 83 R B it
g 1£-L-£T0T 1€-L-610T 00'9LD'ETSRIO 7EE (B ARETNT [ 7 B T e s L IR
g 1€-$-670T 61-L-610T | D0OFT0S6 8E ETHT L HEEHUEE i oo
=7 i B0 T
2 1€-$-6702 €T-L-610T | 0009L'GHPE VBRI HEEEUEE i
B HET T
n [ 7 2 B o S L

& 1€-6-620T 1€-S-610T 00°000°009°LTT (o7 B R R
o237 ] Be(st) L T R T
g 1707 I+ ¥10T 0008 P11 E7EE (IFE) AR [ B R S
g2 8T-E-¥TOT 8T-€-¥10T 00°SET'B09°TS [e7HE (IFE) AR o7 o B3 o T S AL e
g 6T-+-5ST0T 6T-+0T0T | 00000008 TST BZEE (IE¥) R =78 B H WS Ui

HELBHFDSTUE | HiEHE H SR BEYE LY EER L et
YEEREZEGEZEY¥S5E2ZEE
R RS [ B (IR LWEF T




72

g 6-1-S£07 610700 | 00000°000°5LE | [T EEBWMLHAEELIER o 7 A BB MM TR A W
g $T1-5T70T $-T1-S10T | 00°000°000°0F [e2 37 2 B e T T L EEE
e BN BT E T
g TT-€-8T0T 0£-€-910T 657999°9TH09T [ 7 o B 3 o R R It b7 H e EEE LR
2 ¥T-8-LTOT 9-11-S10T P8 E96°010°L9T e 7 ] B 2 e T 3 L [ 72 B ) A B T
2 ¥T-8-LTOT LT-8-S10T CTIEH'R1TS0S e B Y S L e [ % 2 B () R F T
g2 ¥-T-LT0T ¥-T-L10T 00°000°000'FL1 o037 B M A EE I8 =% B LR E T HT
g 0T-1-LT0T 0Z-1-L10T 00°000°00§ 8LT o7 B M E U I (o7 0 B (I3 L F T
g £1-9-T£0T #1-9-L10T 00°000°06T°L6 (237 i B 2 Mo e e et EVHEESABREELIFE
g2 L-1-TT0T 8-1-170T 00°000°000°0TT [ 8 BE S RS L e s
=7 B AR T
g 6T 11-+T0C 6Z-5-S10T 00°000°000°891 (o BE S WEE U EZHETHARLESLIFR
o7 B ¥ T EE LR
g 0E+-TT0T 0E+610T 00°000°000°89 EvEHEESLREEL|MA o mwﬁm%ﬁﬁmﬂﬁmw
= SN
HESEEATRAEEEU AR
=) §TH€T0T 67-1-120T 00°000'000°1 e ES - BEE LR [ 37 3 B () L T B T
2 6THET0T 6740707 | 00°000°000'T | YEBESLBEELGE o7 8 B L B T
g2 €T-6-FT0T QI-¢-1Z0T | 00°000°000°0F1 EyE AT R TR LR ERA-FER-EISt e il 4
g 6T-6+C0T 0£-11-0Z0T | 00"000'00000T 235 H B EE TR I L7 B H B E R LI
HELBFOSTHE | HEEYH H o= e A g e e
LR R 7 e (IfR) LRHETERT




53

g ET-6+T0T £T-6-170T 00°000°00€'29T 7@ ClFED LHEHERT [ 37 B M S T Lkt
g2 01-6-6T0T €-11-170T | 00°000°000°001 [ 78 BAREE R A SVES (W0 =REEAT
78 B AR EE LR
2 01-6-6T0T LT-01-170T | 00°000°000°00€ [ 7 B BAR SR L A e
ER R ETENE 2 1N s
ElE (IF) LHEERT

g 01-6-6T0T 01-6-120T 00°000°008°661 o7 H B AR E T S LA
37 B X H S EE L
g FT1€0T PI-01-1T0T | 00°000°000°091 By AREEEUZY 72 B HE TRy QA
5 TT-L-920T CT-L-120T 00"000°000°09€ EFEE (IF) SwEEET ETHEHYERTRET U MR
2 TTLHT0T TC-L-1T0T | 00°000°000°09€ e d s (k) LB 7B E BN TET LR
E7HEESLEEELIRR
g2 6T-H-TTT 6746107 | D0'000T000°EL [ 37 ¥ B S W B B AN R s L It =78 B M B IR
EVEHEEE R TEY Ui
[0 B A BT

HELEHDEHHE | H B H s E HEE R B LHEE L EE

R R

27 () LHEE T




TE PR GRUD A7 2w

W 954 B

(3) =GR A D) 4

- R 2021 4R EE R WA 70) 2020 48 A AL WA I0)
FRETH N PR 1,212.60 1,146.50

6. SEIKAT RIS RLAH N

(1) Sy E

T H A KIKT7 2021 £ 12 A 31 H 20204 12 A 31 H
Hofth SRR AL AT R A ] 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
HoAth 2R P I T e e b R T PR 2 1,012,846,760.15 669,452,500.00
HoAth BESCAK PRI T 4 R b b A PR 24 6] 858,968,673.60 16,817,917.80
oAt SO AP AT PR 7] 1,867.24
oAt 2 K & kAT IR A A 57,000,000.00 57,000,000.00
HoAl 2K Bl 40 55 L = A R A F 4,000,000.00
HoAt S ik Bt WL T AT PR ) 6,000,000.00
At Sk AN T S B AT PR B4 2 ) 120,000.00
Hefth SRk 11 45 5 i b S A PR 4 88,619,059.34 658,938,792.71
FeAh Sk B T S AR B R A ) 645,699,999.98 896,445,687.98
HeAlh SO Gt (RIRD) MR A R AR 364,393,498.10
JSZASC i K FRYITH S R ARk IR A B 1,439,057.98 1,302,943.83
0 RO YT 2 ol R A FRA R 522,370,840.71 522,370,840.71

(2) NI HE

SR Sk H 2021412 H31 H 2020412 A31H
JAth 24K AR CREED MR8 A R A F 893,183.11
HLAb RIS K G RATIR AT 825,492.81 825,492.81
HoAth RE A 3K PR T e =T PR A ] 57,650,000.00 |  217,000,000.00
AR 3K A 9 0 7 L 4 A PR 48,000,000.00
JEA R A K TR I8 e S0 e 2 A B3 ) 46,800,000.01 46,800,000.01
AR AT K W PHBE R R HRAT 42,000,000.00
oAt 3% 4 K PR YN TH SRR i A A B 110,000.00 100,000.00
FCABRAT K Ml Ty 4 AR AR A L 2 975,075,652.42 -
LA 24K W ) (RN R AT IR 2% 7] 110,000.00 100,000.00
At B4 K PRI T £ 00 T s Ml A7 PR 48 ) 10,000,000.00
JAD SR PR AR e 4 AT B 4 7 227,500,000.00 30,000,000.00

84



EPepE s CGERYID FHIRZAH] WA 5 R A T

_ BIHA KRBT 2021 £ 12 31 H PO20%F 12431 H
FAbSEAT AR PRI R G5 AT PR 92,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
ALK Ml S AL AT AT B A 499,788.40 | 1,237,574.35
JEASEAT K R T S5k 4 B A AT R 501,452,500.00 | 501,452,500.00
AR £ ik VAT 22 2 R A ] 72,333.33
ARG SR NAT RA 45217,144.33

Fon 5SS 0 A

$ﬁﬁ%£ﬂﬁ%lﬂ@ﬂmﬂﬂﬁ\%%\mwwmxﬁﬁmﬁ%s%MﬁMI
ﬂ%%m%%ﬁ%%ﬁmﬁzﬁimﬁ.EEEﬁMIﬂﬁ%%m@,m&$ﬁﬂh%
ﬁﬂ%m%ﬁ%ﬂ%m@%mﬂﬁ%?%ﬁj$ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ@mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ
W 48 LRk R 3 ) 2 B 2 ) 38 L 2 M

A4 F) ST FE B P 2 BT R A 23 RIS A B ) 5 ] fig AR 44 20 46 A ml e AL B
T HERE A BB . R T AT R 2B AR b AT M AR 28 0, 0728 B2 () A7 7 B A DR TRy
%~mm%ﬁWEKMﬂ%%M$WMFE$ka,ﬁ%?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁ
{1 785 Ak, i 6 B0 ST 0 R BEAT R

(—) F SR H AR B

$ﬂﬁ&$m@ﬁﬂmHﬁﬁ&m%m%ﬁi@ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ#W,ﬁm@wiﬂﬁ
ﬁﬁ&&%ﬁ@%%%ﬁﬂﬂﬁmW,Mﬂﬁ&ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁkwnﬁ¥ﬁ
mmﬁﬂﬁﬁ,$&ﬂM@ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬂMEW%W%W$&%%@WM%WR@,ﬁ
7 36 2 g B R T R R A AT RS A, I e ) bt e R AT MR, R U A
il 0 RS s ) Y 2 19

1. 174 AR

(1) 5 R

2/ ) [ 70 220 5 2| 4 M T LR < A TR 20 35 B 3 T B ) A R ARAT Rk (1
AT, 28 2. A A OB (RIFIX B A K O EEB) A

) S AL 5 A e 4 A

) S RS e 4 My 3 T PR R

85



TE VR Gy G AR AR W S AR

735 ) AR5 B i ) 208 ) el R )R S BN B

ST DA SR B e B s R i TR, T A AR ARG ASL SR M ) A
B, 2 s

st T4 A T LR A e TR, TR R R R 3L 2 AT AL, IR ELRT
4 U SRS WA T 5 AT 2401 ¢

Lt 7 0 il 1 T4 ) S S0 D 00 VA R B - ST A o T L A ik
7= AR A £ 2 Fe i A A

fF FREAR IR 1, e A RN T, B R B R SRR e 1%
(2020: 1%) ,JF 7 ) 308 Ko S AL BB 08 43 S ki BN A B T 6,957,281 76 (2020
£ AT 8,775,396 JG)

2. {e R

(O RK, Bt 4 BT — DT R AT L%, RS — 7 RAEM BRI R
2 A ) 43 PR R S e B 7 W e ROSOMCRR SERRSIOR W BRAG(E A R,
3 L) S 2 B (R PRI B, 9 EL R e a5 Y SRR Y M o

2021 4 12 A 31 H, WA 3] A2 7 0 55 1 2 1 1188 PR R il 101 g 275 1 i e v
8 i P T A, BRI\ 5 BRI A A FI AR A SRR, AR X
S SEAR T il 4 A 24 B AR A2 A0 F VR I ELR VE LA+ 2.

HeAb, A58 T FR T4 LA A 850 ¥ S A7 O A0 R VR LB R 4R AT, Ui ah Bt 2 M
FH R LG

3. HEh RS

TR, T4 2 B 7 ST A RS 300 Ao A i 7% 1 7 2 5 A ) S 5 R A
AR R . IR R BRI, A2 F 3 ) P R AT 8 ik B A 5 4 Ty s A <
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁmww,ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁmm&&m&%mm#wﬁﬂﬁMﬁ,m
AN T G, Wi S ZEHTA A B A M T A 78 R 1 e R it S, JF
WA 4 e MR 0 B o A 2 0 i 4 0 0 i 0 Ve DL A St B IR o

AATG EA SN EE RN, W1k 2021 4E 12 A 31 AL ) 7]
KR AN . AR O W R R AR, AR DR K

86



TE PR b GBI AIRA S W 7 4t 2 P

i ETR, A2 w4 ER A A 4 W AR ) A KUK D R BRAIS, X AN 24w (1)
oI AR A R TR, AT 55 03 TR A 1 SR T (L Y HE R b

+ A SR R
Iy BAZ SR Ao 1k i 55 7 A0 g 4 () 4F AR A S e

) WA 2 e b il
mH B—RRAR BoBERAR (BB RARN A
Ar i ik i ik fiL ik
— FREEM A A
(—) Hph#La THEE | 406,556,878.00 406,556,878.00
(=) B> 14,972,450,000.00 |14,972,450,000.00
1. AR 14,468,850,000.00 [14,468,850,000.00
2. 7EHEHEAY) 503,600,000.00 |  503,600,000.00
FFes: LL2 SO AR ik A 7 19
ok

2. FREERARR R = IR A So i VBT SR B A A AR A L 2 A s
K s i Ae B,

i H AL I A A B
—. FOEEE
L LB S 4 14,468,850,000.00 | Wi ¥/ilidik HAL R
TEM R 503,600,000,00 | i EARITE wAL R

3, RS RCA RIS 4R AT 2 MR 5 B
T WA S M BB ST

e 10 L A b B 7 O S A B 1%, oA B 6 AR T ] Rl R A e S
sl ek > A B 149,724,500.00 JT.

4y FREAZ S AT I i i B 7 A S0 A9 £ 2 o AR

ARV ERRE NN, WS R e e A T T B0 e B < 08 ) 1
LA M AR A S E .

87



TENCHE B M RN A7 PR 5

i 5 4 8 A

. AU A P

SN 2 e E R

e A ] J A A ) 2 T 40 ) R 7 420 0 P O 5 A N ) AT B PR R AT
PPRRARAR, HRA M B AR, AR A OUEE RN @, B R
R B 1 (B3R ATAIE) 0 B i Tt 2 5 o ZZARAT I 2 H k. T 2021
12 A 31 H, AARREN B REHAART 1,729,156,842.74 70

2. BRATHI
(1) PEILBEEN. 5 (2) OBz A ] BiAs 24 7 2 T4 Al (E R AT (f Rk
R
(2) Acsv T s A 7 224 A g HAb AR SRR T L PO FRLIR
| mERECL
B EERVS( mgREa | BEEINE
48 M P~
RBITA AT PR 70,000,000.00 | 2021-11-30 | 2022-11-30 i
YIRS LA AT | 100,000,00000 | 2021-12-7 2022-12-7 #
YIRS AR | 100,000,00000 | 2021-12-22 | 2022-12-22 %
YIRS A RAT | 230,000,000.00 [ 2021-12-16 | 2022-12-15 %

=, BEre e H SR
WA 2021 4F 12 H 31 B, A4 F) 6 75 B 0% 1 BE = L f0EaR H S SR

+=, bR

ARFE 2021 4F 12 F 31 [, AAET0 i SR ) HAth I LGOI

+ P, BRI M SR B0 E R

1. ok

W

2021 412 H 31 H

20204 12 H 31 H

1 4B

24,229.17

88



IE Y4 i b CIRYID HPR A H

W F AR AW

e 2021 £ 12 H 31 H 20204 12 A 31 H
1E 24 1,300,000.00
24 E 1,300,000.00
ANt 1,324,229.17 1,300,000.00
@:ﬁ%ﬁ%
it 1,324,229.17 1,300,000.00
2. HAth Ak
(1) rE5R
moH 2021 £ 12 H 31 H 2020 4E 12 B 31 H
RZUAC )
R e 2,000,000,000.00
Hefth RS 5,919,665,480.05 4,407,076,411.17
il 7,919,665,480.05 4,407,076,411.17

(2) MWRF

A 4% Bt AL 202146 12 A 31 H 20204 12 A 31 H
T ‘ 2
] T G 0 155 =T A TR 455, 50p.060:66
A7
PRI 1T At 13 B T R AT TR 11580,000,006,00
44
B 2,000,000,000.00
(3) HAh R HGK
e # 2021 46 12 A 31 B 2020 4E 12 A 31 H
1 FELA 5,009,119,506.83 4,074,866,567.92
1 E 24 8,270,712.69 311,238,710.25
2EUE 9,601,060.53 28,296,933.00
At 5,026,991,280.05 4,414,402,211.17
e RO 7,325,800.00 7,325,800.00
£t 5,019,665,480.05 4,407,076,411.17

89



IEDEEE b= GERYID A IRAF WA 540 W

3K L B
2021 4 12 A 31 H 20204 12 4 31 H
m H _ WAl Wk fi
] 3 e T = 4
| Wi T 2 " Il T 77 41 o !ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ
=N
;H'A = 2,264,300,000.00 2,264,300,000.00 [2,264,300,000.00 2,264,300,000.00
it D 264,300,000.00 2,264,300,000.00 [2,264,300,000.00 2,264,300,000.00
(1) X4 m H o
s 2020 4 A (40 2021 4 AN (2021 4E 12 A 31
12A31H  [Bm | 12 A31H RIS | FREHES R
W‘Ilmmﬁﬁiﬂﬂ 210,000,000.00 210,000,000.00
FEFE AT IR B
IR BT B b
) 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00
PRI A IR T
IENRRI3IET (B 1,895,000,000.00 1,895,000,000.00
) FIRAF]
i Tﬁmﬁﬁ_ - 9,300,000.00 9,300,000.00
=T A IR 5
2 2,264,300,000.00 2,264,300,000.00
4.5 e A B AR
¥ 2021 4EJ 2020 fE[F
[ PN %S WA A
FEHE k% | 69,899,634.11 2,473,282.07 53,505,934.30 1,012,685.20
&if 69,899,634.11 2,473,282.07 53,505,934.30 1,012,685.20

AT EHR: IEXMERHF GRYD AIRAF
Hil: 202244 A 12 H

90



M

oS TN T B SHE AT EE

%ﬁﬁﬁmm ﬁmﬁ&.ﬁdmmwﬁﬁﬂmmeum :

e e = — - & = ar = = - - -~ B S 3 - i ™ |

9z—106FE 1106 (R TAN A
At T (LA R e e, T == st E4e 3

B EHoOIHTIHZE0T M B ¥} &
HolgTidselor i H T

J——— -k )

WS = $L8LT6FSROZOTIOITIE ...mm
=11 = &
E — - — BYHISR-%B




HezHOIZE En.ﬁ H ARy 3l
&£900[£102) BAABHE - 5 jrgap

e st Ol B 3T Y e

CE00LOLEG Heel AN
WEBRUHEY A % H

QT-L06FTT-L06 B
EHUEHISTTEYSLIESAMERE g & o 5

(EMARELEH IS BEURE
HEEE GEIHLATEETEHSELARS v
Ti CRE E
B CEE CREEEY (FTTFHHEEENTIY ¢
‘EEie I EEHYRY
'BEFFTEEREDN (eNTHELEUNI) T
TIE
RETRRUNSETONLY HaTylis
EHHEYEBLSHTT (TTFEHEEHHT) 1




110001540422

3E H &5 TR0 E54045

Mg ol Cerfifiese

RS ERs NNEERETESS
Asthorized lnstiee oI CPAs

£ 8 M 20— & -
Dsteef smmce B r._#._u .rm_
LI Tag
...,ofnn g
& ' &
s M s
£ old ®
v 7 -
5 o
. &
L

e i e

> ERLHNIHEBEIAFAER
EOF B R AR Regismation ofthe Change of Werkiag Unit by 8 CBA
Anma] Renewal Registaton .
Ky13% 0OA AERE

REsEEELR, MK %,
This certificade is valid for anedher year after
tiis resewal a3 L r

EEAMN ’
ilw&.ﬂl#%ﬂ. g

. FAmeAT
‘gl b e B 3T (s
% E
Iy i ]
5
&
e
| | s EELHBIALEESFARR
| mﬂ Registration of the Change of Working Unit by a P&
_ ¥
| ﬁ_mw AtAs
&2
m! 2
LIELE
< 1E8 g |
€| |z|8EE|
w8 gl
w ® FoH-WE
E =243l
= L Hiviad
EFasadnzal

| &
i
|

i

g F3

— EESGERANES, LRNARSHETS

N ERES.

oA ESARTAARR, FHEED. IR

2. BEeHRRLIRASEEESY, BHRE
EPELFEREEHERS,

. kst d, A i EFERSHFRS
H#i, SHEARARS, HEE TR,

WOTES =

hodder Mo mansfer or aieoesion shall be allowed.

-3, The CEA, s5all rewmm the -certificale o the compett
frstingte of CPAs when the (P4 siops oondecting
stasenory businesy.

P 4 Iniesse of joss, the CPA shall pepot b Khe competent

Instivaee of CPAs immodscly end go teosgh e
thoe o e froaking ta arseunoément of

Ty oo the nowspepel

EHSHBIHELEEFALR
Registration of the Change of Workiag Unit by a CPA

AE#AA




EHEEBEFER
Annual Fraswal Begismation

%ﬁﬁ&#ﬂ##.lkﬁw1#.
Thiis cestificare is valid fior anotier year afier
this resewal.

110101301221
Elb it

2017 % 0 2 22 2

=y

5 EReARIALEARAFALR | EALARIHFEIRAFASR
m ﬂnﬂﬁuﬁﬂﬁnpﬂﬂnaniﬁuﬁrquhﬁmr mnuaﬁﬁmgnmﬁﬁnﬂﬂmnomﬂ_oﬁmbm__-u_uwjpﬁ.v\.
L |3 s AsAE
MN mﬂn i geee e hnicler 13 b cmnierrod oo
TV Ak, = .

,o 2 ~ gEIE

_r CESis 4
& S ¥ Z miEls
F S % 2 2 Rc|B

nnﬂw N e B EaE- =—

e | s =g 1 e LF

-.OMH._ \\M.\n..x. % e ] : = MM X = M.M El’w‘wﬂr_ﬁh‘unﬁ”

.w.m.n. ._.“_.___h_ ﬂ.m_. ] Mmﬂmﬂmx I s ']

= < H=THE&EE R
.f.._.um«.wsxun__.v HoreHAMEZwE Agree the nlderie be wamfoud i

¥R

OPs

$apeat

Eﬂ‘ﬂh‘rrﬂrﬂmnﬂf

e A ]

i i= M

I




54

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E RS

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LVGEM (China) Real
Estate Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 234, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which
indicates that the Group has borrowings of RMB6,995 million, and convertible
bonds of RMB498 million approaching maturity and due for repayment or
renewal in 2022 and convertible bonds of RMB964 million and domestic
corporate bonds of RMB1,395 million with the early redemption options and
retractable options respectively in 2022. In addition, the Group has public senior
notes with carrying amount of RMB3,138 million which will be matured on 10
March 2023. The Group might not have sufficient working capital to operate
if such borrowings, convertible bonds and public senior notes are required to
be repaid or redeemed and all other alternative operating and financing plans
as described in note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements cannot be
implemented as planned. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
based on the assumptions that the borrowings, convertible bonds and public
senior notes can be renewed and those plans can be successfully executed, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to maintain its operations and to pay
its financial obligations as and when they fall due for at least twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. However, the likelihood of successful renewal
of borrowings, convertible bonds and public senior notes and implementation
of those plans as set forth in note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our conclusion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition
to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

| 1.\

e 3 Ll

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% R E R

REFHCERBNEATREEN

BB E TR MBHRRMES L ETHE EEEREEN
fEREAR6,9958 &t M Al B E R A R¥498E &Thl
HER  WA-E - —FEHEEREE AREERD
FIMAER —Z— — R FEEINERN R R SR REA AR
BESAREICATETRERARAES ARKL395HE

et BEREREERARESIBEETHLHE
EEBFIR-_Z_=F=A+HER - MZFEE "k

BESHRARBLEERATEESXER - AR MBHRE
FEE3. LATIL Y PR Rt B RS & R B & St B R e IRET B8R
E (B BEEARTERENEEESLEER B

RAEFRR  ENZEEE  AIRREFRAREBLER
BRI TAEBERKIEEZSHENRS - EXESAE
ﬁﬂs@é%?ﬁﬁﬁ%‘@&Eﬁﬁﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%?ﬂ'
“EARNEENMEETE - Al - ZEEE - AIRRES
RAREBARIBETKINER RIS M EHREM 3. 1ATEH
WZESH BT RE  RMTFESATRENE - Kimalae
ByYE BEEENRECLRENEESARE KMARE
MEZEEET BN SR -

REEKREE

RIBHMIMF G - BRREZFERRMBRR AL
MRS VBBRRTREENER - HMEBXEBRESY
BREEBUEBRMOBELRREEESER - mHERFAT
@?ﬁ&t%$l§$§%§*i‘%ﬁﬁ B?E%ﬁﬁigiwﬁﬁﬁaﬁ’]iﬁ
THEEE—SHARNEREN  RACBEETXALAEES
ﬂ%ﬁéiﬁ%qﬂ{% iﬂ’]@ﬁﬁi%’?%ﬁ g

e

53 (=F)ﬂh§$ﬁ§ﬁl‘ﬁ"1 55



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conta)

Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter as
they represented approximately 34% of the Group’s total assets, combined with
the judgements and estimation associated with determining the fair value.

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the fair value of
completed investment properties and investment properties under development
amounted to approximately RMB24,445,978,000 and RMB4,744,376,000 as
at 31 December 2021 and a decrease in fair value amounted to approximately
RMB234,342,000 and an increase in fair value amounted to RMB14,321,000
recognised in profit or loss for the year then ended respectively. The completed
investment properties were located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“Mainland China”), Hong Kong and the Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”).

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s
investment properties were stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by an independent qualified professional valuer (“Valuer”). As disclosed in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the fair value of investment
properties have been arrived at using income capitalisation approach, direct
comparison approach and residual approach, which were dependent on certain
key inputs and assumptions in respect of prevailing market conditions such as
capitalisation rate and monthly market rent for income capitalisation approach,
selling price per square meters for direct comparison approach and gross
development value and developers’ profit margin for residual approach.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties included:
o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the Valuer;

o Obtaining an understanding of the valuation processes and significant
assumptions to assess if these approaches meet the requirements of
HKFRSs and industry norms;

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation methods applied by the
Valuer, in particular the valuation techniques and the capitalisation rate,
based on our knowledge of the property markets in the Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Cambodia; and

o Assessing the reasonableness of other valuation inputs and source
data, including capitalisation rate and monthly market rent for income
capitalisation approach, market value of completed properties, and gross
development value and developer’s profit margin for residual approach,
selling price per square meters for direct comparison approach by
comparing these estimates, on a sample basis, to entity-specific
information such as rental income, tenancy summary, location nearby
and size of the investment properties, as well as market data based on
our knowledge of the property markets in the Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Cambodia.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conta)
Key audit matter
Revenue recognised from sales of properties

We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties as a key audit
matter as the revenue from sales of properties is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and there is judgement involved in determining the
appropriate point at which to recognise revenue from sales of properties.

As disclosed in “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” paragraph under note
3.2 to the consolidated financial statements, revenue from sales of properties
is recognised when the completed property is transferred to customers, being
at the point that customer obtains the control of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and collection of the consideration is
probable. The Group has recognised revenue of RMB3,392,354,000 from its
real estate development and sales segment for the year ended 31 December
2021, which is disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from sales of properties
included:

o Assessing the management’s control over the point of time at which
revenue from sales of properties is recognised by obtaining an
understanding of the management’s control process and testing the
control on a sample basis; and

o Reviewing the terms stated in the sales and purchase agreements, on
a sample basis, and obtaining evidence regarding the completion and
the delivery of properties, on a sample basis, including completion
certificates and delivery notices, to assess whether the criteria for
revenue recognition set out in “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers “
paragraph under note 3.2 to the consolidated financial statements have
been met.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conta)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conta)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Yuen Wing Hang.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

meEER

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E I
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBT T ARETTT
Revenue 1§ 5 4,378,017 5,424,827
Cost of sales SHEKA (2,189,617) (2,759,122)
Gross profit EX 2,188,400 2,665,705
Other income Efhlg A 6 98,391 148,901
Other gains and losses Hofth e 25 K 518 7 (48,111) (111,454)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate R {EH & — RS N 7 /IR 35 - 3,893,561
Selling expenses SHEMS (164,279) (127,165)
Administrative expenses 1T (564,824) (474,547)
Recognition of change in fair value of ERERPEENE HENERRED
properties under development for sale/ ~ ¥2 AR BEEEER
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties 14 2,787,454 606,333
Fair value changes on investment REMENR R EEES
properties 14 (220,021) (845,655)
Fair value changes on derivative AMBREFITET ALV AR EBEES
component of convertible bonds 30(b) 83,674 93,506
Finance costs [EE= VDN 8 (1,710,896) (1,533,101)
Share of results of a joint venture EE—EaEAREE (2) 2)
Profit before tax BB AT & F 9 2,449,786 4,316,082
Income tax expense FrieFi s 10 (1,114,869) (865,007)
Profit for the year FEERF 1,334,917 3,451,075
Profit for the year attributable to: ATATELEERR :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NGT S 1,152,576 3,453,380
Non-controlling interests SRR A 182,341 (2,305)
1,334,917 3,451,075
RMB cents RMB cents
ARMD AR®ES
Earnings per share attributable to the FRARATRRELEREBR
owners of the Company during the year 13
- Basic -8 22.61 68.03
— Diluted —#E 13.37 38.47
I 1]
= oppein g g ] .
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

M A= 32 { LI& 2 For the year ended 31 December 2021
:21";% | Eﬁﬁ&ﬁ méﬁ ﬁﬁ%‘:z BE—_BE-—F+-A=1+—HItFE
2021 2020
—Eo—F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFTT
Profit for the year FEREF 1,334,917 3,451,075
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hit 2wk (BIx)
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to A EEF T ET B 2IEE
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation bE 3 EE A IR E R 92,430 169,268
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TEEHN S BEEERm2ER -
Fair value changes on investments in equity EARBEFAHMEmAEEZBEAT
instruments at fair value through other BBz AR EBEZEFHIIHRKEIE)
comprehensive income, net of tax (38,128) (65,929)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEHEMEEKE 54,302 103,339
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEKEEE 1,389,219 3,554,414
Total comprehensive income (expense) UFALTEGZEWR S (BIX) 4% :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NCT )8 1,204,334 3,560,599
Non-controlling interests TS 184,885 (6,185)
1,389,219 3,554,414

LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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At 31 December 2021
N=_EB-—F+=-A=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SRy S e e

e

2021 2020
—E- ZE TR
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARBT T ARETTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties KEMZE 14 29,190,354 23,167,159
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB kA 15 856,628 931,581
Goodwill EES 231,602 231,602
Interest in a joint venture R—EEERAIHERS 16 6,054 6,056
Amount due from a joint venture W —fA &R RIRIE 16 522,318 522,318
Equity instruments at fair value through AR BEGTAEMEEKS 2 BATE
other comprehensive income 17 450,423 501,261
Restricted bank deposits R GISRITIFER 23 540,000 -
Deferred tax assets RERIBEEE 18 551,812 537,869
32,349,191 25,897,846
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development for sale  ZEREHIFEME 19 40,057,708 32,132,185
Properties held for sale FEME 20 3,087,656 4,844 053
Other inventories HinzE 777 674
Accounts receivable FEURBE X 21 39,489 68,105
Deposits paid, prepayments and EES - A FOE R HE ARG IE
other receivables 22 2,598,909 1,862,033
Tax recoverable AT [B1 75 5K 61,255 52,452
Restricted bank deposits SR I ERI T 23 2,840,020 3,979,537
Bank balances and cash SRITHBRIRS 24 3,907,048 5,430,113
52,592,862 48,369,152
Current liabilities FEEE
Accounts payable FETBRIR 25 3,642,441 1,262,086
Accruals, deposits received and JERTER - Bdite REAEMANROE
other payables 26 1,925,344 762,404
Contract liabilities ARAE 27 1,358,938 1,348,932
Lease liabilities HERE 28 17,196 17,239
Tax liabilities HIEEE 2,349,916 2,375,586
Borrowings BE 29 6,994,506 8,007,353
Senior notes and bond BAZRBERES 31 1,394,867 2,129,522
Debt component of convertible bonds AIARES B E 30(a) 1,462,252 -
Derivative component of convertible Al HXF%MEI LER 5>
bonds 30(b) 26,251 -
19,171,711 15,903,122
Net current assets REBEETFE 33,421,151 32,466,030
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBERE 65,770,342 58,363,876
"l ( ' ‘ i '} #= (EF)ﬂhEEﬁﬁFE"j 63
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR Rk N

2021 2020
—Eo—F —ECEF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit AR%T T ARETFTT
Non-current liahilities FREEE
Borrowings BE 29 17,999,225 15,857,136
Senior notes and bond BRI R ES 31 3,336,853 3,236,529
Debt component of convertible bonds AR ES EEE D 30(a) = 1,419,974
Derivative component of convertible AR ESITE T A S
bonds 30(b) = 111,612
Lease liabilities HEasE 28 147,279 85,134
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBAE 18 3,558,552 2,818,217
Other non-current liabilities HiEmneamE 32 11,287,644 6,949,651
36,329,553 30,478,253
Net assets EEZRE 29,440,789 27,885,623
Capital and reserves BRARH#E
Share capital [N 33 42,465 42,458
Reserves B 34 25,886,797 24,681,258
Equity attributable to owners of the AN B IR ER FE (A B
Company 25,929,262 24,723,716
Non-controlling interests IR e 3,511,527 3,161,907
Total equity EREE 29,440,789 27,885,623

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 234 were approved and FOIE2UMB VAV BREEEESEN T =
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2022 and are signed A=+HERSETE  WEATESRERES
on its behalf by:

HUANG Jingshu HUANG Hao Yuan
HWE R
CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TRRATES WiTEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

Atributable o owners of the Company

KDARGRELER
Convertible Investment Nor-

Share Share  preference Ofher  Bichange  revaluation  Shareoption  Statutory  Retained St controlling Total

capital ~ premium shares  resenves Tesenve TEsere Tesere Tesere pofits fotal  interests equity

Ra  ROEE TERERR HeER  EXRE REEGRE BREGE iERR  REEA Nt FEREE  EREE

RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD0  RMBUOO

AZET ARETT ARBTm ARETr ARETn ARETx ARETm ARBTR ARET ARBTR ARETR ARBTn

Balance as at 1 January 2020 NE-EE-A-AAER Q00 7073804 6064905 (11637887) B8 148383 20718 31365 10633502 1292789 106974 13034833

Proft for the year FEEH = = = = - - - - 34330 3483380 (2305) 345107
Fairvalue changes oninvesimentsinequly R4 BEFALHAEAEZRAT

instruments a far value through ofher EREDAREE(RRE)

comprehensive income, net of tax - - - = = (6,929) - - - (65,929) - (65929
Exchange diferences arising on franseton ErEEEERT - - = - B - - - - IR B 169268
Total comprehiensive income (expense) for the #(F3)%8

Jear - - - - 1B (65,929) - - 34m330 3560599 (6,185 354414
Comverson o converble peference shares—— XEATARERR(HEYY)

(note 34) 39 05,385 (65,704) = = = = = = = = =
Evercise of share options fiffahie 9 206 = - - = (7511) - = 14574 = 14574
Transfer o statufory eserve ERTTRE = = - - - - - Bl (36N = = -
Acquistion o an additona nerest ina EIYEA R BAT MRS

subsidiary - - - 6,91 - - - - - 6961 (3637) (29410
Requisition of subsiciares (nofe 35) WENBAFHED) - - - 84%3% - - - - - 84%3% 3007489 11993884
Dividend declare and mace (nofe 12) BERREROREHEL) - - - - - - - - (R6T) (8267) - (R
Balance s at 31 December 2020 NB-BEL-A=-BiER Q48  71611% 590200 (313453) 187 8464 307 %7306 13800569 24723716 3161907  27:886,623
Balance asat 1 January 2021 NE--F-F-AAER 4458 TI6L195 5099000  (3134531) 201837 82464 203201 T6 13800569 24723716 3161907 27885623
Proft o the year E%W = = = = = - - - 10956 1152516 182341 1334817
Fai vaue changes oninvesmers inequily ~— AABE AERAENEZRET

Insrumentsatfai value trough other EREDAREED(ARE)

comprehensive income, net of tax = = = = = (38,128) - - - (38,128) - (38,128)
Exchange diferences arising on fransaton B EEHERT = = = - B8 = = = - 898 4 8
Total comprehensie income (expense) forthe ~ ER2EUE(F )45

Jear - - - - 89,686 (38,128) - - 1152576 1204334 184885 1389219
Exercise of share options 1 184 - - - - (636) - - 1212 - 1212
Transfer o statutory resere - - - - - - - 80 48 - - -
Capital confribution by non-controlling-inferests - - - - - - - - - - 16543 165431
Divdend paid to non-controling-nterests - - - - - - - - - - (696) (69%)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 WE--E+-f=t-BHER 42465 7163036 5999201  (3,134531) 291723 43% 205N 415358 14905103 25929262 3511521 29440789
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
—Eo—F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFTT
Operating activities ReEES
Profit before tax BRA AT & A) 2,449,786 4,316,082
Adjustments for: FHEIFE ¢
Depreciation e 73,438 66,915
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERRENEER
equipment 8 9
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary T B A B A daE (3,569) -
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate RAEH & — M & 2 Al AU - (3,893,561)
Recognition of change in fair value of ERERPEENSE HFENERRED
properties under development for sale/ EZ2RRBEZEHER
properties held for
sale upon transfer to investment properties (2,787,454) (606,333)
Fair value changes on investment properties HEMENRAREBEES) 220,021 845,655
Fair value changes on derivative component of MBREFITETET SN AR EEES
convertible bonds (83,674) (93,506)
Share of results of a joint venture Y il NI+ 2 2
Impairment loss recognised for accounts FEUBR SR (E B 1B FERR T 5E
receivable, net 68,873 40,617
Interest income FLEUA (69,217) (113,884)
Dividend income & BUZA (22,800) (22,800)
Finance costs BRE AN 1,710,896 1,533,101
Loss on non-substantial modification of BB AR SRBE I IEEREE
financial liabilities at amortised cost B8 - 1,810
Loss on substantial modification of convertible R ES 2 EXBE IR
bonds — 20,105
Loss on non-substantial modification of senior BEZRZIFERNEFEIE
notes — 129,571
Exchange difference lEH =% (152,644) (391,684)
Operating cash flows before movements in LEASHINKLRENE
working capital 1,403,666 1,832,099
Increase in properties under development for ERPGEMERFEWFEEM
sale and properties held for sale (4,843,845) (459,088)
(Increase) decrease in other inventories EfbFE (g )R (103) 64
Increase in accounts receivable FEURBR FRIZ N (42,804) (74,877)
Increase in deposits paid, prepayments and other B 4&& TR 0B M EAb E UG IBIE I
receivables (1,477,574) (352,031)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable FERBEZIE MO D) 2,323,444 (22,214)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities ARAEECRD) 10,006 (1,156,333)
Increase in accruals, deposits received and other ~ JEFT &R - O UiE S R E b B TR IERE N
payables 1,033,110 1,426,554
Cash from operations KRBT (1,594,100) 1,194,174
Income taxes paid BRI AEH (427,330) (687,207)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities RESEE (FTR) IBRSTFE (2,021,430) 506,967
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

2021 2020
—E- ZE TR
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBT T ARETTT
Investing activities REZEH
Placement of restricted bank deposits FHRERFIRITER (11,744,531) (4,699,212)
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition 2R B & B —FME A RIBEEEE R &
of assets and liabilities through BNIRESRAERE
acquisition of a subsidiary 85 - 114,618
Additional costs of investment AW FEINK A
properties (222,186) (99,301)
Advances to related parties Bl ARG (2,884,728) (2,445,358)
Placement of short-term time deposits ~ FHUREER =8 A A B —FREI B
with original maturity beyond three HER
months but within one year (261,500) (227,047)
Purchase of property, plant BEWE - BEREE
and equipment (10,822) (15,688)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEMSERIE
investment properties 53,457 -
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 2B [R &3R1T1E 50 12,340,892 4,446,661
Repayment from related parties RagsE iR 2,884,537 1,317,717
Repayment from (advance to) a FEf2e AR AR 2 38 X (1R R AR A 2 <2 (P #A 50)
non-controlling interest 2,894 (1,447)
Withdrawal of short-term deposits ERRER=E AN EE—FARENE
with original maturity beyond three LIVEZ
months but within one year 600,476 74,175
Interest received BEYFIE 48,390 99,722
Dividend income received E AR B I A 22,800 22,800
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEMREMERE
plant and equipment 263 143
Net cash inflow from disposal of HE—AH B AR GRS R AFRE
a subsidiary 236 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= N = For the year ended 31 December 2021

MERERER St abilriutasrelivatiyon
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFTT

Net cash from (used in) investing REZBME (AR FHE

activities 830,178 (1,412,217)
Financing activities BESEE
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (8,396,973) (4,245,956)
Repayments of bonds BB ES (2,111,877) (690,855)
Interest paid ERFLE (2,086,878) (1,776,137)
Dividend paid BEfEE (696) (282,672)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (15,284) (15,681)
Repayment of convertible bonds EERRES - (134,589)
Repayment of senior notes EEELEER - (1,189,991)
Proceeds from issue of bonds BATIEAR TS RIE 1,593,740 690,855
Proceeds from new borrowings S EmERE 9,767,027 6,603,124
Proceeds from issue of senior notes BITE RIS RUE = 1,683,724
Advances from related parties K B BEEE 7 2 2R 1,101,729 =
Capital contribution from a REFERER 2 FE

non-controlling interest 165,431 -
Issue of new shares upon exercise TTERE AR LA S A TR AR

of share options 1,212 14,574
Net cash from financing activities REETEMEBNESFHE 17,431 656,396
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREEENRDFE

equivalents (1,173,821) (248,854)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  SMNEE RS BN S/E (10,268) (16,825)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRERBEEEY

beginning of the year 4,829,637 5,095,316
Cash and cash equivalents at FREERRELZEEY

end of the year 3,645,548 4,829,637
Represented by: Ei-l
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 3,645,548 4,829,637
Add: Fixed deposits with original e REHAAZRZEABIR—FH

maturity date more than three EHEFER
months but within one year 261,500 600,476

Bank halances and cash BITEBRES 3,907,048 5,430,113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

GENERAL

LVGEM (China) Real Estate Investment Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
Company'’s registered office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong are Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and Unit 2501, NEO, 123 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong respectively. Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. WONG Hong King (“Mr. Wong"), the father of Ms. HUANG
Jingshu, the Chairman of the Company, and Mr. HUANG Hao Yuan, an
Executive Director of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the
costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make the
sale” when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

2.1

2.2

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group has early applied the amendment in the current year.
The amendment extends the availability of the practical expedient
in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16") by one
year so that the practical expedient applies to rent concessions
for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.

The application of this amendment has had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments relate to changes in the basis
for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets,
financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting requirements and
the related disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures (“HKFRS 7).

As at 1 January 2021, the Group has several financial liabilities,
the interests of which are indexed to benchmark rates that will or
may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The following
table shows the total amounts of these outstanding contracts.
The amounts of financial liabilities are shown at their carrying
amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Contd)

2.2

2.3

e MR E

ERARETEEMKEREEAN(TER
R EZXER ) )

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, 22 KEAEBMEREENFESE  FEEHEN
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform #3395 - BEBUBHREERNETR EBUH
— Phase 2 (Cont'd) HEXEAEIR R E B KRS ERE165H
(BT FIREENE - F_RENTE(E)
GBP London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
HERBBITRIZE
A= (TLIBOR )
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial liabilities == R
Bank loans IRITER 896,835
The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated HREIEEASONFTFRBEZHAERA
financial statements as none of the relevant contracts has been K MRS B AV EE GV EHRREEY
transitioned to the relevant replacement rates during the year. o AEERRIREHER AT ENIRITERGE
The Group will apply the practical expedient in relation to the ﬁﬂzgﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬂﬁAﬁ’Jfﬁﬁ/ﬁEQ@JKE
changes in contractual cash flows resulting from the interest rate AEBER S - BEMIEREERFETHRT
benchmark reform for bank loans measured at amortised cost. T HVREINE BB EE39 ©
Additional disclosures as required by HKFRS 7 are set out in note
30.
Impacts on application of the agenda decision of the Committee — 23 ERZESNBBEBAT HEREMERSE

Cost necessary to sell inventories (HKAS 2 Inventories)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda decision,
clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated costs
necessary to make the sale” when determining the net realisable
value of inventories. In particular, whether such costs should be
limited to those that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
should not be limited to those that are incremental but should
also include costs that an entity must incur to sell its inventories
including those that are not incremental to a particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the Committee’s agenda
decision was to determine the net realisable value of inventories
taking into consideration incremental costs only. Upon application
of the Committee’s agenda decision, the Group changed its
accounting policy to determine the net realisable value of
inventories taking into consideration both incremental costs and
other cost necessary to sell inventories. The new accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

e M ERR A

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property: Plantand Equipment-Proceeds
before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
The amendments:

o update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so that
it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) instead
of Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010);

° add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination; and

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the
assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

. specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current
should be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months; and

(ii)  if the right is conditional on the compliance with covenants,
the right exists if the conditions are met at the end of
the reporting period, even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(Cont'd)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a consequence of
the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the corresponding wordings with no
change in conclusion.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding convertible
instruments include counterparty conversion options that do not
meet equity instruments classification by applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The Group classified as current or non-
current based on the earliest date in which the Group has the obligation
to redeem these instruments through cash settlement. The host debt
component is measured at amortised cost with carrying amount of
RMB1,462,252,000 and the derivative component (including the
conversion options) is measured at fair value with carrying amount
of RMB26,251,000 as at 31 December 2021, both of which are
classified as current as set out in note 30. Upon the application of the
amendments, in addition to the obligation to redeem through cash
settlement, the transfer of equity instruments upon the exercise of the
conversion options that do not meet equity instruments classification also
constitute settlement of the convertible instruments.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies
the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group but may
affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Contd)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
An accounting policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty — that
is, the accounting policy may require such items to be measured at
monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing
accounting estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions
based on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in HKAS 8 is
retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following standards.
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing whether
modification of terms of original financial liability constitutes substantial
modification under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only
fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16
removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement relating to
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to remove any potential
confusion.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the going concern basis which assumes the continuity of normal
business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement
of liabilities in the normal course of business. Management
continues to closely monitor the liquidity position of the Group,
which includes the sensitivity analysis of forecast bank and cash
balances for various factors (including the number and selling
price of residential properties and commercial buildings sold)
over the short and medium term to ensure adequate liquidity is
maintained.

The Group has borrowings of RMB6,995 million, and convertible
bonds of RMB498 million approaching maturity and due for
repayment or renewal in 2022 and convertible bonds of RMB964
million and domestic corporate bonds of RMB1,395 million with
the early redemption options and retractable options respectively
in 2022. In addition, the Group has public senior notes with
carrying amount of RMB3,138 million which will be matured on
10 March 2023. The Group might not have sufficient working
capital to operate if such borrowings, convertible bonds and
public senior notes are required to be repaid or redeemed and
all other alternative operating and financing plans as described
below cannot be implemented as planned. These conditions
indicate that the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group'’s cash flow forecasts which cover a period of
not less than twelve months from 31 December 2021.

Cash flow forecasts, which assume the continuity of normal
business activity, indicate that the Group will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its operational, existing contractual debt obligation
and capital expenditure requirements for at least twelve month
period from the date of the end of the reporting period. Such cash
flow forecasts include the following assumptions:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (Cont'd)

o The Group has positive relationships with its external
financiers who are expected to continue to provide strong
support to the Group in the following aspects:

1)

2)

3)

4)

One of the convertible bonds of approximately
RM498 million which will be matured in first half of
2022 is assumed to be renewed while the remaining
of approximately RMB964 million, embedded with
early redemption options, which shall be matured
after twelve months from the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates as set out in the respective convertible bonds
subscription agreements, are assumed not to be
redeemed by the convertible bondholders within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period;

The RMB denominated domestic corporate bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,400
million, embedded with retractable options, which
shall be matured after twelve months from the
end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates as set out in the offering
memorandum, are assumed not to be retracted by
the corporate bondholders within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period;

The United States Dollar (“US$”) denominated
public senior notes with an aggregate principal
amount of US$470 million (equivalent to
approximate RMB3,138 million) is assumed to be
renewed upon or before the maturity date after
considering the coupon rate and the past experience
in launching the issuance and Exchange Offer (as
defined in note 31) of senior notes; and

The existing outbound guarantee facility arrangement
with the banks in relation to the fund transmission
from the People’s Republic of China (excludes Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan) (the “Mainland China”) to
Hong Kong is assumed to be feasible and effective,
based on the past historical records.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2021, the amount of properties under
development for sale and properties held for sale are
approximately RMB40,058 million and RMB3,088 million,
respectively which are substantially located in the Greater
Bay Area in Mainland China which can contribute a stable
source of cash inflow by realising those assets.

The directors of the Company also note the following
considerations, relevant to the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern:

At 31 December 2021, total cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB3,907 million were held by the Group.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had available undrawn
debt facilities of approximately RMB23,001 million relating
to projects related loans and approximately RMB80
million relating to remaining bank and other borrowings,
respectively. The maturities of these facilities range from
July 2023 to June 2032.

In the event forecast cash flow is not achieved or the renewal of
borrowings, convertible bonds and public senior notes do not
undergo as planned, the directors of the Company have also
evaluated other plans that could be undertaken to improve their
liquidity position as follow:

1)

2)

3)

The Group is currently considering the loan financing offers
provided by two equity fund investors with amounts not less
than RMB3,000 million and US$500 million each and the
loan periods are not less than 3 years;

The Group could adjust their original sale plan for some
residential properties and commercial buildings to earlier
stage (i.e. second half year of 2022) in order to generate
additional funds not less than approximately RMB3,000
million;

The Group could consider to sell partial equity interest
of Group’s subsidiaries which have urban renewal
development projects in the Greater Bay Area after second
half of 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

<hil

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (Cont'd)

Taking into account all assumptions and plans as described
above, the directors of Company are of the opinion that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to maintain its operations and to
pay its financial obligations as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The directors
of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, uncertainty exists as to whether the
renewal of borrowings, convertible bonds and public senior notes
can be renewed and all other alternative operating and financing
plans as the Group is still negotiating with its external financiers on
the financing to the Group and the sales of properties depend on
the market condition. Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to reduce the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for financial liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively, if applicable. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (Cont'd)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 [nventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

il sl il by e IR M R

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. FMEMBERZHERREERTES
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING BUR (#)
POLICIES (conta)

3.2  Significant accounting policies 3.2 FESHEX

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active ° %;f?&ﬁ{\%ﬁggﬁiﬁiﬁiﬁ%ﬂg
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can HW?E"{*EHQEEXETEHQ TEBTS 2 W
access at the measurement date; BORMERE):

] Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included ° %E%&i@]\%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%%iﬁgﬁ
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, Fﬁﬂfimﬁfgﬁ%%;iﬁ”)\gﬁ(%_H&W@
either directly or indirectly; and EHORRERIN &

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or ° %E%&@A?XT@%EEE}ZE%E@KE}E&
liability. =g ABUE -

Basis of consolidation e R

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial ﬁéﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁi}_’}“ﬁi%ﬁ“%&&

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the /\M;T%Aiiﬂﬁ%fﬁﬁ/;fﬂfbfﬂﬁmbﬂ:g

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the =& ABREAQRIRGZIZHE -

Company:

o has power over the investee; * AR EHRITERES

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its ° %ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%é@@i&m
involvement with the investee; and RBHZEEF &

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. ° RENEREENTEADR -

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if fl”nﬁﬁ%ﬁ&’lﬁi?ﬁﬁt%;ﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁ%if—

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or IE%LAJJL:&%K%J ' ?A RIgBEHAERRE

more of the three elements of control listed above. HEEHRBEA LI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction- by-transaction basis,
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to properties under development
for sale and the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

When an asset acquisition is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING BUR(#)

POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:
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o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities o Lkﬁlﬁﬁgiﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised BHRCEESBE  2RREEES:
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes AR 1255 A7 JE‘E&E/% FTAERIZE19
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively; ShIE S B FERIETE

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based . BRI A R DARR D 2 LR 2 A R B

payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
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Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy BEBZAHFTE(RTXEFHER):
below);
o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for . BIEE BB MEERFERIFELE

sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

e 3 Ll

L P 1

ZH B EERE f‘ﬂtﬁ‘“ %%r“ SRV
FHEHEZ BE(RHEMAR) BIREZ
EREFE R

. HEEBERFNBEENR(ERRER
IR S R 165 ) IR EFERR I AT
B BB EERNKE R SR
HE - EREEERLIAFEEEAER
RN ERERLAE  WETABUR

BR E2 17 5 R £ AR LL FH B 9 8 SRS A 5

=X
Koo

e

53 (=F)ﬂh§$ﬁ§ﬁl‘ﬁ"1 85



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)
Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)
Business combinations (Cont’d)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group'’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9 would
be accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Gooawill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Goodwill (Cont'd)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit)
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont'd)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or
a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or
loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain
or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

For property management service, as a practical expedient, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the entity has
a right to invoice, as the Group has a right to consideration from a
customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the
transfer of the associated goods or services in which the Group
adjusts for the promised amount of consideration for a significant
financing component, the Group applies a discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. The relevant
interest expenses during the period between the advance
payments were received and the transfer of the associated
goods and services are accounted for on the same basis as other
borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of rental premises that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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e IR M R

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. SGREMBHRRZAREERFTESS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING BR#)

POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 3.2
Leases (Cont'd)
The Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;
o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property
are presented within “investment properties”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

POLICIES (contd)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Leases (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont'd)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. FMEMBERZHERREERTES
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING BUR (#)
POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 3.2 FEGEERE)

Leases (Cont'd)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head
lease and the sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Leases (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessor (Cont'd)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

REMBRRZHERHREERTES
BUR (#)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 3.2 FEGEERE)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. For properties under development for which
revenue is recognised over time, the Group ceases to capitalise
borrowing costs as soon as the properties are ready for the
Group’s intended sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented
under “other income”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MBEEREHRERR FTESITH
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 3.2 FEEHBEE)
Share-based payments KRG T3¢
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions ARIE B AR D 2N 2 TR 5
Share options granted to employees KT ES ZERE
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others A B A E b FR AR PUARAS A - DARR R 45 & A

providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium.

Shares/Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods
or services received, except where that fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.
The fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont'd)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale, except for freehold land, which is always presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether
the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than freehold lands and properties
under construction as described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than freehold land and construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the
Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development comprises development expenditure including
professional charge directly attributable to the development and
borrowing costs, and these costs are capitalised as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under development.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. A leased
property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset is derecognised
if the Group as intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a
finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment other than goodwill
(Cont'd)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment other than goodwill
(Cont'd)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Properties under development/properties held for sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties held for
sale are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties under
development for sale/properties held for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to properties
held for sale upon completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Properties under development/properties held for sale (Cont'd)

The Group transfers a property from properties under
development/properties held for sale to investment property when
there is a change in use to hold the property to earn rentals or/
and for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other inventories

Other inventories comprising consumable stores for own
consumption which are recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories
are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

106 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

3. #E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

MHBRARERBRTESETEH

AC-))

3.2

TESFBEE)
BRITYE FEYEE)

ERAWENENEENEERIESS, R
BERENEE  MERBEXEBREPLE
- AEEEMENBRTYE FEYREE
BEREME -NERBHZYEARBER
HEREEEANETANEERERHER

Hittr &

B 77 & B EHAR SR EFEREF R
TYIRPAZRER, - T BE 14 AR ZS R AT 5 F B 7
EZRIEEER - FERATIANETF LS
E o BB HERTFENGBAEERAA G
TR RAETTIHE 2 (AT B ERA o #EFTHH
EMREREBEHEEREENRIERARA
S EEH HERAAERFRIERA -

o]

AR EEBER M MARREEECEER
HE) MASERAEABITZEL LA
HREE 2 SEIER AT M - AlemR
i o

BRARBEB L BANREPERTBITRE
BEMBREZ&EME - M TEEER
BREFEZRBRTREETEL o MEEAG
SAETEAREZReNEER - EREE
REZFHERBEZRENEEHEREZYE
BEX) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

e IR M R

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. AEHMEBRRGFREBRFTEETH

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING R

POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 3.2 FEGEERE)
Contingent liabilities HABE

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic
benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change
in probability occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont'd)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the other income line
item in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont'd)

(i)~ Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including accounts
receivable, deposits paid, other receivables, amounts due from
a joint venture, related companies and non-controlling interests,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances) and other items (lease
receivables and financial guarantee contracts) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for account receivables
without significant financing component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

112 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—F+-A=1+—HAItFE

MHBRARERBRTESETEH

AC-))

3.2

TESFBEE)
M TAGE)

EREEE)

B EEERE R AR BB &R E 9

FBETTRIET A EMIER (&)

HRAEEMTAME @ AEERI2EAR

BEEBESETBERRE  RIEEERR

B VIR TR LASRERSE 7t - AREEER A

BHEEER - LR L RERFERRNE

EEENKE - BB VRERAREERON
A REE sk R B LT o

() EERRRELFH

FHMEEERR B VIR ERARETEE
LA ARESHRERTARRS
E@%ié@mﬂAA%ﬂIﬂFm%

WEBEERONRER - EL G
ﬁ AEEEEREERAIFHAE
ENENER  SEARERNEAIUE
B A RS ) A TR R B R -

AEgm = HMAFERBREREE LT
KeZRATER

i ,tm

. ST A (B KAHEE
AR B STRARRE R

. F%ﬂl&zﬂ’]?\\*ﬁﬂ?‘iﬁahﬁ e
CPIMEBANEESE &
ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%?@%tﬂ ;



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group
considers changes in the risk of a default occurring on
the loan to which a loan commitment relates; for financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

(ii)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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e MR E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. AEHMEBRRGFREBRFTEETH
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Rg)

POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 3.2
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

For financial guarantee contracts, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of
the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects
to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

Lifetime ECL for certain accounts receivable are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when formulating

the grouping:

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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sE
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. MBEEREHRERR FTESITH

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 3.2 FEEHBEE)
Financial instruments (Cont'd) SETA(E)
Financial assets (Cont'd) TREE(E)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont'd)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
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Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group BRETISIERE KN - NEEE BT
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss R TANEEHEREBSERERE
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying Ui zsskEsis - HEFEURBRSRBR SN - EABME
amount, with the exception of accounts receivable where AR TEBEERERER - WIEAR
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss BEFTAEMEZEKSTENEFTA
allowance account. For investments in debt instruments BEME - BEBEENEME2E KSR

that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in OCl and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve without reducing the carrying amount
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of these debt instruments. Such amount represents the R EE) -
changes in the investment revaluation reserve in relation to
accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets ARIFTER TR EE

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including including accounts payables, other
payables, borrowings, debt component of convertible bonds and
senior notes and bond are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. FMEVEERFEREBRTIESK
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING R
POLICIES (conta)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 3.2 FEGEERE)
Financial instruments (Cont'd) SETAE)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d) SMEBRRAGE)

Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible loan notes is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included in
the carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable
to the financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont'd)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities (Cont'd)

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified,
the Group assess whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If qualitative
assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for
as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised
as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 percent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

When the contractual terms of a convertible instrument are
modified, such as extending the tenure, change in exercise
price of the underlying options, change in option date of
underlying options, the revised terms would result in a substantial
modification from the original terms, after taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors,
such modification is accounted for as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial liability
derecognised and the fair value of consideration paid or payable,
including any liabilities assumed and derivative components
recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—

A=t ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conta)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont'd)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities (Cont'd)

For the purposes of applying the 10 percent test on the
modification of a convertible instrument, the Group considers
that the terms are substantially different if the higher of (i) the fair
value of the share settlement at the date of modification; and (ii)
the discounted present value of the cash flows of the host contract
under the new terms, is at least 10 per cent different from the
sum of the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial liability and the fair value of the derivative
component under the original terms.

Senior notes and bond

Senior notes and bond issued by the Group that contains both
liability, early redemption option and interest rate adjustments
(which is closely related to the host contract) is not separated into
host contract and embedded derivative on initial recognition. At
the date of issue, the senior notes and bond are recognised at fair
value.

In subsequent periods, the liability components of the senior notes
and bond are carried at amortised cost using effective interest
method. The early redemption option of senior notes is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that related to the issue of the senior notes and
bond are included in the carrying amount of the senior notes and
bond and amortised over the period of the senior notes and bond
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are described
in note 3.2, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have determined that
certain of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2021
amounting to RMB20,557,386,000 (2020: RMB14,135,880,000)
situated in the Mainland China are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. The presumption that the carrying amounts of certain of the
Group’s investment properties situated in the Mainland China are
recovered entirely through sale has been rebutted and the deferred tax
on the changes in fair value of these investment properties is recognised
according to the relevant tax rules. For remaining investment properties
amounting to RMB8,632,968,000 (2020: RMB9,031,279,000), the
presumption that the carrying amounts of these investment properties
measured using fair value model were recovered entirely through sales
was not rebutted and no deferred tax on the changes in fair value of
these investment properties is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties with the aggregate carrying amount as at 31
December 2021 of RMB29,190,354,000 (2020: RMB23,167,159,000)
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by independent
qualified professional valuer. The fair value of the investment properties
was determined by reference to valuations conducted on these properties
by an independent firm of property valuer using property valuation
techniques which involve certain assumptions. Changes in assumptions
may result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties which are reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and affect the carrying amount of these properties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Information about valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of investment properties are
disclosed in note 14.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the income from property development, property
leasing and provision of comprehensive services, net of business tax and
other sales related taxes and after deduction of any discounts.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:
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WRkoBEER#E)

FAREH 2 RS DT

2021 2020
—EBo—F —E-EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Sales of properties YIS E 3,392,354 4,512,643
Revenue from hotel operation, property REBIEEE « WEEERSS &K EMRIEH
management service and other services W25 343,030 292,017
Revenue from contracts with customers RERFPEAKE 3,735,384 4,804,660
Rental income HeWA 642,633 620,167
4,378,017 5,424,827
Timing of revenue recognition from K BB A A s AR T
contracts with customers
At a point in time RER 2 FER 3,392,354 4,512,643
Over time & & BF I FERR 343,030 292,017

Sales of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties, the
relevant properties specified in the contracts are based on customers’
specifications with no alternative use. Taking into the consideration of
relevant terms, the legal environment and relevant legal precedent, the
Group concluded that the Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to transfer of relevant properties to customers. Revenue
from sales of residential properties and commercial buildings is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property is transferred
to customers, being at the point that customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment and
collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives an upfront payment, ranging from RMB10,000
to RMB500,000 (2020: RMB10,000 to RMB500,000) for different
properties from customers for the subscription of properties and such
amount will be treated as the deposits from customers after signing
the sale and purchase agreement. However, depending on the market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount compared to the
listed sale price, provided that the customers agree to pay the rest of the
consideration earlier.

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties, the
expected duration of satisfying the performance obligation of which
is within one year, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed as permitted under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers the advance payment contains no significant
financing component and accordingly no adjustments of the amount of
consideration would be made.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta)

Rental income

Revenue, include both fixed and variable rents, generated from leasing
of commercial properties, office premises, apartments and car parks, is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Revenue from hotel operation, property management service and other
services

Revenue from hotel operation and property management service is
recognised over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation, as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group'’s performance as the Group performs.

All hotel operation service is for periods less than one year. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
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contracts is not disclosed. WEZEREBITEHNNRZHIE -
For property management service, the Group elected to apply practical MYEERRBNE  A5EEEERERERR

expedient by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group has
right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

In identifying its operating segments, the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, generally follow the
Group'’s service lines, which represent the main products and services
provided by the Group. The Group has identified the following reportable
segments under HKFRS 8:

- Real estate development and sales: sales of properties

- Commercial property investment and operations: lease of
commercial properties, office premises, apartments and car parks

- Comprehensive services: hotel operation, property management
service and other service income

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of

these products and service lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE
5. W@EkosBEER @
DEW s R EE

ATAAEEZEERAI 2R BB D e fhm K%
DT

BE—FT——Ff+—H=+—HIFFEF

Commercial
Real estate property
development investment Comprehensive
and sales and operations services Total
EibERR R [GEX/ES
R#HE REEKE RERY st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TRT AR®TR

Revenue: W

From external customers REIMNPEFE 3,392,354 642,633 343,030 4,378,017
Inter-segment revenue kLl € - 23,469 112,836 136,305
Total segment revenue SRS EEE 3,392,354 666,102 455,866 4,514,322
Reportable segment profit 2R EER 1,498,882 581,983 107,535 2,188,400

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—ZT_FF+_A=1—HUFE

Commercial
Real estate property
development investment Comprehensive
and sales and operations services Total
5 Hh EE F 3% [SESZES
RIHE  HREHKE i E BRTS FOE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETE

Revenue: U2 :

From external customers KBEINBRF 4,512,643 620,167 292,017 5,424,827
Inter-segment revenue DB - 22,635 103,363 125,998
Total segment revenue PHEREEEE 4,512,643 642,802 395,380 5,550,825
Reportable segment profit 28BS BEF 2,025,264 565,977 74,464 2,665,705

Inter-segment sales are at mutually agreed terms.

126 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

3 JEE) 8 A% KR 5 E 2 BT T o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'a) 5. WakasBEER @)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss A2k BNE - BRZHE

FEETEFETELERREZEL 2 EROREREK
BRMEMAREMEN R A EBEE - ATARRES
TETESONAAREBEZS  HlA - EMiR
BmREE  RIELE MBS QRN KE  TE -
BRE PR - FE1E HIEEWNGIE S Y ENGIE ST
EBUREHRNBEERN MREVEIRZR
DEEED Eﬂifﬁimi&ﬁéﬁiﬁ“ D4R

The Group does not allocate fair value changes on investment properties,
fair value changes on derivative component of convertible bonds,
other income, other gains and losses, gain on deemed disposal of an
associate, depreciation, finance costs, share of results of a joint venture
and corporate expenses to individual reportable segment profit or loss
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment
by the chief operating decision makers while the investment properties

are allocated to the segment of “commercial property investment and

operations” for presenting segment assets.

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the reportable segment mEIn] 2 OB E BTN 2 2t BER AL ER
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in MizE3.2fTil 2 EEHBURMAR °
note 3.2.
2021 2020
—E_—-F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Revenue &
Reportable segment revenue ] 2| fBUES 4,514,322 5,550,825
Elimination of inter-segment revenue i fERUES (136,305) (125,998)
Consolidated revenue LAY 4,378,017 5,424,827
Profit EF|
Reportable segment profit ] LHOBEF 2,188,400 2,665,705
Recognition of change in fair value of EREERTEENE HSENEEREME
properties under development for sale/ ZARnBEZHER
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties 2,787,454 606,333
Fair value changes on investment properties & &EMEH AL BEZS) (220,021) (845,655)
Other income HAaplg A 98,391 148,901
Other gains and losses H b as N EsE (48,111) (111,454)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate BIEHE — B L A RHUES - 3,893,561
Depreciation ne (73,438) (66,915)
Finance costs BEE R (1,710,896) (1,533,101)
Share of results of a joint venture EE—HEERARIEE 2 )
Fair value changes on derivative component AR EHHTA T A DM A L EEEZSH)
of convertible bonds 83,674 93,506
Corporate expenses RNEIRY (655,665) (534,797)
Consolidated profit before tax FARI4R A BT 2,449,786 4,316,082
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (contd)
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by reportable and
operating segment, no liabilities are presented as the information is
not reportable to the chief operating decision makers in the resource
allocation and assessment of performance:
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE
WaEEkoBEER )
PEEEREE
NTAEAEERAZHREEDHESNEED

i ARBARERDERKXBN M EZEER
REZMEE  ARTE2IZSEN

Segment assets DEEE
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Assets BE
Real estate development and sales B R 3 N ST 43,209,976 37,433,525
Commercial property investment [BEZEI e -4
and operations 29,212,394 23,259,775
Comprehensive services RE RS 314,205 325,788
Reportable segment assets AIERNEEE 72,736,575 61,019,088
Goodwill (S 231,602 231,602
Equity instruments at fair value through BEAAEBEFAEMEERSEZBATA
other comprehensive income 450,423 501,261
Bank balances and cash (including IRTTEE AR NI S (BB R ISR TIF50)
restricted bank deposits) 7,287,068 9,409,650
Deferred tax assets R TEE E 551,812 537,869
Interest in a joint venture and amount due ~ FRA—fA& & A Al R M EK —FE & AR
from a joint venture =IE 528,372 528,374
Corporate assets NREE 3,156,201 2,039,154
Consolidated total assets REEEE 84,942,053 74,266,998

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than goodwill, equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, bank balances and cash (including
restricted bank deposits), deferred tax assets, interest in a joint venture
and amount due from a joint venture, and corporate assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta) KRk EER @
Geographical information ih & &

The Group’s operations are located on the Mainland China, Hong Kong,
the United States of America (“USA”) and the Kingdom of Cambodia
(“Cambodia”). Revenue from external customers are mainly generated
from the Mainland China for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

AEBNEBUNTEAM - 58 X584 RE
(TEEDERBEEB(RBE]) - BE-T— —
FR-ZZZFFFT_A=+—HIEEFE - KA
BPHUETERETEAN - AEENEREDE
EEMZEEMNMIEUEZT -

2021 2020

—B-—F —TTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Mainland China P E A 21,291,253 14,895,956
Hong Kong S 8,407,011 8,823,452
USA ES5] 175,216 189,304
Cambodia RIFE 701,874 718,402
30,575,354 24,627,114

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, restricted bank deposits, equity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred
tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

Kret - JERBEETRIENE - ZRBIBITHER  HAAE
Bt AE 2w 2 A T ARIRERIREE
TEEFER

NGB 4 (75 55 5 40 9 5 AR 10% 2 B S IR A
o

Year end
BEUTEE
2021 2020
—E——5F ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Tx ARETTT
Customer A BEA N/A* T 38 A * 960,258

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group in respective year.

No other major customers contributed over 10% of the total sales of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. EHMA
2021 2020
—E-— —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT
Interest income FLEWA 69,217 113,884
Dividend income A% BT A 22,800 22,800
Government grants (Note) RSB (ATAE) 6,374 12,217
98,391 148,901

Note: It mainly represented cash received from unconditional grants by the local
government to encourage the business operations in the Mainland China.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

7. HttWz=EKERE

13.75% (2020: 1.61% to 13.75%) per annum.

SPLIN ) )
.,.L.im.w-':i_l.,j

1.61%%13.75% ) B AL °

=

2021 2020
—E=—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Impairment loss recognised for FEUR R SR (B S 1B SR F RE
accounts receivable, net (68,873) (40,617)
Foreign exchange gain, net Rt 6,396 71,976
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BE K EE BB
equipment (8) 9)
Loss on non-substantial modification of RARARESZIEEANEE FIE(A7E31)
domestic corporate bond (note 31) - (1,810)
Loss on substantial modification of Al ES 2 EANEE BB (A7£30)
convertible bonds (note 30) - (20,105)
Loss on non-substantial modification of BN 2 IEE RS FEIR(H:#31)
senior notes (note 31) - (129,571)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHTB A R ke 3,569 =
Others HAh 10,805 8,682
(48,111) (111,454)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBEMA
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREETTT
Interest on: FE
Bank and other borrowings SRITR HAfEE 1,498,182 1,263,397
Convertible bonds AR ES 193,594 285,303
Senior notes and bond BARERES 481,490 519,199
Lease liabilities HEARK 11,281 10,544
Less: Amount capitalised in investment B BREEREMERERTFEYESE
properties under development and N ozl
properties under development for sale* (473,651) (5645,342)
1,710,896 1,533,101
* The finance costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 1.30% to * MERATIEFEER130%213.75% (ZE-F4F ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. KRBAIZEF
2021 2020
—E=—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Profit before tax is arrived at after BB AT & A T AR (FEAD |
charging (crediting):
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as HERBHAZMFEWEMA
expense 1,893,472 2,487,379
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BB RBETE 73,873 67,137
Less: Amount capitalised in investment B BERERRENERBRRIEE
properties under development and MEERN L&
properties under development for sale (435) (222)
73,438 66,915
Gross rental income from investment properties & EYEFSHSURALEEE 642,633 620,167
Outgoings in respect of investment BERFAELERSWAZIREY S
properties that generated rental income MBI
during the year (60,650) (54,190)
581,983 565,977
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI E R RN 2,025 2,276
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN & 2,558 3,026
Staff costs BTRA
— Directors’ emoluments (note 11) —EEHM (A1) 10,466 11,099
— Salaries and other benefits in kind —¥He REMEYT = 391,886 401,660
— Amount recognised as expense for —BREBRNEFKAEZ NS
retirement benefit costs 35,004 7,727
Less: Amount capitalised in investment B BRERRENERBRTE
properties under development and MEERN NS
properties under development for sale (113,538) (84,826)
323,818 335,660
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTBHiBAX
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bfat ARBTR ARETTT
Current tax BUHAR IR
Mainland China Enterprise FRA S ERER ([ REMEE])
Income Tax (“EIT")
— Current year —REFEE (a) 175,401 266,957
— Under (over) provision in prior year —BEFEEET T (RERE) 58 (11,567)
175,459 255,390
Mainland China LAT AP B A tth B (E
— Current year —RFE (b) 200,309 385,992
— Underprovision in prior year —BRFERETE - 1,419
200,309 387,411
Deferred taxation (note 18) IRIERIE (f7F18)
— Current year —RFE 739,101 222,561
— Overprovision in prior year — B FE AR - (355)
739,101 222,206

Total income tax expense FTiSwimZ 1,114,869 865,007

Notes: HiaE -

(@) Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (a) WBEPEAREIMNBECEMBFETEEMEH
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate EDREEMRBVEERGDN B —TENF—A
of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. — B - BRI A RRH R 525% ©

(b)  Under the Provisional Rules on LAT Implementation Rules of the Mainland (b)) BER-—AAAE—BA-+tBHEENTEALT
China implemented on 27 January 1995, all gains from the sales or transfer HISERETIEOIE AR - Fra A E s EEn
of land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the Mainland SRR ok I e N SV E [ AT S
China are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on s - ASMN IR ER - BRUR T IS E R
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less (Eﬂﬁﬁmiﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁiﬂj B (E
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property RERRA S FT B B RBIS ) A R ARG E - A30%
development expenditures. B60%TF °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd) 10. B8

G B A R (8 6 10 M S SR IR TS AT HE ik
B RBEFRBERZE AKEN—MWBATE =

No Cambodia Corporate Income Tax has been provided for both
years. Pursuant to the Cambodia tax laws, a subsidiary of the Group is

entitled to preferential tax treatment with full exemption from Cambodia T-NEFMNA—HEE_T-__F=A=+—HlIt
Corporate Income Tax for three years from 1 April 2019 to 31 March —ATFEZARSERAE  E2EBRRIBED
2022. FEREH -

H A 7 S (B 77 7 8] 4F 2 3 B A AR ik S B AR B R A
B I EE B RIS TRRSE -

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for as the Group had no
estimated assessable profits for both years.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit

R E S BRI AR & Bk R B AT & A3

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: RN -
2021 2020
—ECo—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Profit before tax R AT AT 2,449,786 4,316,082
Tax at the Mainland China EIT at 25% 1£25%F BA M EMBHRE(ZE=F
(2020: 25%) &F : 25%) 612,447 1,079,021
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAH A OB E
for tax purposes 310,237 382,221
Tax effect of income not taxable BERRBRANT B E
for tax purposes (29,992) (1,017,272)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEIEN TS E 70,270 135,780
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B RIARER 2 FHIBEE
recognised (448) (3,042)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERZ IR E R E R RS2
differences not recognised 274 274
Mainland China LAT charge R B At B (E AR S 200,309 387,411
Tax effect of Mainland China LAT charge AR B Pttt IS AT S 2 TR IS 2 (50,077) (96,853)
Under (over) provision in prior year BEFERETT(BEEE) 58 (11,567)
Others Eith 1,791 9,034
Income tax expense for the year AEZMEHAY 1,114,869 865,007

Annual Report 2021

134 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
gkl ol ety e e ISR

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 1. EEREEME
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2020: 9) ENSEFI0E(ZE_ZTF : 98 )EEFH
directors are as follows: HFEAT

Equity-  Contributions

Salaries settled  to retirement
and  share-hased henefit
Fees allowance payments scheme Total
LRERE
BARAR A5 R BRIRER
we  HERER HE S @st
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

ftst ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®TT ARWTT

2021 —g-_&

Executive directors HOTES

Ms. Huang Jingshu BT R - 2,731 - 122 2,853

Mr. Tang Shouchun EEERE (a) - 2,156 - 108 2,264

Mr. Ye Xingan LAt - 1,962 - 62 2,024

Mr. Huang Hao Yuan BEREE - 1,545 - 62 1,607

Mr. Siu Chi Hung Wl (b) = 995 - 50 1,045

- 9,389 - 404 9,793

Non-executive director *HITES

Ms. Li Lihong BT (c) = - - - -

Mr. Chen Wei Sheng BRIEELEE (d) = = = = -

2021 —e-_x

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Wang Jing TG E 216 - - - 216

Ms. Hu Gin Ing i en 241 - - - 241

Mr. Mo Fan BRELE 216 - - - 216
673 - - - 673
673 9,389 - 404 10,466
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont'a)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

1. EEREEME )

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a9 EEM2(E)
Equity-  Contributions
Salaries settled  to retirement
and  share-based benefit
Fees allowance payments scheme Total
VAR AS E
AR 58 RIKER
we  HekEi HIE HEGEN Bt
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
K AREFIT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
2020 —T-TE
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Huang Jingshu =EWEF L = 2,789 = 121 2,910
Mr. Tang Shouchun ESELE (a) - 2,314 - 116 2,430
Mr. Ye Xingan BT EE = 2,049 = 20 2,069
Mr. Huang Hao Yuan =ERLE = 1,211 = 19 1,230
Mr. Siu Chi Hung R (b) = 1,645 = 82 1,727
- 10,008 - 358 10,366
Non-executive director ERTES
Ms. Li Lihong TEA L (c) - - - - -
2020 —TCTH
Independent non-executive BUERTES
directors
Mr. Wang Jing T E 231 - - = 231
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [ 258 = = = 258
Mr. Mo Fan BENRE 244 = = = 244
733 - - - 733
733 10,008 - 358 11,099
Notes: (a)  Appointed and acted as the Chief Executive Officer of the Mt (@)  EEREAEBARRITRAES -

Company.

(b) Appointed and acted as the Executive Director of the
Company since 20 September 2019 and resigned on 20

September 2021.

(c) Acted as Non-executive Director of the Company since 29
March 2018 and resigned on 20 September 2021.

(d) Appointed and acted as the Non-executive Director of the

Company on 20 September 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—

A=t ALEE

e MR E

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (conta) EEREEMES 2
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) EEM2E)
Except Ms. Li Lihong and Mr. Chen Wei Sheng (2020: Ms. Li  E—E - —FR-_T-_TF+_A=+—H
Lihong) who agreed not to receive remuneration during their IEFE  REBA R EKMREELE(ZF
service period as the non-executive director, no other directors TF  FRAT)AERESER BT
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 BYERIENITES 2 Be/N - BEEMESRK
December 2021 and 2020. The executive directors’ emoluments BRI BEREEAME o ERATIIFHITESH
shown above were for their services in connection with the e AHEREBRAR A RAEBBBIRER
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The TEHIRE - ERATSIFEMITESR KB FEHTT
non-executive director’s and independent non-executive directors’ EENNE D AFREEEARRARESAREZ
emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of RS &) RN ©
the Company.
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no HE-_T-—FRK-_T-FTF+-A=+—H
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as an IEFE - AEEREREESZFERFEH - XA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation ERIAREB S INARNER % KRB IEA
for loss of office. BiE(E -
(b)  Employees’ emoluments (h) EEMS
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year RERN - ARBRUSTMESEY B
included four directors (2020: five directors). Details of the NEES(ZZ-TF : AfK) ° Eﬁé:iﬁi—
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the F+-—A=1+—HLEFEH TN —RBLIHERR
remaining one highest paid employee who is neither a director nor EEMIEFBITRABZ&RaH MHEAZ#FWH
chief executive of the Company are as follows: BT
2021 2020
—B-—F TECRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
Salaries and allowance =i N1 2,660 =
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme B {REFFHEI 3k 133 =
2,793 -
The number of the highest paid employee who is not the directors NFETIHNeBEZWIERNRAREEZRE
of the Company whose remuneration fell within the followings BifE & AT
bands is as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”) 3,000,001 to 3,000,008 (BTN E
HK$3,500,000 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -

;i

#E(FEBERETRAE

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

12. DIVIDENDS 12. K&
2021 2020
—E=—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Dividends recognised as distribution FABREDIR RS
during the year:
2019 Final dividend- HK6.1 cents (equivalent —Z— 1 RHFRE — 6.1l
to approximately RMB5.46 cents) (HERHARKS.465) - 282,672
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of any AR EETEEMBE_Z —E-THE
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. +=A=+—HLEFEREEMBESE -
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable ARERRELHERERNRBEERF HERATE
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: Bt
2021 2020
—B-—F TR RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Earnings ZF
Earnings for the purposes of basic ARGTESREARZFINZF
earnings per share 1,152,576 3,453,380
Effect of dilutive potential earnings in BEEERTEUATSENTE
respect of
— Convertible bonds —RRES 3,543 (58,376)
Earnings for the purposes of diluted ARG ESRES TN ER
earnings per share 1,156,119 3,395,004
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

13.

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (contd)

e MR E

13. BRER )

2021
—E-—F

2020
—E-TF

Number of shares REE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FiAsHE S MERZ A D

EEEEIT

of the Company for the purpose of basic T8

earnings per share 5,097,557,126 5,076,112,582
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in &/t & Z @R A N RIBMNFE

respect of

— Share options —BEASHE 13,429,053 64,451,495

— Convertible bonds — AR ES 133,685,286 264,778,879

— Convertible preference shares — AR RE SR 3,404,575,241 3,419,952,290
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Fi AR+ £ IS & R 49 7K A &) 2 @ A hn e

of the Company for the purpose of diluted T8

earnings per share 8,649,246,706 8,825,295,246

The computation of diluted earnings per share for both the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 does not assume the conversion of certain
outstanding convertible bonds of the Group as the conversion would
result in an increase in earnings per share.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various offices, residential properties and retail
stores under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to twenty years (2020: one to
sixteen years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain any
residual value guarantees or any lessee’s option to purchase the
property.

;i

14.

HERE-T-—FR-F-FF+-A=t—~
EMEEEHSRETRNE - LRRRARES
THAT RN TRRESELR - RR AL AEE
B IRAFIE -

BREY=

REBBBEEHEHEZHAPAE E%W%&
TERH HeREAXN FHREE—RILR
H—="+F(ZTTF: —ETAF) E&H

AB T HE A BHEER 26 R 2 KRR -

BMRFAEMEEASEERES BN E BHE
BHASEHMERBESRHMARINER R - HES
DU TBEEARBEERERIAEATEBERH
W)SEH (AR 8R HEAE -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total cash outflow for
leases classified as investment properties is RMB26,565,000 (2020:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE
14. REWZE )

BE-Z- "+ _A=+—HLFE 2BREK
EW%ZTEEZfﬁﬁumﬂj#@%EEAEM%,%&OOO

RMB26,225,000). T(ZTZZF : AK¥26,225,0007T) °
Investment
Completed properties under
investment development
properties at fair value Total
BRAREBEAERZ
ERREWE BRPREWE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARBTIT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZTE-_TF—H—H 23,567,529 - 23,567,529
Additions nNE 19,445 79,856 99,301
Acquired on an acquisition of RULEE — R B A FIEEA
a subsidiary (note 35) (K1:£35) 16,200 = 16,200
Transfer from properties held EEHATEYE
for sale 355,462 - 355,462
Transfer from properties under EEARRPEEYE
development for sale - 563,711 563,711
Transfer upon completion R TERK R B 50,947 (50,947) =
Decrease in fair value recognised in A 1878 WEEE AREERD
profit or loss, unrealised RE (694,100) (151,555) (845,655)
Exchange adjustments ER%’H% (589,389) - (589,389)
At 31 December 2020 and EA4$47¢+ A=+—8kK
1 January 2021 —ZTZ-—%—H—H 22,726,094 441,065 23,167,159
Additions INE 70,982 228,590 299,572
Transfer from properties under ERAERPEEME
development for sale - 4,060,400 4,060,400
Transfer from properties ERAGEME
held for sale 2,185,324 - 2,185,324
(Decrease) increase in fair value REBRANBERZAAEECRS)
recognised in profit or loss, N REER
unrealised (234,342) 14,321 (220,021)
Disposals HE (53,457) - (53,457)
Exchange adjustments B 5, 8= (248,623) - (248,623)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—F+=—A=+—H 24,445,978 4,744,376 29,190,354

All the completed investment properties are rented out under operating
leases or are held for capital appreciation purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties with aggregate
carrying value of RMB29,190,354,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB23,167,159,000) were arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on those dates by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, which is a firm of independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has recognised
right of-use-assets under completed investment properties amounted to
RMB77,386,000, with a corresponding lease liabilities RMB77,386,000,
at the date of the inception of the leases. As 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount of investment properties that were leased out under
subleases amounted to RMB308,580,000 (2020: RMB178,200,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, income from subleasing
these properties amounted to RMB39,986,000 (2020: RMB33,670,000)
and a fair value gain of these properties amounted to RMB52,994,000
(2020: a fair value loss amounted to RMB38,400,000) was recognised in
profit of loss.

For completed investment properties, the valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach and direct comparison approach.
For income capitalisation approach, the market rentals of all lettable
units of the properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference
to the yield rates observed by the valuer for the similar properties in the
locality and adjusted based on the valuer's knowledge of the factors
specific to the respective properties. Direct comparison approach is
arrived at by reference to comparable market transactions and suppose
that evidence of relevant transactions in the market place can be
extrapolated to similar properties, subject to allowance for variable
factors.

| 1.\

e 3 Ll

14.

e MR E

BEWHE )

R-ZE-_—%+-_A=+—Q”" $%@%§ﬁ%@1§
B ARM29,190,354,000( ZZE=FF : AR
23 167,159,0007C) 2 B E M 2 R ft BETIREF

BT SR A A R A AINa% A AT 1T i
fEL’f'ﬁ( ZABREARKE N B BT EER
HEGERTT ©

BE-_T-_—F+_-_A=+—HILEE K&£H
ERREEZKBEMEETHNEREEEAR
77,386,0007C - MR ERKBH - HEREEE
B ARK77,38,000 A_E-_—F+=-A=
+—8 - *Eﬁ*“%ﬂ%ﬂu”jﬁ’]&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%}\?ﬁ%
308,580,000t ( =& = T 4 : A KR #178,200,000
) c BEZT_—F+A=+—HIEFE - J!EE
PHZEWEN KB AR39,986,000T( ==
T4+ ARE33,670,0005T) ‘%i%%ﬁ’]’&fc{ﬁ
Bz A ARES2 994000 (ZE=-ZF : RAE
B8 AR #38,400,0007T) © ZS AL EBEKZER
%,E\ﬁnq:'ﬁ&wu °

HRETKREMEME - ZEEDRAKAERET
RN BELEBIEETT - MRABE AR EEM =
MENRBERLREMNTERSI2RAHHAE
IARMAELDENEGEEEUESHNHEDE
1Ta1E - A Z B AR R T2 RE AR E D
Was R R GEMA NS WENTEETHE
EELBZRSZAENBRTISERS  UREAR
B 5 AR R R 5 F P SR O SR ¢t HEET - 1R
EEETHAEREE -
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T -
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

For investment properties under development that are measured at fair
value, the valuations have been arrived at residual approach and direct
comparison approach assuming that the investment properties will
be completed in accordance with the development proposals and the
relevant approvals for the proposals have been obtained. The key inputs
in the residual approach include the market value of the completed
investment properties, which are estimated with reference to sales
evidence of similar properties in the nearest locality, with adjustments
made to account for differences in locations and other factors specific
to the respective properties based on the valuer's judgement. Costs of
development are also taken into account including construction costs,
finance costs and professional fees, as well as developer’s profit margin
which reflects the remaining risks associated with the development of the
properties at the valuation date and the return that the developer would
require for bringing them to completion status, which is determined by
the valuer based on its analyses of recent land transactions and market
value of similar completed properties in the respective locations. Direct
comparison approach is arrived at by reference to comparable market
transactions and suppose that evidence of relevant transactions in
the market place can be extrapolated to similar properties, subject to
allowance for variable factors.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and
best use of the investment properties is their current use. The fair values
of certain investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid
or accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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14. REWMHE =)

REAABEMEZERRTRENEMS @ HED
HERBEENRAERLBEABRRZSREWESRE
ERAERCEENEBERENAETT - BEZE
NIEHABBREEETKRENENTE 12
RTINS BB - R R E
A B BT BT A0 S R S ER B 2= B A R X 80 Bt D
R EETHE - ZHECHERERNERAZE
BARERAA - BAKARFEZXE M KRR
BER(NEERRBRYEREBENFIRERFEEEE
WEEBSERARMTORE) - BRARTIIRERE
EETEA I TR S MR REBALE TR IEH
SEENSTMEE - ERLEEAZ2EAELR
MmHER 5 YREAREBEN ZANBEER S EAEE
DAL LT - HAEEEPATEREE -

HEHEEMEN R ABER  KEWEZ AR A®E
RESMEERL - ETREVENAABEDH
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The major inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Group's
major investment properties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set

out below:

Investment properties held by
the Group in the consolidated
statement of financial position

RizaBBHRREA
RAEEIBEHRENE

Fairvalue  Valuation technique and
hierarchy  key inputs

AREE HEREREIZBAR
R B

e MR E

14. BEWME @)

BBV T

Significant unobservable inputs

TEFABREGARE

RZZBEZ—FR=-F
EXrEREMEZR

“EFEFZHA=+—H &K
RBEFEMRZIEH AR

Relationship of

unobservahle

inputs to fair value Sensitivity
FABEEA
HEEAREE

BB

BRE

Completed investment
properties
ERRBRENE

Completed investment
properties located in the
Mainland China with an
aggregate carrying amount
of RMB13,833,520,000
(31.12.2020:
RMB13,516,086,000)

IR ENAE TR &

n%  FEBERARE
13,833,520,0007C( =2 =
BELZA=—A: A
R#513,516,086,0007T)

Level 3 Income Capitalisation
Approach
The key inputs are:
(1) Capitalisation
rate; and (2)
Monthly market
rent.

E=R WABARHE R
TRBABENT

MEMEEE : &
@5 AM

Capitalisation rate, taking into account

the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property,
and prevailing market condition,
of a range from 1.5% to0 6.0%
(31.12.2020: 1.5% t0 6.0%).

BRENTR  EAMELLEALE%
26.0% (T -TFF+-A=+—
H:15%%6.0%) °

Monthly market rent, taking into

account the completion time,
location, and individual factors,
such as frontage and size, between
the comparables and the property,
at an average of a range from RMB7
to RMB511 (31.12.2020: from
RMB11 to RMB707) per square
metre (“sqm”) per month on gross
floor area basis.

The higher the A slight increase in

capitalisation the capitalisation
rate, the lower rate used
the fair value. would result

=

=
AR

in a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice
versa.

GHRAKCASUAES - WEYE ARHEE  FRESEE)

RREE EIRASERA

7 BEAIERE
18 RZIA -

The higher the A significant
monthly market increase in the
rent, the higher monthly market
the fair value. rent used

would result

in a significant
increase in fair
value, and vice
versa.

s ARG RATELEEEYE THARMS - AATHAEANRE
EESR  ENEEHRLA

- '-.;m'ﬁu"_l.

2T - B R AR
HNSFERE | NEHERAZ
ESASTHK(EK) TN
FARMTTEARBSILL(—F
“EFT-A=1—H : ARELL
TLEARKTOTTL) °

Ak

RE

EEAEEN -
R2I6A -

(PR ERAARAT

e
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14.

Investment properties held by

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—_BE-—F+-A=1+—HItFE

14. REWYHXE =)

Relationship of

the Group in the consolidated ~ Fair value  Valuation technique and unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy  key inputs Significant unohservable inputs inputs to fair value Sensitivity
FABREBEA

REEHBRRERR DREE AERTRIZEGAR HEEAAEE

MAKERENRENE £ 7® TEFABEGARE [ BRE

Completed investment Level 3 Direct Comparison Selling prices per sqm based on The higher the A significant
properties located in the Approach market observable transactions selling prices increase in the
Mainland China with an The key input is: of similar properties, of a range per sqm, the selling prices
aggregate carrying amount Selling price per from RMB74,000 to RMB85,013 higher the fair per sgm used
of RMB1,991,040,000 sgqm; (31.12.2020: from RMB102,602 value. would result
(31.12.2020: to RMB119,815) per sqm on gross in a significant
RMB197,460,000) floor area basis. increase in fair

value, and vice
versa.

URFEAMNETKIRE F=R BELEE BRBEUDENTTEETSRIEET SFHKHEEE BSTHAHEER
MW RESEARARE NEBTHREHERER  UEEERE  BEs - 28 AN
1,991,040,00070(=Z = FEBABBENT : REEGTHANT ARKET4000  EEHS - NRBEEAEE
TEFZA=+—H: A FHRHEER : TEARKESS0I3L(ZE_ZF e RZIA -
R#197,460,0007T) +=ZA=+—H: AR¥102,602

TEARK119,8157T) °

Completed investment Level 3 Income Capitalisation Capitalisation rate, taking into account ~ The higher the A slight increase in
properties located in Approach the capitalisation of rental income capitalisation the capitalisation
Hong Kong with an The key inputs are: potential, nature of the property, rate, the lower rate used
aggregate carrying amount (1) Capitalisation and prevailing market condition, of the fair value. would result
of RMB7,920,091,000 rate; and (2) 2.5% (31.12.2020: 2.5%). in a significant
(31.12.2020: Monthly market decrease in fair
RMB8,294,810,000) rent. value, and vice

versa.

MR BENETHIZED E WABARFHEE A RERNMEBRIMAESD - MEE B RH PR B AL/
¥ FHEERARE BEREMMA  E™MEEERR25% & AREE BRABEHAD
7,920,091,00070( = F = TZEHABENT (ZZ=ZF+=-A=+—8: FE R EEKRERE
TFE+-_A=1+—H: A (DERNMEEE & 25%) ° 1% RZIA e
[ #8,294,810,0007T) iz AN -

Monthly market rent, taking into The higher the A significant

account the completion time,
location, and individual factors, such
as frontage and size, between the
comparables and the property, at an
average of a range from RMB280
to RMB310 (31.12.2020: RMB310
to RMB350) per sgm per month on
gross floor area basis.

5 AT RATE LB By %
BB TERE - L2 REERN
PEERERZ  DEEARAE
EFREFHREEINTARKE
280LEAREII0TL(ZE-_ZF
+ZRA=+—A8 : AR¥310tE
ARHE3507T) °

144 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

monthly market
rent, the higher
the fair value.

5 AR
AR BEMS

increase in the
monthly market
rent used
would result
in a significant
increase in fair
value, and vice
versa.
FrAT™I5 A AR
BINSERAR
EEARIEM -
RZINR



For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Investment properties held by

A=t ALEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

14. REWXE =)

Relationship of

the Group in the consolidated  Fairvalue  Valuation technique and unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy  key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value Sensitivity
FABREHA
REEHBERRRA AREE AERWRIZEGAHY HEEAAREE
HAKERENRENE S8 B TETTEZBARE ZB% HRBE
Completed investment Level 3 Income Capitalisation Capitalisation rate, taking into account  The higher the A slight increase in
properties located in Approach the capitalisation of rental income capitalisation the capitalisation
Cambodia with an The key inputs are: potential, nature of the property, rate, the lower rate used
aggregate carrying amount (1) Capitalisation and prevailing market condition, the fair value. would result
of RMB701,327,000 rate; and (2) of a range from 8.5% t0 9.5% in a significant
(31.12.2020: Monthly market (31.12.2020: 8.5% 10 9.5%). decrease in fair
RMB717,738,000) rent. value, and vice
versa.
MNRRIBEADTKEEY  F=R WAB ARG EE T RENMEASBAE S - WHEE B R FTAE AL LE 3/
¥ REREARAREK BERERTR - §$mm$%u? & AAEE ERAFEEA
701,327,000t (= =% FEHASENT ¢ 85%%£95%(ZTTF+=-A= R REEXER
F+ZA=1T—H0: AR (MBEMELER : & +—H : 85%%£9.5%) ° 18 RZINA
#717,738,0007T) (2)mizAM -
Monthly market rent, taking into The higher the A significant

,lk'Ail‘L'"

ly

account the completion time,

location, and individual factors, such

as frontage and size, between the
comparables and the property, at
an average of a range from RMB97
to RMB110 (31.12.2020: RMB103
to RMB135) per sqm per month on
gross floor area basis.

T35 A RSt RATE LB S B 5
2% TR - (LB RGN
RESEERR  DEEREAE
ﬁiﬂi?ﬁ*?ﬁu?AE%W
TEAREIOT(ZZZZF =
A=+—H: ARBI03TZEAR
#1357T) -

m-

monthly market

rent, the higher
the fair value.

increase in the
monthly market
rent used
would result

in a significant
increase in fair
value, and vice
versa.

TEARME - FRATEARAE
DABESS.  EIBERAR
EEAELN -

R2I6A o
45 (FE)RERRARDT
e
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conta) 14. BEWE @)
Investment properties held by Relationship of
the Group in the consolidated ~ Fair value  Valuation technique and unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy  key inputs Significant unohservable inputs inputs to fair value Sensitivity
FABREBEA
REEHBRRERR DREE AERTRIZEGAR HEEAAEE
MAKERENRENE £ B TETTEHZAARE [ BRE

Investment properties under
development that are
measured at fair value as at
31 December 2021

R-B--F+=ZA=+-—

ARAABEFEZERRE
HIREYE
Investment properties under  Level 3 Direct Comparison Selling prices per sqm based on The higher the A significant
development located in the Approach market observable transactions selling prices increase in the
Mainland China with an The key input is: of similar properties, of a range per sqm, the selling prices
aggregate carrying amount Selling price per from RMB2,701 to RMB3,518 higher the fair per sgm used
of RMB353,000,000 sqm; (31.12.2020: RMB2,701 to value. would result
(31.12.2020: RMB3,518) per sqm on gross floor in a significant
RMB217,165,000) area basis. increase in fair
value, and vice
versa.
AREAMNEEREE  F=8 HERELEE RERUMENTTBRMERSEE STHREEE ST KHEEER
M REAERARE NEFRREEER  UBEEE KBS AR AR INEEE
353,000,000 (=2 =2 FEHAEBENT : REEGEHANTARE2,701 EEH - DR EBEAELE
FHZA=1+—H: AR GYRKHEEES TEARKE3 SIS (ZE_ZF + m- RZIA o
#&217,165,0007T) ZR=+—H: ARK270ltE

AREES518TT) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

14.

Investment properties held by

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

14. REWXE =)

Relationship of

the Group in the consolidated  Fairvalue  Valuation technique and unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy  key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value Sensitivity
FARZEA
REEHMBRRERA AREE AERWRIZEGAY HEEQ REE
HASERENRENE =8 B TETTHZBARE ZB% HRE
Investment properties under  Level 3 Residual Approach ~ Gross development value on The higher A significant
development located in the The key inputs completion basis, taking into the gross increase in gross
Mainland China with an were: (1) Gross account the completion time, development development
aggregate carrying amount development location, and individual factors, value, the value used
of RMB330,976,000 value; and (2) such as frontage and size, between higher the fair would result
(31.12.2020: Developer’s profit the comparable and the property, value. in a significant
RMB223,900,000) margin. of RMB773,316,000 (2020: increase in fair
RMB561,970,000). value, and vice
versa.
URPEAHERTRE £=8 BB HEKEENEZARBEESHR LHREEEY FTARARZEEER
mE REREAARE AENBMERZNER BET & QEE G E A
330,976,000 ( ZE == FERABENT HE - B RGN ARESS e REEAER
F+ZA=+—H: AR MERBEE: & ERZAARK773,316,0007T(= e K2R -
#223,900,0007T) T-TH: AR¥561,970,0007T) ©
(2R FIEE -
Developer’s profit margin, taking The higher the A significant
into account the comparable land developer's increase in
transactions and progress of the profit margin, developer's
property, of a range from 12% to the lower the profit margin
15% (2020: 15%). fair value. used would
resultina
significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice
versa.
KA MR B LR TR 5 Mg MERmAERE FAREEANEX
B REEMEXRANTFI2%E = RREE AIEE B E
15%(ZZ2FF : 15%) ° HUYE - DI EEKER
Do RZTR o

R '_;i‘h”

1.-”

Ll

45 (FE)RERRARDT
e
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Investment properties held by

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—_BE-—F+-A=1+—HItFE

14. REWYHXE =)

Relationship of

the Group in the consolidated  Fair value  Valuation technique and unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy  key inputs Significant unohservable inputs inputs to fair value Sensitivity
FABEEA
REEHBRRERA DAEE HERTREZAAH HEEA AER
MAKERENRENSE e 7% TEFABRGARE ZB% HRE
Investment properties under  Level 3 Direct Comparison Selling prices per sqm based on The higher the A significant
development located in the Approach market observable transactions of selling prices increase in the
Mainland China with an The key inputs were: similar properties, of a range from per sqm, the selling prices
aggregate carrying amount (1) Selling price RMB33,007 to RMB38,348 per higher the fair per sgm used
of RMB4,060,400,000 per sgqm; and (2) sgm on gross floor area basis. value. would result
(31.12.2020: nil) The risk discount in a significant
factor increase in fair
value, and vice
versa.
URHERNERTRE £=& BREEEE BREEUDENTEETSRIET SFTHKHEEE BTHARHEEER
mE - REAEAARE FEE AZIED MEBTHREEER  UEEERE  BHEs 2R AL MATEH
4,060,400,0007T. (= F = T (LEFH BEEFGE RN T ARKE33007 EEER - DREBEAEE
TE+_A=1+—H: &) KIFEER &k TEARE3SR 38T - M RZIA -

QREBRR
=

There were no transfers in or out of Level 3 during both years.
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The risk discount factor, taking into

account the signing completion rate
of relocation agreement with original

residents and the expected time to
complete the housing demolition,
relocation and settlement.

The higher the risk A significant

discount factor, increase in

the lower the risk discount

fair value. factor used
would result
in a significant
decrease in fair
value, and vice

FRMRARCG RERERETR RRURAZE ERBEEZAR

BiE TR ERTEREERE -
WEREE 2 FEHKAE -

versa.

® - RREE YIS O

AR o BEAERD -
[z TREA -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BRERZE
Leasehold Computer
Leasehold land and Machinery software,
Freehold Hotel land and buildings and electronic fumiture ~ Construction
[and property buildings in the Building Motor ~ equipment and in
inUSA in USA inHK  Mainland China  improvements vehicles and others fixtures progress Total
%8 EEHE MEAMEE HERET HEABL

KRR FEEENE  DHRET  IHREE  BERE nE BERAM GARKE  ERIE &t
RMBON  RWBOO  RWBODO  RMBOO  RWBOO  RWBODO  RMBOOO  RWBOWO  RWBO  RMBLO
ARETE  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARRTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

00sT KA
At 1 January 2020 R-F-%§-A-A 16,89 219,050 520459 411,206 3,785 24973 2570 24117 30503 1.316,15
Exchange adjusiment EigE (1,093) (14351) - = - (28) = (1) - (15,683)
Additions e - 115 - - - 684 1053 672 13,164 15,688
Transfer upon complefion TR EEE - - - - 40923 - = 563 (41,486) -
Acquired on acquistion RUE-FMELREEA

of a subsidiary (note 39) (i) - - - = = = = 41 - 4
Disposalsfuriten off e/ - - - - - - (79) (64) = (183)
At 31 December 2020 RIT-RET-A=1-H 15,797 204814 520459 411,206 79,108 25609 30544 26,104 2,181 1316441
Exchange adjusiment EfAE (269) (3,550) - = - 9 = (70) - (3,89)
Additions e = = - - - 644 5451 3374 1393 10,822
Transfer upon completion R EEE - - = = 1872 = = - (1872 -
Derecognised on disposal ofa subsidiary FAHE— BB A AR

B - - - (18.8%) - - = - - (188%)

Disposalsfuriften off HE/ M - - - - - (1618) (31 - - (1.9%)
At 31 December 2021 RS-+ A=1-R 15528 201,264 520459 392310 81,580 24,606 35,618 29408 1,662 1302475
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2020 RE_EF-f-H - 29653 - 192,306 32,507 18943 26,055 20674 - 320138
Exchange adjusiment EffE - (2,108) - - - 23) - (151) - (2.282)
Provided for the year EERE = 10381 5,672 1768 793 2140 128 20% = 67137
Fliminated on disposalsfwriten off 4/ H46 2 4148 - = = - - - (1) (61) = (133)
At 31 December 2020 R-F-5F+A=1-8 - 37926 25612 20991 40441 21,060 27,269 2501 - 384,360
Exchange adjustment EfEE - (887) - - - 9 - (49) - (945)
Provided for the year EpRE - 9711 25,562 17318 14588 2011 1562 3,059 - 73873
Eliminated on disposal of 2 subsidlary P E—FINBARISHE - - - (10217) - - - - - (10217
Fliminated on disposalsiwriten of & /52538 - - - - - (1,366) (358) - - (1724)
At 31 December 2021 RIZ--FTf=1-8 - 46816 51,234 27092 55,029 21,6% BA13 25,507 - WH 847
CARRYING VALUES S
At 31 December 2021 RIZ--FTf=1-8 15,528 154448 469,225 175218 26,551 2950 1145 3901 1,662 856,628
At 31 December 2020 RZSZ8FTf=1-8 15,797 166,888 494787 01214 39,267 4569 3275 3603 2,181 931,581

B2 (FE)MERERRAT 149
T FFR

b fial
A L'Lll..l .



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contd) 15.

The carrying amounts of owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings,
situated in the Mainland China and HK, at the end of the reporting period
included both the leasehold land and building elements in property,
plant and equipment, as in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
allocations of the carrying amounts between the leasehold land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for freehold
land in USA and construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

M BERSE@)

MRAAREFRRELERELHE BT
DB DB - MEMRNEETLRPEARBREFE
ZERMEELHEETHFADE  BERREAD
ME T BT -

EXFTZ % - BB RREERE (LR EBZ KA
R RARTIZRIN DA RRIRA T FRIT

Hotel property in USA

Leasehold land and buildings in
the Mainland China

Leasehold land and buildings in
HK

5% to 10%

Over the shorter of the term of the
lease, or 2% to 5%

Over the shorter of the term of the
lease, or 2% to 5%

Building improvements 10% to 33%3%

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Machinery and electronic 10% to 33%3%
equipment and others

Computer software, furniture 20% to 33/3%

=

EZEBEDE 5%ZE10%

URHREAEzHEL FAEHE2%E5%(AKRE
RIS ERE)

MREAZHEL Y HEHH2%ES% (AKE
1BF &%)

EFERE 10%%33Y:%

E 20%Z%E25%

M B TREBREM  10%233Y:%

SHEEEY - RRR 20%ZE33Y:%

and fixtures BB
16. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM 16. R—R&& AT ER TR —BE4E
JOINT VENTURE &N RRIE
2021 2020
—E_—fF —ETHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat AR¥TT AREBFT
Cost of investment in a joint venture R—HEEERRZREKR (a) 9,520 9,520
Share of post-acquisition profits and B EEFEREMEEKE -
other comprehensive income, FRUCER 2 R B
net of dividends received (a) (3,466) (3,464)
6,054 6,056
Amount due from a joint venture ElR—M & & ARFIE (b) 522,318 522,318
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16. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A  16. A—BE & AFMNERE EHR—BE

=% -~
JOINT VENTURE (conta) ENRRIEE)
Notes: Mt
(a) Particulars of a joint venture as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as (a) R-E-_—FR-_ZT_TF+_A=+—H &%
follows: RAMFBEET
Place of Proportion
Form of establishment of voting right and
husiness and Paid-up percentage of
Company name nature operation capital interest held Principal activity
REER TR
NG EBUE B R & E i B BRERA EEEokzt TEXK
RMB’000
AREFT
Shenzhen Anyuan Industrial Established Mainland China 23,800 40%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (“Anyuan”) (2020: 40%)
(RNTMRTEXERBRAR)
40%
AR BEREERAR (%)) i Ava B A 23,800 (=T - 40%) LUER
(b)  Amount due from a joint venture represents advances to a joint venture (b) ER—REEEQRFBEASMN TEEARIMIEMK
which is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms. In an S BEEE - 28 BEETFEEEHR - AQRE
opinion of the directors of the Company, the settlement of the advances is ERE - BN REEWIEETBET - BRI

neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future. RAAKAIREG FLLE ©
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16.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A
JOINT VENTURE (conta)

Summarised financial information of Anyuan after adjusting for any

16.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—F+-A=1+—HAItFE

—Beg aNER ER—BE

YNCIEIOENE )

T S

TXHREZTTE & 5 R e 1A 2= R W 8 B A 8

differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying BERME » UREBEEVERREEREMLHE
amount in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:
2021 2020
—E——F —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Non-current assets IERBNE E 29 29
Current assets mEEE 557,823 549,814
Current liabilities mENE B (542,718) (534,704)
Included in the above amounts are: st A _buttE
Properties under development for sale BRPFEME 439,702 439,702
Cash and cash equivalents HENREZEEY 98,010 90,000
Amount due to a shareholder B — R ERIE 522,318 522,318
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEEBEERAMEZERS
for the year 5 5
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the L/(J:ﬁﬁkéﬂmiggﬁga BHMBHRER
carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the R R IR E 2 $0
consolidated financial statements:
2021 2020
—E=—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Net assets of Anyuan T BESRE 15,134 15,139
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBMAL TR 2 #Eas b Bl
interest in Anyuan 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group's REBRL T2 EmREE
interest in Anyuan 6,054 6,056
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17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. RAREBEGFAEMEZEHKE 2RAE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME IA
2021 2020
—B--F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Investments in: RTIBEZRE :
— Equity securities listed in the Mainland — AR E R T2 R ES (A
China (Note 1) 406,557 447,042
— Equity interests in certain unlisted —RETIE LT AR ZRIEHZ2)
companies (Note 2) 43,866 54,219
450,423 501,261
Notes: Hiat -
Note 1. The above listed equity investment represents 0.4% equity interests in Kfax1 0 Bt ERRER SRR B R A EH AR 2
an entity listed in the Mainland China. 0.4%J%HE o
Note 2: The amount represent 10% unlisted equity interests in a bank in the Kizx2 :  ZeEIERN—BPBERITZ10%3E iR —
PRC and 1% equity interest in a fund management company in the R EES S AT 2 1 %BIRHE o
PRC.
These investments are not held for trading, instead, they are held for ZEREWIEBIEEE MEREHESKERE
long-term strategic purposes. The directors of the Company have elected e BRARBBEERANBREAZERNEZ N
to designate these investments in equity instrument as FVTOCI as they LK EEEHEHTITHFAAEEEHBEZIRER
believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair ERSBIEAREBE N ZERE  WESEEEEEN
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy ZERATAZIEEAIEAREBES AL M2 EK
of holding the investment for long-term purposes and realising their %o

performance potential in the long run.
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18. DEFERRED TAX

18. R IH

The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) arising from temporary

differences are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

T ERELRERBEE(BE)NEFHIT

Withholding
tax for Valuation  Accelerated
undistributed ~ on investment tar  Fairvalue Accrual Pre-sale
Tax losses profits ~ properties  depreciation  adjustments for LAT deposits Others Total
AOEAE  REME  MERE  ARERE EHiR
hEEE  HES e e Fil:4 HEH  BERE Eth Eh
RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETL ARETL ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETL  ARETr
At 1 January 2020 R-E-Z%-F-H 131,314 (33050) (2378640)  (217253) (49464) 335,804 98,544 (17193)  (2,129.888)
(Charge) creditto the proftor loss (nofe 10)  FMERS(HIER3F AHE10) (114,683) - (08700 (42355 - 58281 (13630) (59304 (222561)
Qverprovision In prior years (note 10) ATERRERRZ) - - - - - 3% - = 3%
Credit to other comprehensive income REMEERERA - S = S 21979 = = S 21979
Acquired on acquisiton of a Subsidiary (note 35)SAEE B2 AIEBA
(Hizt35) 49,027 - - - 740 - - - 49,767
Balance as t 31 December 2020 R=F-2F+-A=1-A
L% 65,658 (33050) (2429510)  (259,608) (26,745) 394490 84914 (76497)  (2,280,348)
At 1 January 2021 W-%-—%-F-H 65,658 (33050) (2429510)  (259,608) (26,745) 394,490 84914 (76497)  (2,280,348)
Credit (charge) to the profitor loss (note 10) — BMEER=T ACHIER) (#/z210) 60913 = (680,297) (56,959) - 24012 (67,183) (19587) (739,101
Credit to other comprehensive income REMZERETA = = = = 12,709 = = = 12,709
Balance as at 31 December 2021 R=3--§+-A=1-A
k53 126,571 (33050) (3,109807)  (316,567) (14,036) 418502 17731 (96,084)  (3,006,740)

The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for

financial reporting purposes:

AP BREBNOME @ EIEBIRAS

Ve B INE

2021 2020

B —E-TFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Deferred tax assets FEERIEE E 551,812 537,869
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBRE (3,558,552) (2,818,217)
(3,006,740) (2,280,348)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

18.

DEFERRED TAX (contd)

The EIT Law and its implementation rules impose a withholding tax
at 10%, unless reduced by a tax treaty or arrangement, for dividends
distributed by the Mainland China-resident enterprises to their non-
Mainland China-resident corporate investors for profits earned since 1
January 2008. Under the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident is entitled to a reduced withholding
tax rate of 5% if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”
and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the Mainland China
enterprise directly. Since the Group controls the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China,
deferred tax liabilities are only provided to the extent that such profits are
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2021, the Group has unused deductible temporary
difference amounted to RMB28,429,000 (2020: RMB27,333,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such temporary
difference due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of RMB1,394,919,000 (2020: RMB886,427,000) available to offset
against future profits. For the year ended 31 December 2021, a deferred
tax asset had been recognised in respect of such tax losses amounting
to RMB506,284,000 (2020: RMB262,632,000) and no deferred tax
asset had been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
RMB888,635,000 (2020: RMB623,795,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
RMB203,024,000 (2020: RMB112,453,000) will expire in the following
years ending 31 December 2021, other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely:

18.

e MR E

EREBIE (2)

TEMSTEREERRARE B 2T N\F—
A—Be - RERiE R % 5t A R 2 R Ik
BlrinERERREEDIKNRE BIRI0%E MR
IR BRIFBBEHEBGOLLRHERR) - REAM
BEBHREEHHLH  FRIBEaEAAIYE
BEREHBE R EHEB%HIA LIRENEEREE
BigERARRARENB B ERE%HN - ARAE
(2] AT 22 1) 2 Ik AN 2 [ 70 P I X e ) B 2 D 9 82 )
MEBNRE  RIERBAEEABRRIR AR K
RN B BEERNRRETIEEME -

R-ZE-——F+=-A=+—H KEEERHHAT
IR LR =58 AR H28,429,000L( —BE-FF : A
R%27,333,0007T ) ° BB R 2R 28 FI| 5K R 89 7~ 7] 788
- R 2 S TR AR B A E -

RBERER  AEBMAMERKBERRAFNZ RS AH
BBEA AR 3949190007 ( =BT 4F : A

R #886,427,000L) c HE-_T-_—F+_-_A=+
—HIEFE - HZEHIEEE A RKE506,284,0007T

(ZZB=Z4F : ARW262,632,0007T) BRIELERIE
BERANRALEFFBRTAITED - 813025 H 6%
FHIERE 18 A R 888,635,000 ( —E_ZBF : AR
#623,795,0007C ) FERELT BEE - AHERZHE
THETIE B IR EE A R#203,024,000c(ZE =&
AR#112,453,000C) SR A THEZTEZ—F+
ZA=t+—HIZFERR - mEAMEER &R
HA%E

2021 2020

T —F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
2021 T - 14,448
2022 - 212
2023 e 1,216 1,296
2024 —E 4 13,422 13,422
2025 —E-RHF 81,575 83,075
2026 —E R 106,811 -
203,024 112,453

45 (FE)RERRARDT
T -

155



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

19.

20.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 19. BEPSEYWE
Included in the properties under development for sale as at 31 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H8 JNEERBTEFEY
December 2021 is carrying value of RMB39,885,564,000 (2020: ¥ 2RMEEA AR 39,885,564,0000( —FE =%
RMB31,786,705,000) which represents the carrying value of the F . ARH¥31,786,705,0007T) @ ThFEEAR RS HiR
properties expected to be realised after twelve months from the end of B+ _EARFTERZMEFEE - AEE 2B
the reporting period. The Group’s properties under development for sale RHEFEMFEE SN RAMEES -
are mainly situated in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Analysis of leasehold lands: ME Tz DT
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Carrying amount BREE 5,108,055 2,915,263
Total cash outflow WEm ez 1,057,081 490,403
Additions NE 2,159,359 490,403
The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost less any TE Tt 7 BREE TR AR A REH T E R
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual BEEEFE EEFEEBEAEELMH H 2 A5
values are determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold HEEE KAKR T —FR-_FT_TF+=
land component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands B=+—HzHEEE  BERES L wHEnE
taking into account the estimated residual values as at 31 December ZH -
2021 and 2020.
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20. SEYE

The Group’s properties held for sale are situated in the Mainland China.

AEBFEMRMNTBEAM o

Analysis of leasehold lands: TE Ltz AT -
2021 2020
—ECo—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T AREFTT
Carrying amount BREE 527,208 1,647,051

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual
values are determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold
land component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands
taking into account the estimated residual values as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FE UL BRFR

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT

Accounts receivable from: FEIRBR SRR B
— Contracts with customers —BFAH 25,089 16,719
— Lease receivables —HERKFKIE 124,503 92,616
Accounts receivable FEURBR K 149,592 109,335
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE (110,103) (41,230)
39,489 68,105

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to RMB8,065,000.

Accounts receivable represent receivables arising from sales of
properties, rental income from leasing properties and comprehensive
services (including hotel operation and property management). For the
receivables arising from sales of properties, they are due for settlement
in accordance with the terms of the relevant sales and purchase
agreements. For the receivables arising from rental income from
leasing properties, monthly rents are normally received in advance and
sufficient rental deposits are held to minimise credit risk. For accounts
receivable generated from hotel operation, the credit term is payable on
demand. For accounts receivable generated from property management,
receivable generally have credit terms of 30 to 60 days (2020: 30 to 60
days). All accounts receivable are denominated in RMB. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable, based on invoice dates
for rental income from leasing properties and comprehensive services
and the terms of relevant sales and purchases agreements for sales of
properties, is as follows:

R-ZB-ZF-A—R KEFEFAHZESZEK
TRIE R A K #8,065,0007T °

JRE LSt PR SR FE S W 2 ﬁh%%%ﬁé%k&ﬁ
RIS(BEBELERYESE)NEWIE - 3iis
EVMEEENERS ﬁﬁm'z%*ﬁﬂﬁﬁm%
BE SRR RN - RAEYENTE S WAE
EHEKFEMNS  SAMESEBBEREKRER 1
ﬁ%%mﬁé&éuﬁﬁrgﬂwoﬁﬁﬁggﬁ
A= ) JE UG BR 3R CEEHTERE R AT o %%
EIBFTE WEW%mmrﬁm B A30E60K(—
_zi-mim%)%ﬁﬁ%$nuAE%#E
$%E%%%m%$w&ﬁﬁﬂ EMENTHS KA

EREHZAHUREBYEBEEEE RHEIE
%ﬁﬁ@T:

2021 2020

—E—_—5F ZECEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Within 1 month 1MEAR 27,183 27,690
1 to 12 months 1Z12{88 8,397 30,678
13 to 24 months 132241 A 3,909 9,737
39,489 68,105

N
__,4#'#& ‘Jf"

m-

e
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21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (contd)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s accounts receivable
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB12,306,000
(2020: RMB40,416,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. For
balance of RMB7,079,000 (2020: RMB28,339,000) has been past due
90 days or more, it is not considered as in default due to the long-term/
on-going relationship and good repayment record of the counterparties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

1. BEWBRR (&)

RZZ-—F+-A=+—8 st ATEERKE
KA BR 2 R A IR E AR E R A R #12,306,0007T
(ZZ==ZF : AR¥40,416,0007T ) 2 FEWFKTE -
RfEREBE - ARNER S SR F5ER
BRSNS R AT - Bl B 2 #8890 H 3k A
LFZEHBARKTO79000(Z B -_F4F : ARK
28,339,00070) W ARIHIRBEL) - AEELERZE
FEERRE A (R o o

The movement in the allowance for credit losses is as follows: FEEEEREEZSIT
2021 2020
—E=——F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
At 1 January R—H—H 41,230 613
Impairment loss recognised EERREE B 68,873 41,230
Reversal on impairment loss recognised BRERREEECED - (613)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 110,103 41,230

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL for accounts receivable
based on lifetime ECL. Accounts receivable have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the historical observed default rates
have been adjusted by forward looking estimates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

22. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

e IR M R

22. ENERE  AEREAREMEKRRR

RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—B-—F TECRF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaE ARBTT ARETT
Deposits paid and prepayments BEffize REFNRE (a) 2,183,011 1,275,659
Other receivables EhpEUR IR 169,117 322,537
Amounts due from related parties i) YN0 (b) 233,775 249,426
Amounts due from non-controlling PR EERRE R R TE
interests (c) 13,006 14,411
Total a5t 2,598,909 1,862,033
Notes: HiaE -

(a)

(b)

(c)

The balance mainly represents prepaid construction costs of
RMB1,249,418,000 (2020: RMB598,920,000) to the contractors for
the Group's property development projects, and urban renewal service
prepayment of RMB305,199,000 (2020: RMB341,000,000) to an
independent third party for the Group’s urban renewal projects.

Amounts due from related parties, in which the ultimate controlling party
has beneficial interests, are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2021, amount due from non-controlling interests
amounting to RMB10,131,000 (2020:RMB10,989,000) is secured by
equity interests held by the non-controlling party, interest bearing at
6.37% (2020: 6.37%) per annum and repayable on demand. Remaining
balance of amount due from non-controlling interests is non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

. III“ ; \
— ;"'.m‘..i 'L;.I- ‘v-l"nAl

(a)

(b)

(c)

ZREBEZARASE Y EFR IS i m A E
7 8B KA A R #1,249,418,0000( ==
— T4 AR#598,920,0007T) ¢ MA K kA £ E 5
MEFIER MBI E = E 238 E 3RS E
4 5k A R #305,199,000T( — T =T F : ARM
341,000,0007T) °

FE U Bl B 5 SR (B R R R R B an )
B ZIHE - EER  RERBRERER o

R-ZE-—+-A=+—8 " ERGEERERS
OE A AR #10,131,00000( —F — T4 - ARKE
10,989,0007T) * 7% #H TR 7 758 2 IR E I
I IRERNRE37% (B -ZF : 6.37%):tERA
JRESRAEE o FEUKSEYT IRAE o8 BRIE 2 AV T A5 AR JF
RGWE - BIEH - RERAKREREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 23. ZRFIBITER
2021 2020
—E=—F —E_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat AR¥T T ARBFT
Pledged bank deposits for bank loans — #LiR1TE FIEH IR TR IR 2,547,603 2,671,572
Funds under regulation by banks for RRTEEEFTAENES
specific purposes 628,871 678,061
Performance deposits required by BITRENEOES
government (a) - 553,260
Pledged bank deposits for mortgage HIRBE RN IRITFR (b) 196,683 69,650
Performance deposits for construction — ZEA LM ELIZ S
contracts 4,184 4,184
Others Eith 2,679 2,810
3,380,020 3,979,537
Classified as: DA -
Current TRED 2,840,020 3,979,537
Non-current SETRED 540,000 =
3,380,020 3,979,537
The effective interest rates of restricted bank deposits are in the range ZREIBITEREEENERIGN F0.01%23.58%
of 0.01% to 3.58% (2020: 0.01% to 3.58%) per annum. The pledged (ZZ—FT4F : 0.01%%3.58%) - LT ERER
bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank TRRERITIEEBEREM S
borrowings.
Notes: Wiz -
(a) The balance represents performance deposits required by the government (a) RERBERT T AER B EN MR IEREY
for the Group’s urban redevelopment project. The performance deposits e BHIRESERBE_TE-_—F+-_BF=1+—
have been released with the completion of performance during the year B I E B AT B RS o
ended 31 December 2021.
(b)  FRAEBRAIE RIS MY B R B IR 8 M (E A
(b) The balance represents bank deposits pledged to secure the mortgage WERITIE R ©
granted to buyers of properties.
24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24, RITHEHRES

As at 31 December 2021, included in bank balances and cash was
a fixed deposit of RMB261,500,000 (2020: RMB600,476,000) with
original maturity period of more than three months but within one year.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to
2.25% (2020: 0.01% to 1.60%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable mainly represents amounts due to contractors and
government authorities. Payment to contractors is made by reference
of progress of the respective construction work and agreed milestones.
Payment to government authorities is made by reference to the agreed
milestones for payment of land premium.

5. EARR

e R EBIEREMNARE RBTEENIE -
NAEBEFIE2EZ R BER TS NG TE BR®
e - ENBASEFIE2EFM XN L itE B

%5 EIRFE{EL ©

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Accounts payable FETEBRER 3,642,441 1,262,086
The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable presented based FENEEFURBEE H HETAER 25T :

on the invoice date:

2021 2020

—EB-—F —E_TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Within 1 month 1EAA 2,680,964 1,097,921

1 to 12 months 121218 A 770,407 55,986

13 to 24 months 13ZE24{E A 113,386 63,512

Over 24 months BE241E 5 717,684 44,667

3,642,441 1,262,086

The average credit period for purchase of construction materials ranged

from six months to one year.

BEEEMHNNTHEERANEAAZ—FT% -
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26. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—F+-A=1+—HAItFE

EHER - eSS RHAMEBENFRIER

PAYABLES

2021 2020
—E—F ——s

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AREBTT AREFTT
Rental deposits received EliEeEe 212,200 175,260
Receipts in advance B FRIE (a) 7,478 3,787
Other payables and accruals E b e E R ERT & A 601,484 579,657
Amounts due to related parties FEA RaE: 5 5B (b) 1,101,729 1,175
Amounts due to non-controlling interests & FEIEARHE 25 3R (c) 2,453 2,525
1,925,344 762,404

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, receipts in advance consist of rental
considerations received in advance from customers.

(b) Amounts due to related parties, in which the ultimate controlling party has
beneficial interests, are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(c) Amounts due to non-controlling interests are non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. EEEE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Sales of properties YISESHE 1,354,922 1,345,571
Hotel operation and property S B R FEE IR
management service 4,016 3,361
1,358,938 1,348,932
Note: The balance mainly represents sales deposits and advance payments Hiet - ZEEHESIRHEEIRS REHE 2 BRI FE
received from sales of properties.
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to RZZE_ZTF-—AR—HB cRAEBRARYE
RMB2,505,265,000. 2,505,265,0007T °
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the TRITNEFERRAEEEVN 2 ABEERAE
respective years relates to carried-forward contract liabilities at the start B Z WA SEE °
of the respective years.
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Sales of properties YISIHE 1,289,632 2,245 712
Hotel operation and property management S & B RSB RIS
service 3,361 2,927
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEAE
Lease liabilities payable: EdEEEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Within one year —FR 17,196 17,239
Within a period of more than one year BHRB—FETHEAENE
but not more than two years 13,269 18,949
Within a period of more than two years AR BT RN EB AT
but not more than five years 23,659 31,495
Within a period of more than five years RHEBBRF 110,351 34,690
164,475 102,373
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B AIARBE BTN 128 A N EEE
months shown under current liabilities 2308 (17,196) (17,239)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  FAZEREN & EWH 1218 A & 2 EEE
shown under non-current liabilities FKIE 147,279 85,134
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease Fﬁ??ﬂ%%fﬁﬁﬂﬂ*&ii’] HERFEAE8.83% (=
liabilities is 8.83% (2020: 9.50%). T_TF :950%) °
29. BORROWINGS 29. &
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E_TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Borrowings comprise: BEERE
— Variable rate bank loans —ZBIETEXR 19,676,583 20,294,657
— Fixed rate bank loans —EEFEBITER 1,571,952 1,119,296
— Fixed rate other borrowings — BT ER 3,745,196 2,450,536
24,993,731 23,864,489
Analysed as: DT
— Secured — B 24,064,326 22,915,296
— Unsecured — AR 929,405 949,193
24,993,731 23,864,489

164 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

29. BORROWINGS (conta)

e MR E

BE&®)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARETFT

Borrowings repayable within a period of:
— Within 1 year
— More than 1 year, but not

TEEZAR AT B A EE
-——5R 5,948,796 6,438,547

—BE—FEIREE

exceeding 2 years 5,763,572 3,260,479
— More than 2 years, but not —EBBMFEIRAESF
exceeding 5 years 9,768,853 11,379,145
— More than 5 years —RFLATE 2,466,800 1,217,512
23,948,021 22,295,683
Borrowings that contain a repayment on BEEREREEERZEEGIAREE
demand clause (shown under current &) - AR THIEEAERE
liabilities) but repayable:
— Within 1 year ——%R 858,480 1,552,816
— More than 1 year, but not — BB —FEIRRE
exceeding 2 years 187,230 -
— More than 2 years, but not —EBBMFEIRASF
exceeding 5 years - 15,990
Total borrowings BEE 24,993,731 23,864,489
Less: Amount due within one year shown B mEBAEE TR —FREIEZ FIE
under current liabilities (6,994,506) (8,007,353)
Amount due after one year R—F1&EIE 2 308 17,999,225 15,857,136
All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional currencies FEASEEERAEAERAANINEEY
of the relevant group companies (i.e. RMB, US$ and HK$) except certain (BMAR®. .- =Ex@HlEBT)E E TR
bank and other borrowings amounting to RMB2,419,366,000 (2020: M E M & B A R ¥2419,366,00000( = T =
RMB2,184,586,000) are denominated in HK$, and RMB3,293,584,000 T F: A K #2184,586,0007T ) A /& 7T 5t E &
(2020: RMB3,345,395,000) are denominated in US$. /\ R #3,293584000( —E T F: AR¥

A :J Ll

3,345,395,0007T ) LAZRITEHERR SN ©
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29.

BORROWINGS (conta)

For bank loans denominated in HK$, the effective interest rates are
ranging from 1.30% to 6% (2020: 4.01% to 8.37%) per annum. For
bank and other loans denominated in RMB, the effective interest rates
are ranging from 4.25% to 8.50% (2020: 4.25% to 9.00%) per annum.
For bank loans denominated in US$, the effective interest rates are
ranging from 1.46% to 13.75% (2020: 1.60% to 10.00%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, certain secured bank loans with aggregate
amount of RMB5,944,586,000 (2020: RMB4,984,327,000) and certain
secured other borrowings with amount of RMB2,077,473,000 (2020:
RMB2,124,292,000) are secured by the equity interests of subsidiaries
of the Group (see also note 42).

As at 31 December 2021, a secured bank loan with aggregate amount
of RMB221,092,000 (2020: RMB228,537,000) was secured by certain
equity investment held by Mr. Wong, the ultimate controlling shareholder.

As at 31 December 2021, a secured bank loan with aggregate amount
of RMB3,196,500,000 (2020: RMB2,732,500,000) was jointly secured
by properties owned by a related company controlled by Mr. Wong,
600,000,000 convertible preference shares of the Company owned by
Mr. Wong, equity interest of that related company, and certain properties
of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, a secured bank loan with aggregate amount
of nil (2020: RMB115,000,000) was secured by properties owned by a
related company.

As at 31 December 2021, certain secured bank loan with aggregate
amount of RMB642,340,000 (2020: RMB837,984,000) were secured
by personal guarantees of Mr. Wong and Mrs. Huang Jingshu, executive
director and chairman of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, certain secured bank loan with aggregate
amount of RMB528,500,000 (2020: RMB1,155,190,000) were secured
by personal guarantees of spouse of Mr. Wong.

As at 31 December 2021, certain secured bank loan with aggregate
amount of RMB7,283,731,000 (2020: RMB7,384,588,000) were
secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Wong.

As at 31 December 2021, certain secured bank loan with aggregate
amount of RMB734,400,000 (2020: nil) were secured by personal
guarantees of Ms. Huang Jingshu.

As at 31 December 2021, certain secured bank loan with aggregate
amount of RMB2,160,000,000 (2020: nil) were secured by personal
guarantee of Mr. Wong and a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of
the Group.
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(a)

A=t ALEE
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT 30. TEREFRUTRKREFITETER
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS o
Debt component of convertible bonds (a) TERREFEEHD
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFT
Net carrying amount as at 1 January B—A—BREEFE 1,419,974 1,493,257
Recognition of new convertible bonds REREE B R A IRRES
upon substantial modification - 1,393,642
Interest expense FERAZ 193,594 285,303
Interest paid ERFE (114,953) (154,018)
Repayment BN - (134,589)
Derecognition upon substantial REASERKIEER
modification - (1,360,965)
Exchange difference &+ =5 (36,363) (102,656)
Net carrying amount as at 31 December W+ —=—HA=+—HHEEFE 1,462,252 1,419,974
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : RBIEEHE NA—F AR HI 2 508
under current liabilities (1,462,252) =
Amount due after one year — 1B 2 R - 1,419,974
(1) On 6 November 2016, the Company entered into (1) R=ZZFE—X"F+—AXH' KAKQa

a Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement (the
“Agreement”) with an independent third party, Chance
Talent Management Limited (the “CB Subscriber”).
Pursuant to the Agreement, the CB Subscriber agreed
to acquire the Convertible Bond (the “2018 CB”) with
aggregate principal amount of US$100 million (equivalent
to RMB686 million) at interest rate of 5.5% per annum,
payable by the Company semi-annually in arrears from the
issue date, with initial conversion price of HK$2.76. The
maturity date is on the second anniversary of the issue
date. The 2018 CB were issued to the CB Subscriber on 18
November 2016.

The bondholder has the right to convert the 2018 CB in
whole or in part into shares at any time on or after the issue
date of the 2018 CB up to the respective maturity date.
264,946,889 (2020: 264,946,889) new shares will be
issued upon full conversion of the 2018 CB. An adjustment
had been made to the conversion price from HK$2.76 to
HK$2.695 on 21 July 2017 as a result of the dividends
paid since the convertible bonds were issued.

ly

,lk'iil‘b'"

m-

B — &£ ¥§ 37 5 = HChance Talent
Management Limited ([ A2 0% &5 28
AJ)ETTL*@EHQHQF%EW%T% (3%
#1) - BEZBE - AT RRESRE
/\ﬂ WWEASBEAIEXT(EE
RARK6.86EL) T’Qif' 325 5%&t
g E’]—H‘*‘H%s#(f J\i—ﬁﬁﬂ%s
%1) \?ﬂﬁﬁ?@ﬁﬁzmﬁé CHMEE
%ffﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@¥¢ﬂim$ﬂﬁjiﬁ 8
BIEH AZITHEBHRIIMMBAS - =5
—N\FAHBRESFR_E—~F+—A
+\HET P AHRRESFREA -

BEERFEABRR T N\FABREE
FETAME Bk B ERBEEYA L
PEEF S 2 EP kD =T — /\i‘”ﬁﬁﬁz‘f
S A - 264,946,8890% ( —E —
TF 1 264,946,889 TR D I A —F
—N\FA R EHEREBERIEET -
IT%H&%%%&GWEZHE’JH&E%E&EA
—tFt A+ —RAE#RER2.76
%7‘331%;.:2.695/%75 °
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

(a) Debt component of convertible bonds (Cont’d)

(1)

(Cont'd)

On 17 January 2018, the Company received a notice
from the CB Subscriber, requesting for the conversion of
the 2018 CB in the principal amount of US$10,000,000.
Accordingly, the Company has allotted and issued
28,794,063 conversion shares to the CB Subscriber at the
conversion price of HK$2.695 per conversion share.

Adjustments had been made to the conversion price from
HK$2.695 to HK$2.636 as a result of allotment of ordinary
shares, allotment of convertible preference shares and the
dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Adjustments had been made to the conversion price from
HK$2.636 to HK$2.574 as a result of the dividends paid
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 3 October 2018, the CB Subscriber, the Company and
Mr. Wong entered into the Deed of Extension to extend the
maturity date of the 2018 CB to 18 November 2020.

The 2018 CB will be redeemed on maturity at a value equal
to the amount equal to the aggregate of (a) the aggregate
principal amount of such outstanding 2018 CB; (b) any
accrued but unpaid interest on such outstanding 2018 CB
on the redemption date (other than default interest); and (c)
(if the sum of the amounts referred to above (a) and (b) fall
short of making up an internal rate of return of 8% on the
aggregate principal amount of 2018 CB) such additional
amount which would make up an internal rate of 8% on the
aggregate principal amount of 2018 CB.

On 18 November 2020, the CB Subscriber, the
Company and Mr. Wong entered into the 2020 Deed
of Extension to further extend the maturity date of the
remaining outstanding 2018 CB to 18 May 2022 and
amend certain terms of the 2018 CB (the “2018 CB
Amendments”), including amendments to maturity date,
certain amendments regarding the undertaking given by
the Company to the CB Subscriber and the bondholder.
Save for the 2018 CB Amendments, all other terms and
conditions of the 2018 CB shall remain in full force and
effect.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (conta)

(a) Deht component of convertible bonds (Cont'd)

(1)

(Cont'd)

Under the 2020 Deed of Extension, the parties thereto
agreed to, amongst others, the following principal
amendments:

(i) the maturity date of the 2018 CB will be changed
from the date falling on the fourth anniversary of the
issue date to the date falling on the sixty-sixth month
from the issue date;

(i)  the undertaking given by the Company to the
CB Subscriber and the Bondholder that the
shareholders’ equity of the Company should not be
less than RMB10,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in
any other currency) will be changed to not less than
RMB11,500,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency); and

(iii)  the undertaking given by the Company to the CB
Subscriber and the Bondholders that the ratio of the
Company’s total assets to shareholder’s equity is not
more than 3.6:1 will be changed to the ratio of the
Company’s total debts (excluding contract liability
arising out of sale of properties) to the Company’s
total assets is not more than 75%.

The 2018 CB Amendments was effective on 18 November
2020. Based on the conversion price according to 2018 CB
Amendment and assuming full conversion of the 2018 CB,
an aggregate of 216,846,307 (2020: 216,846,307) new
shares will be allotted and issued by the Company.

Adjustments had been made to the conversion price from
HK$2.574 to HK$2.505 as a result of allotment of ordinary
shares, allotment of convertible preference shares and the
dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

(a) Debt component of convertible bonds (Cont’d)

(1)

(Cont'd)

Due to the 2018 CB Amendments, during the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group derecognised a carrying
amount of the debt components of 2018 CB amounting
to HK$603,745,000 (equivalent to RMB512,398,000)
upon substantial modification and recognised a carrying
amount of the debt and derivative components of new
Convertible Bonds (the “New 2018 CB”) amounting
to HK$547,163,000 (equivalent to RMB464,378,000)
and HK$40,737,000 (equivalent to RMB34,573,000)
respectively. The resulting difference of approximately
HK$15,845,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB13,447,000) was recognised as a gain on substantial
modification of convertible bonds in other gains and losses
in 2020.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the
2018 CB were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 November 2016, 8 November 2016, 18
November 2016, 3 October 2018 and 18 November 2020
respectively.

The New 2018 CB contains two components, debt
component and derivative component. The effective interest
rate of the debt component is 14.09% (2020: 14.09%) per
annum. The derivative component is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of conversion option is HK$1,949,000
(equivalent to RMB1,594,000) (2020: HK$26,747,000
(equivalent to RMB22,510,000)) as at 31 December 2021.

On 10 May 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Gemstones International Limited (the “Issuer” or
“Gemstone”), and the Company together with its eighteen
subsidiaries acting as guarantors entered into a Convertible
Bonds Subscription Agreement (the “2018 Agreement”)
with a third party, Global Affluence Holding V Limited (the
“2018 Subscriber”). Pursuant to the 2018 Agreement,
the 2018 Subscriber agreed to acquire the convertible
bonds (the “2023 CB”) with aggregate principal amount
of US$100 million (equivalent to RMB675 million) at
interest rate of 4.0% per annum, payable by the Issuer
semi-annually in arrears. The maturity date is on the fifth
anniversary of the issue date. The 2023 CB were issued to
the 2018 Subscriber on 17 May 2018.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (conta)

(a) Deht component of convertible bonds (Cont'd)

2

(Cont'd)

The bondholder has the right to convert the 2023 CB in
whole or in part into shares at any time on or after the
issue date of the 2023 CB up to the date falling seven days
prior to the maturity date. 208,776,595 new shares will be
issued upon full conversion of the 2023 CB based on the
initial conversion price of HK$3.76. Adjustments had been
made to the conversion price from HK$3.76 to HK$3.68 as
a result of the issue of Second 2023 CB and the extension
of 2018 CB during the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, adjustments
had been made to the conversion price from HK$3.68 to
HK$3.594 as a result of the dividends paid.

The 2023 CB will be redeemed on maturity at a value equal
to 124.012214% of the outstanding principal amount of the
2023 CB, together with any accrued and unpaid interest.

The bondholder has the right by written notice at any time
on or after 17 May 2020, the second anniversary of the
issue date of the 2023 CB and before maturity, require the
Issuer to redeem all or some only of such bondholder’s
2023 CB at a gross yield of 8.00% per annum.

On 19 June 2020, the Company, the Issuer and the
bondholder have conditionally agreed to amend certain
terms and conditions of the 2023 CB (the “2023 CB
Amendments”), including amendments to the put option
date, the conversion price, the interest rate and early
redemption amount. Save for the 2023 CB Amendments,
all other terms and conditions of the 2023 CB shall remain
in full force and effect.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—F+-A=1+—HAItFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT 30. /R RESF R AUBKRESFITETIA

OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

(a) Debt component of convertible bonds (Cont’d)

(2)  (Contd)

7

(a) TFRREFEBHD(E)

2)

The 2023 CB amendments of terms and conditions were

set as below:

Original terms
R E R

(&)

T =FWBRESERT Z EF R
HEFIT

Amendments
&3

Put option date
RobHiE R 5

Conversion price

BE

Interest Rate

S

Early redemption
amount

e E

On or after 17 May 2020
—T-TFERATHHRZE

HK$3.594 per share
HRR&153.594%8 7T

4.00 per cent. per annum

REFIEL00%5t S

An amount such that the bondholders
would realise a gross yield of 8.00%
per annum on the principal amount of
the 2023 CB from the 17 May 2018 to
the date of early redemption

EFEEEANE_E—\ERA+LH
tihmkﬁaﬂi_v__iTﬁ
R EHA NS 58 2 IN8.00% A2 FF i 25 &
BN &5

The 2023 CB Amendments was effective on 29 June 2020.
Based on the conversion price according to 2023 CB
Amendment and assuming full conversion of the 2023 CB,
an aggregate of 261,666,666 (2020: 261,666,666) new
shares will be allotted and issued by the Company.
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On or after 17 May 2022
—EC_FRATEHSEZE

HK$3.000 per share
FREA%153.000/8 7T

4.00 per cent. per annum from 17 May
2018 (inclusively) to 18 June 2020
and 5.00 per cent. per annum from 19
June 2020 (inclusively)
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An amount such that the bondholders
would realise a gross yield of 8.00%
per annum on the principal amount of
the 2023 CB from 17 May 2018 to 19
June 2020 and a gross yield of 9.50%
per annum on the principal amount of
the 2023 CB from 20 June 2020 to the
date of early redemption
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (conta)

(a) Deht component of convertible bonds (Cont'd)

2

(Cont'd)

Due to the 2023 CB Amendments, during the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group derecognised a
carrying amount of the debt and derivative components
of 2023 CB amounting to US$77,488,000 (equivalent
to RMB548,577,000) and US$19,731,000 (equivalent
to RMB139,683,000) respectively upon substantial
maodification and recognised a carrying amount of the debt
and derivative components of new Convertible Bonds (the
“New 2023 CB”) amounting to US$87,498,000 (equivalent
to RMB619,441,000) and US$7,362,000 (equivalent to
RMB52,118,000) respectively. The resulting difference of
approximately US$2,359,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB16,701,000) was recognised as a gain on substantial
modification of convertible bonds in other gains and losses
in 2020.

In addition, the Issuer paid the bondholders a make-
whole amount in cash such that the 2023 CB holders
would obtain a gross yield of 8.00% per annum on the
principal amount of the 2023 CB from the issue date to
19 June 2020, amounted to US$8,896,000 (equivalent to
RMB62,639,000) as a result of the 2023 CB Amendments.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the 2023
CB were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 11 May 2018 and 19 June 2020 respectively.

The New 2023 CB contains two components, debt
component and derivative component (including the
conversion option and the early redemption option that are
not closely related to the host). The effective interest rates
of the debt component is 14.15% (2020: 14.15%) per
annum. The derivative component is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit and loss.

The fair value of early redemption option is US$1,356,000
(equivalent to RMB8,645,000) (2020: US$2,716,000
(equivalent to RMB17,722,000)) as at 31 December
2021. The fair value of conversion option is US$573,000
(equivalent to RMB3,652,000) (2020: US$4,206,000
(equivalent to RMB27,446,000)) as at 31 December 2021.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

30. TERREFRATBRRESFITETAR

7

(a) Debt component of convertible bonds (Cont’d)

Q)

On 16 September 2018, Gemstones entered into a
Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement (the “2018
Second Agreement”) with an independent third party,
Pioneer Festive Limited (the “2018 Second Subscriber”).
Pursuant to the 2018 Second Agreement, the 2018 Second
Subscriber agreed to acquire the convertible bonds (the
“Second 2023 CB") with aggregate principal amount
of US$50 million (equivalent to RMB341.8 million) at
interest rate of 5.0% per annum, payable by Gemstones
semi-annually in arrears. The maturity date is on the fifth
anniversary of the issue date. The Second 2023 CB were
issued to the 2018 Second Subscriber on 28 September
2018.

The bondholder has the right to convert the Second 2023
CB in whole or in part into shares at any time on or after
the issue date of the Second 2023 CB up to the date falling
seven days prior to the maturity date. 127,022,653 new
shares will be issued upon full conversion of the Second
2023 CB based on the initial conversion price of HK$3.09.

Adjustments had been made to the conversion price from
HK$3.09 to HK$3.018 as a result of the dividends paid
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Second 2023 CB will be redeemed on maturity at a
value equal to 136.1% of the outstanding principal amount
of the Second 2023 CB, together with any accrued and
unpaid interest.

The bondholder has the right by written notice at any time
on or after 28 September 2020, the second anniversary of
the issue date of the Second 2023 CB and before maturity,
require the Gemstones to redeem all or some only of such
bondholder's Second 2023 CB at a yield of internal rate of
return of 10.00% per annum.

If a bondholder has exercised the conversion rights
attached to any Second 2023 CB and disposed of any
conversion shares issued as a result thereof, Gemstones will
be entitled to share 30% of the consideration (net of taxes
and brokerage fees) payable to the relevant bondholder in
excess of the agreed preferred return in accordance with
the terms of the Second 2023 CB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (conta)

(a) Deht component of convertible bonds (Cont'd)

3)

(Cont'd)

On 31 December 2020, the Company and the bondholder
entered into the supplemental agreement to amend and
restate the terms of the Second 2023 CB (the “Second
2023 CB Amendments”), including amendments to the
redemption date at the option of the bondholders and
conversion price. Save for the Amendments, all other terms
and conditions of the Second 2023 CB remain in full force
and effect.

The Second 2023 CB amendments of terms and conditions
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30. TRREZRAUTBRRESZITETAR

B )
() THRERESEBDH(E)
3) (&)
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iﬂ%*m_?__iT%&FﬁZM
RITEHM_ZB-_=FaBREFE
1) BEREESSEARBZER
A RIRB(E Z ER] - R FERTIN -
FEHM_To=—FUBREFZE2HE
TR R HDRE T RN R AR -

“HoT—=FAMERESEZE

were set as below: RAGEEF T -

Original terms Amendments

REBRR =+ 3EH])
Put option date On or after 28 September 2020 On or after 31 January 2022
iz B8 H A —E-TFEAA-FNRHKZE T —F-A=+—HzzE

The Second 2023 CB Amendments was effective as
from 31 December 2020. Based on the conversion price
according to Second 2023 CB Amendment and assuming
full conversion of the Second 2023 CB, an aggregate of
133,685,286 (2020: 133,685,286) new shares will be
allotted and issued by the Company.

Adjustments had been made to the conversion price from
HK$3.09 to HK$2.936 as a result of dividends paid during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Due to the Second 2023 CB Amendments, during the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group derecognised
a carrying amount of the debt and derivative components
of 2023 CB amounting to US$45,976,000 (equivalent
to RMB299,990,000) and US$538,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,513,000) respectively upon substantial modification
and recognised a carrying amount of the debt and
derivative components of new Convertible Bonds (the
“New Second 2023 CB”) amounting to US$47,483,000
(equivalent to RMB309,823,000) and US$6,733,000
(equivalent to RMB43,933,000) respectively. The resulting
difference of approximately US$7,702,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB50,253,000) was recognised as a loss
on substantial modification of convertible bonds in other
gains and losses in 2020.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

(a) Debt component of convertible bonds (Cont’d)

Q)

(Cont'd)

In addition, Gemstones shall pay the bondholders a make-
whole amount in cash such that the Second 2023 CB
holders would obtain a gross yield of 10.00% per annum on
the principal amount of the Second 2023 CB from the issue
date to 31 December 2020, amounted to US$6,500,000
(equivalent to RMB44,813,000) as a result of the Second
2023 CB Amendments.

The New Second 2023 CB will be redeemed on maturity
at a value equal to 112.91% of the outstanding principal
amount of the New Second 2023 CB, together with any
accrued and unpaid interest.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the New
Second 2023 CB were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 17 September 2018 and 31 December
2020 respectively.

The New Second 2023 CB contains two components,
debt component and the derivative component (including
the conversion option after profit-sharing and the early
redemption option that is not closely related to the host).
The effective interest rate of the debt component is 11.52%
(2020: 11.52%) per annum. The derivative component is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit and loss.

The fair value of conversion option is US$289,000
(equivalent to RMB1,843,000) (2020: US$6,678,000
(equivalent to RMB43,575,000)) as at 31 December 2021.
The fair value of early redemption option is US$1,650,000
(equivalent to RMB10,517,000) (31 December 2020:
US$55,000 (equivalent to RMB359,000)) as at 31
December 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT 30. AJRREF R THRREFITET A

OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'a) &)
(b)  Derivative component of convertible honds (h) TERESFFTEIALS
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREEFIT
Net carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BHEmFE 111,612 222,207
Derecognition of derivatives RIEERITETR - (143,196)
Recognition of derivatives ERITET A - 130,624
Gain arising on changes in fair value AR EEZEEANRE (83,674) (93,506)
Exchange difference MR =R (1,687) (4,517)
Net carrying amount as at 31 December R+ —=—F=+—HHEEMFE 26,251 111,612
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : JRENEEIE NA —FREH 2 K08
under current liabilities (26,251) -
Amount due after one year R—F1&EIH 2 FUE = 111,612
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

(b)  Derivative component of convertible bonds (Cont'd)

(1)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of
the New 2018 CB at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as
follows:

The fair value of the derivative component of New 2018
CB as at 31 December 2021 derived by using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model were approximately RMB1,594,000
(2020: RMB22,510,000). It was determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation
performed by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited
(2020: Asset Appraisal Limited), a firm of independent
professional valuer with appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative
instruments with reference to market values. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
the fair value gain of RMB20,565,000 (2020: gain of
RMB68,525,000 for 2018 CB and gain of RMB13,885,000
for New 2018 CB) in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The inputs used in the Binomial Option Pricing Model
adopted by the independent professional valuer in
determining the fair values of derivative component at the
respective dates were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

30. TERREFRATBRRESFITETAR

7

(b)) TEREFTEIARS(E)

(1)

RIB-—FR_TE-_TF+-_F=+
—BYH =T \FrR R ESET
BERFTERMN T ARBRINT

T \FrRESTET AL S
R-TE-—F+-A=+—HEKA_-&E
RNEEEBIEINTE 2 AABELBA
R¥1,594,000/L( T =ZF : AR
22,510,00070) - ERASE I AR RE
E2ERFBARTHEAERAR(ZE
—TFE: R ELENEENARAR)
ETNEENEE  ZARNEEEE
BRAELEEGEN - AELETE
ARFEPTA T B(HE 5 A i 84
Bo-HE_T-_—F+-_/A=1+—H8HIt
FE AREERGAEBRRTERIA
1B 4 25 A R #20,565,00070( — & —
TE: T \FABREHFKSIAR
#68,525,0007T & #T — T — \F Al %
A s AR #13,885,0007T )

BUBXEGEMNS AMEEITETR
oA BER RGN — BT
BERPHANBABERNAT :

At 31.12.2021 At 31.12.2020

R=B=—F RIEZTF

+t=A=+—-H +t-—H=+—"H

Share price f&E HK$1.37 HK$2.33
1.37%8 7T 2.33%570

Exercise price T{EE HK$2.505 HK$2.505
2.5057%8 7T 2.505/5 7T

Expected dividend yield FEAIAR B 4.45% 2.62%
Volatility H IR 55.95% 33.58%
Discount rate BhIR R 12.860% 15.079%
Risk free interest rate IR B A 0.128% 0.088%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (conta)

(b)  Derivative component of convertible bonds (Cont'd)

2

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of
the New 2023 CB at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as
follows:

The fair value of the derivative component of New 2023
CB as at 31 December 2021 derived by using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model were approximately RMB12,297,000
(2020: RMB45,168,000). It was determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation
performed by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited
(2020: Asset Appraisal Limited), a firm of independent
professional valuer with appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative
instruments with reference to market values. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
the fair value gain of RMB32,196,000 (2020: loss of
RMB13,507,000 for 2023 CB and gain of RMB2,965,000
for New 2023 CB) in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The inputs used in the Binomial Option Pricing Model
adopted by the independent professional valuer in
determining the fair values the derivative component of the
2023 CB at the respective dates were as follows:
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At 31.12.2021 At 31.12.2020

R=-B=—F MN-E-FTF

+t=A=+—"H +tZ—A=+—"H

Share price f&E HK$1.37 HK$2.33
1.37%8 7T 2.3357T

Exercise price 1TE(E HK$2.91 HK$2.91
29187t 29177T

Expected dividend yield TEHARR B 4.45% 2.62%
Volatility HIE 38.65% 34.32%
Discount rate BhIR 13.686% 14.834%
Risk free interest rate 478 B 1) 0.509% 0.123%
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30. TERREFRATBRRESFITETAR

7

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE COMPONENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

(b)  Derivative component of convertible bonds (Cont'd)

3)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of
the New Second 2023 CB at 31 December 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

The fair value of the derivative component of New Second
2023 CB as at 31 December 2021 derived by using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model were approximately
RMB12,360,000 (2020: RMB43,934,000). It was
determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to the valuation performed by Vincorn Consulting and
Appraisal Limited (2020: Asset Appraisal Limited), a
firm of independent professional valuer with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar derivative instruments with reference to market
values. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recognised the fair value gain of RMB30,913,000
(2020: gain of RMB21,638,000 for Second 2023 CB) in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The inputs used in the Binomial Option Pricing Model
adopted by the independent professional valuer in
determining the fair values the derivative component of the
Second 2023 CB at the respective dates were as follows:

(b)) TEREFTEIARS(E)

3)
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ETTIH B AT IERR A RERRIAT -

FE S - T - =FaHRESSTET
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A-EXAREERATAECARE
B A ANRE12,360,000L( =%
F: AR¥43,934,000T) - @S E
AR RERZEL B RA LT EER
RE(ZZE_TF  hEEENER
MERARETHEEMEE %A
RIHEE EE A RNE LS 2 ERD
BE2EMEARBETATIAGEFE
BEOSES BE_T-_—F+_A
=+—HIFE  AEBRGEIBERRE
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BUHEEXGEMNSEREESE -
SO FRBBESTTET ARSI AR
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PR A BRI T

At 31.12.2021 At 31.12.2020

R=TB=—F RZZBZTF

+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H

Share price B&(E HK$1.37 HK$2.33
1.378 T 2.33%87C

Exercise price IfEE HK$2.936 HK$2.936
2.93678 T 2.936/5 7T

Expected dividend yield TEHIAR B 4.45% 2.62%
Volatility g 39.466% 33.436%
Discount rate BRIR R 13.041% 11.667%
Risk free interest rate mRE A E 0.636% 0.146%
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31. SENIOR NOTES AND BOND 3. BEAEBRES
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Senior notes and bond comprise: BARBRESBE
— Public senior notes —AABLERIE 3,137,586 3,236,529
— Domestic corporate bond —BARARIGES 1,594,134 2,129,522
4,731,720 5,366,051
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Net carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BRNEEFE 5,366,051 5,027,123
Issue of new senior notes and bonds BITHBERBERES 1,593,740 2,374,579
Less: Early redemption of senior notes B IRATEE R EBAER RES
and bond - (690,855)
Add: Interest charged during the year hn o FAEERALE 481,490 519,199
Less: Interest paid B BAFIE (523,973) (534,792)
Add: Adjustments on change in coupon rate Al : FEE S RES)HNFHE - 1,810
Less: Repayment B (2,111,877) (1,189,991)
Loss on non-substantial modification IEEREFEEIE = 129,571
Exchange differences PEN =% (73,711) (270,593)
Net carrying amount as at 31 December RTZA=+—BENEEFE 4,731,720 5,366,051
Less: Amount due within one year shown W omBBEE TR —FREH
under current liabilities 2508 (1,394,867) (2,129,522)
Amount due after one year R—F1&E| 2 518 3,336,853 3,236,529
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31.

SENIOR NOTES AND BOND (contd)
US$ denominated public senior notes due in 2023

On 20 February 2020, the Group commenced the exchange offer
(“Exchange Offer”) to the holders of the existing US$ denominated
senior notes with principal amount of US$400,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,801,040,000). The Exchange Offer allowed the existing
senior note holders to convert their notes into new notes maturing in
2023 with a coupon rate of 12% per annum. Upon the expiry of the
Exchange Offer on 2 March 2020, senior note holders with an amount
of US$227,390,000 (equivalent to RMB1,587,432,000) had validly
tendered for the exchange and accepted pursuant to the Exchange
Offer. Such amendment was considered as a non-substantial debt
modification and a modification loss of US$18,402,000 (equivalent to
RMB129,571,000) was recognised in other gains and losses during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

On the following day, the Group issued a new series of US$ denominated
senior notes with principal amount of US$222,610,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,547,447,000) at an interest rate of 12% per annum due 2023 (the
“New Issuance”). The interest charged for the period is calculated by
applying an effective interest rate of approximately 12.61% per annum.
The modified notes under the Exchange Offer and the New Issuance
for an aggregate principal amount of US$450,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,134,879,000) were listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX”) on 10 March 2020.

On 30 October 2020, the Issuer (as defined in note 30) issued additional
notes with the aggregate principal amounts of US$20,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB136,277,000), which were to be issued pursuant to an indenture
dated as of 10 March 2020. (collectively known as, the “New Senior
Notes”).

The New Senior Notes are:

(a) carried interest at rate of 12% per annum and interest is payable
semi-annually in arrears on 10 March and 10 September of each
year, commencing from 10 September 2020 and will mature on
10 March 2023, unless redeemed earlier pursuant to the terms
thereof;

(b)  senior in right of payment to any existing and future obligations of
the Issuer expressly subordinated in right of payment to the New
Senior Notes;

(c)  at least pari passu in right of payment with all unsecured,
unsubordinated indebtedness of the Issuer (subject to any priority
rights of such unsecured unsubordinated indebtedness pursuant
to applicable law);

(d) guaranteed by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company (collectively the “Guarantors”) on a senior basis, subject
to certain limitations;
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31.

SENIOR NOTES AND BOND (cont'd)
US$ denominated public senior notes due in 2023 (Cont'd)

(e) effectively subordinated to the secured obligations if any, of the
Issuer and the Guarantors, to the extent of the value of the assets
serving as security therefor; and

(f) effectively subordinated to all existing and future obligations of the
subsidiaries of the Company other than the Guarantors.

At any time prior to 10 March 2023, the Issuer may at its option to
redeem the New Senior Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100.0% of the principal amount of the Senior Notes
plus the applicable premium as defined in the offering memorandum
of the Company dated 30 October 2020 (“Applicable Premium”) as
of, and accrued and unpaid interest (if any) to (but not including), the
redemption date.

“Applicable Premium” means with respect to any New Senior Notes at
any redemption date, the greater of (i) 1.00% of the principal amount
of such Senior Notes and (i) the excess of the present value at such
redemption date of the principal amount of such New Senior Notes on
10 March 2023, plus all required remaining scheduled interest payments
due on such Senior Notes through 10 March 2023 (but excluding
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis points,
over the principal amount of such Senior Notes on such redemption
date.

At any time and from time to time prior to 10 March 2023, the Issuer
may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the New
Senior Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of common
stock of the Company in an equity offering at a redemption price of
108.5% of the principal amount of the Senior Notes, plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date; provided that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of
the Senior Notes originally issued on the original issue date remains
outstanding after each such redemption and any such redemption takes
place within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

Early redemption option is regarded as embedded derivative not closely
related to the host contract. The directors of the Company consider that
the fair value of the above early redemption options is insignificant at
initial recognition date, 31 December 2020 and 2021.

The fair value of the New Senior Notes at 31 December 2021 amounted
to RMB2,082,622,000 (2020: RMB3,050,848,000). The fair value is
calculated by using the quoted price based on SGX at the end of the
reporting period (or the nearest day of trading).
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31.

SENIOR NOTES AND BOND (conta)

RMB denominated domestic corporate honds due in 2021 and 2026

On 26 August 2016, a subsidiary of the Company, Zhengxinglong
Real Estate (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Zhengxinglong”) issued a
domestic corporate bond (the “Bond”) with a principal amount of
RMB2,600,000,000 and repaid in full during the year ended 31
December 2021. The Bond is listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(“SZX"). The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an
effective interest rate of approximately 6.63% per annum since the Bond
were issued.

On 29 July 2021, China Securities Regulatory Commission has approved
the issue of 2021 domestic corporate bonds (“2021 Domestic Corporate
Bonds”) with a nominal value of not more than RMB2,100,000,000
by Zhengxinglong. On 16 August 2021, Zhengxinglong completed the
public issue of the first tranche of the 2021 Domestic Corporate Bonds
(the “First Tranche Domestic Bonds”) to professional investors with a
principal amount of RMB1,600,000,000. The First Tranche Domestic
Bonds were classified into two types, both with a term of 5 years. The
issue size of type 1 is RMB1,400,000,000 with a coupon rate of 8.5%
(“Type 1 Bond”), and the issue size of type 2 is RMB200,000,000 with
a coupon rate of 8.8% (“Type 2 Bond”). The First Tranche Domestic
Bonds are listed in SZX.

Zhengxinglong has an option to increase the coupon rate at the end of
the first and third year for Type 1 Bond, and at the end of second and
forth year for Type 2 Bond. Zhengxinglong will make an announcement
of the determination on the coupon rate adjustment and irrespective
of whether adjustment will be made or not, the investor can exercise
retractable option at the end of the first and third year for Type 1 Bond
and at the end of second and fourth year for Type 2 Bond. The interest
charged for the year is calculated by applying an effective interest rate
of approximately 8.64% per annum since the First Tranche Domestic
Bonds were issued.

The fair value of the First Tranche Domestic Bonds as at 31 December
2021 is RMB1,600,000,000 with reference to the quoted market price
on SZX at the end of the reporting period (the last trading day prior to 31
December 2021).
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32.

33.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Pursuant to the relocation and compensation agreement for urban
redevelopment projects, the Group agreed to compensate the original
residents with completed properties of respective urban redevelopment
projects upon completion of redevelopment. The estimated future
completion cost incurred for construction of these completed properties
is accounted as a provision, with a corresponding increase in properties
under development for sale. The provision will be released upon those
completed properties have been delivered to the original residents.
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32. HitERBEE

REBEWHEERR 2 REHERR  AKERER
BUETERRIRIAR IR M BE IR B Z B 2R R E
RIEHEEE  WMEZEETKYEEEZBFIARRK
TR ERBRAR  MERPASDEERER
e BERR RERRZNZED TRy EERR -

SHARE CAPITAL 33. B’
2021 2020
-k —E-TE
Number Number
of shares HK$'000 RMB'000 of shares HK$'000 RMB'000
BH#E TER ARETT S ThL ARETT
Authorised share capital of ARAEERA
the Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ SREE0.01ETTH)
LBk 30,000,000,000 300,000 240,000 30,000,000,000 300,000 240,000
Issued and fully paid share capital  AATRETRER
of the Company: A
Ordinary shares of FHEE0.0
HK$0.01 each ETHEER
At 1 January W—A-AH 5,096,903,975 50,968 42,458 5,000,459,611 50,504 42,060
Exercise of share options TiEEERE
(note 36) (H#36) 800,000 8 1 8,808,000 88 79
Conversion of convertible JEATAR
preference shares (note) Brk(Hiz) - - - 37,636,364 376 319
At 31 December R+=A=1+—H 5,097,703,975 50,976 42,465 5,096,903,975 50,968 42,458

Note: On 23 January 2020 and 10 August 2020, 13,636,364 and 24,000,000
shares of convertible preference shares issued on 30 November 2015 have
been converted into ordinary shares at the conversion price of HK$2.06 per
conversion preference share respectively.

Hlat : R-ZE-FF-—A-+=ZAR-Z-_ZFF/\HA+
B 5 51/513,636,364M% 524,000,000/ 70 — F —
hFE+—A=TAZTHAARELEKREZESRA
R AR SR 2,065 L 0 ST MR ST A0 A

B2 (FEHERESRAR
T —FFHR
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34. RESERVES

34. f#E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E=—F —E_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥T T AREFTT
Share premium &t B 7,163,036 7,161,195
Convertible preference shares AT ARG B SR AR (i) 5,999,201 5,999,201
Other reserves Efhi#E (ii) (3,134,531) (3,134,531)
Exchange reserve M S i 291,723 201,837
Investment revaluation reserve W& BB 44,336 82,464
Share option reserve (note 36) RERCRERE (R (AY7E36) 202,571 203,207
Statutory reserve SETE R (iii) 415,358 367,316
Retained profits 1REB & F 14,905,103 13,800,569
25,886,797 24,681,258

Notes: Kz -

The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial
statements. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as follows:

(i) On 30 November 2015, the Company issued convertible preference
shares (the “2015 CPS”) at issue price of HK$2.06 per share, of which
3,413,473,023 CPS were issued to Mr. Wong for aggregate consideration
of HK$7,031,754,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,959,114,000) as
consideration for the Transaction as defined in note 34 (ii)(b).

Key terms of the 2015 CPS

Holders of the 2015 CPS will be entitled to receive notices of and to
attend the general meetings of the Company but are not permitted
to vote unless a resolution is proposed to vary the rights of holders
of the 2015 CPS or a resolution is proposed for the winding up of
the Company;

Holders of the 2015 CPS have the right to convert each 2015
CPS at any time into one ordinary share of the Company without
the payment of any additional consideration. The holders may not
exercise the conversion right if upon the conversion, the percentage
of ordinary shares held by the public will fall below the minimum
public float requirement under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules. The
shares that are issued upon the exercise of the conversion right of
the 2015 CPS are not subject to any restriction;

The 2015 CPS cannot be redeemed by the Company or its holder;

Holders of 2015 CPS will have priority over the holders of ordinary
shares of the Company on the assets and funds of the Company
available for distribution in a distribution of assets on liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company;
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34. RESERVES (conta)

Notes: (Cont'd)
(i) (Cont'd)
Key terms of the 2015 CPS (Cont’d)

o Subject to compliance with all applicable laws and the article of
association of the Company, each 2015 CPS shall confer on its
holder the right to receive a preferred distribution from the date of
the issue of the 2015 CPS at a rate of 0.2% per annum, payable
annually in arrear. Such preferred distribution is non-cumulative.
The board of directors may, in its sole discretion, elect to defer
or not to pay a preferred distribution. No interest accrues on
any unpaid preferred distribution. If the board of directors of the
Company elects to defer or not to pay a preferred distribution, the
Company cannot pay any dividends, distributions or make any other
payment to any ordinary shares of the Company.

On 7 February 2018, the Company entered into the Convertible Preference
Shares (the “2018 CPS”) subscription agreement with Silver Sure (BVI)
Investments Limited, an independent third party to the Group as the 2018
CPS subscriber pursuant to which the 2018 CPS subscriber agreed to
subscribe for 132,564,669 new CPS at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$389.47 million (equivalent to RMB325.56 million). The
allotment and issue of 2018 CPS was completed on 21 February 2018.

Key terms of the 2018 CPS

3 Holders of the 2018 CPS will be entitled to receive notices of and to
attend the general meetings of the Company but are not permitted
to vote unless a resolution is proposed to vary the rights of holders
of the 2018 CPS or a resolution is proposed for the winding up of
the Company;

o Holders of the 2018 CPS have the right to convert each 2018
CPS at any time into one ordinary share of the Company without
the payment of any additional consideration. The holders may not
exercise the conversion right if upon the conversion, the percentage
of ordinary shares held by the public will fall below the minimum
public float requirement under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules. The
shares that are issued upon the exercise of the conversion right of
the 2018 CPS are not subject to any restriction;

o The 2018 CPS cannot be redeemed by the Company or its holder;
and

o Holders of 2018 CPS will have priority over the holders of ordinary
shares of the Company on the assets and funds of the Company
available for distribution in a distribution of assets on liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company;
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34. RESERVES (conta)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

(Cont'd)

The details of the 2018 CPS are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 February 2018.

The 2018 CPS and 2015 CPS are classified as equity instruments in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have a
contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets arising from
the issue of the 2018 CPS and 2015 CPS.

On 23 January 2020 and 10 August 2020, 13,636,364 and 24,000,000
2015 CPS have been converted into ordinary shares at the conversion price
of HK$2.06 per conversion preference share respectively. Up to the date of
the authorisation for issue of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021, no 2018 CPS has been converted
into ordinary shares of the Company.

Other reserves mainly comprise:

(a) A deemed contribution of an amount of HK$1,007,864,525
(equivalent to approximately RMB806,292,000) by China LVGEM,
the then immediate holding company of the Company, to acquire
approximately 75% of the then aggregate issued share capital of the
Company on 8 May 2014 (the “Acquisition”).

(b) A deemed distribution of an amount of HK$13,785,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB11,682,204,000) to Mr. Wong,
to acquire the entire equity interests in Green View Holding
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Target Group”) (the “Transaction”). The Transaction
was completed on 30 November 2015. The amount of deemed
distribution comprised of issuance of 2,509,342,511 new
ordinary shares at issue price of HK$2.06 per ordinary share of
the Company amounted to HK$5,169,246,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,380,717,000), issuance of 3,413,473,023
convertible preference shares at issue price of HK$2.06 per
convertible preference shares amounted to HK$7,031,754,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB5,959,114,000), and cash
consideration of HK$1,584,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,342,373,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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34. RESERVES (conta)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(i)

Other reserves mainly comprise: (Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The difference between the aggregate amount of share capital
and share premium of the Target Group and the Company at
the completion date of the Transaction, which amounted to
approximately RMB433,106,000.

On 28 December 2018, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Mr. Wong to subscribe 90.1% equity interests in
Copious Favour Holdings Limited (“Copious Favour”), an investment
holding company wholly owned by Mr. Wong and Copious Favour
indirectly holds 44% equity interests in Zhuhai LVGEM Donggiao
Investment Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai LVGEM Donggiao”), which is a 51%
owned indirect subsidiary of the Company. Upon completion of
the subscription on 28 December 2018, Copious Favour became
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, while the Group’s
equity interests in Zhuhai LVGEM Donggiao increased from 51% to
90.64%.

The difference between subscription amount and the attributable
net liabilities being acquired was included in other reserves.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, LVGEM (Suzhou) Real
Estate Investment Company Limited (“LVGEM Suzhou”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group as the purchaser entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with the non-controlling
shareholder of Prosper View Group Limited (“PVGL"), an investment
holding company non-wholly owned by the Group, to acquire
remaining 49% equity interest of PVGL at the consideration of
RMB29,410,000.

Upon completion of the transaction on 15 January 2020, PVGL
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, while the
Group’s effective equity interests in Prosper View increased from
51% to 100%. The difference between the consideration and the
non-controlling interests acquired was included in other reserves.
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34. RESERVES (conta)

Notes: (Cont'd)
(ii) Other reserves mainly comprise: (Cont'd)

(f) On 25 August 2020, Greater Bay Area Intelligent City Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“the Subscriber”),
Affluent Trade Investments Limited (“Affluent Trade”), Multiple
Ally Limited (“Multiple Ally”), and Victor Success Investments
Limited (“Victor Success”), and Mr. Wong, entered into subscription
agreements (“Subscription Agreements”). Upon completion of the
share subscription, Affluent Trade will be owned as to 70% and
30% by the Subscriber and Mr. Wong respectively, Victor Success
will be owned as to 75% and 25% by the Subscriber and Mr. Wong
respectively, and Multiple Ally will be owned as to 75% and 25%
by the Subscriber and Mr. Wong respectively and ICDL and its
subsidiaries became non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group.

The difference between the consideration paid which was nil by way
of share subscription and the attributable identifiable fair value of
the net asset acquired on those additional equity interest of 55%
of RMB8,496,395,000 were included in other reserves as capital
contribution by Mr. Wong. For details of the transaction, please refer
to note 35.

(iii) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland China,
certain subsidiaries of the Company in the Mainland China are required
to maintain a statutory reserve which is non-distributable other than upon
the liquidation of the entity. Transfer to this reserve is made out of profit
after tax of the Mainland China subsidiaries’ statutory financial statements
which are prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the Mainland China.

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

As detailed in the announcement of the Company dated 25 August
2020, the Subscriber, Affluent Trade, Multiple Ally, and Victor Success,
and Mr. Wong, entered into Subscription Agreements.

Before the transaction, each of Affluent Trade, Victor Success and
Multiple Ally was wholly owned by Mr. Wong and indirectly holds 25%,
24% and 26% equity interests in ICDL, respectively.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreements, the Subscriber agreed to
subscribe for, and each of Affluent Trade, Victor Success and Multiple
Ally agreed to issue its shares in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Subscription Agreements.
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35.

ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreements, the consideration for the
share subscription of Affluent Trade, Victor Success, and Multiple Ally
were RMB1,200,000, RMB1,380,000 and RMB1,490,000, respectively,
which shall be payable by the Subscriber to each of Affluent Trade,
Victor Success and Multiple Ally in cash at completion, respectively.

Upon completion of the transaction, Affluent Trade is owned as to
70% and 30% by the Subscriber and Mr. Wong respectively, Victor
Success is owned as to 75% and 25% by the Subscriber and Mr. Wong
respectively, and Multiple Ally is owned as to 75% and 25% by the
Subscriber and Mr. Wong respectively. Each of Affluent Trade, Victor
Success and Multiple Ally will become a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Prior to the transaction, ICDL was indirectly owned as
to 25% by the Company and 25%, 24% and 26% by Affluent Trade,
Victor Success and Multiple Ally, respectively. After the completion, ICDL
becomes a subsidiary of the Company.

As it is an asset acquisition achieved in stages, the 25% equity interests
of ICDL, which previously accounted as an interest in an associate by
the Group, is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), resulting gain in connection with
the deemed disposal of the then associate of RMB3,893,561,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

As there is no actual cash outflow by the Group arising from the
abovementioned transaction, the attributable identifiable fair value of
the net asset acquired, representing additional 55% equity interests of
ICDL, of RMB8,496,395,000, were included in other reserves as capital
contribution by Mr. Wong.

ICDL and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in urban renewal
development project in Baishizhou which is located on Shennan
Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen City and in proximity to Science
Park and the sub-district of Overseas Chinese Town, and is regarded
as a megasized urban renewal project in Shenzhen. According to the
approved specific development plan endorsed by relevant government
authority, the project has a capacity area of 3.58 million square meters
and will be developed in four phases.
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35.

ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

The fair value of individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed for the acquisition was determined by the management of the
Group, with support from Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, which is a firm of independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group. Specifically, direct comparison
approach was used for the valuation of properties under development for
sale, which was the most significant asset acquired by the Group. The
fair value of the properties under development for sale was determined
by reference to comparable market transactions, and deducting
estimated costs in obtaining the land, including estimated outstanding
land premium charge to be paid to relevant government authority for
acquisition of land use right, the unpaid cost of housing demolition,
relocation and resettlement, the construction costs of resettlement
housing, finance costs and professional fees and the developer’s profit
margin of the aforesaid costs. Developer’s profit margin reflects the
remaining risks associated with the acquisition of land use right at the
acquisition date and the return that the developer would require for
bringing the project to completion status, which is determined based
on recent land transactions in the similar locations. Such fair value was
further adjusted by a risk discount considering the housing demolition,
relocation and resettlement were still in progress. The risk discount factor
was the arithmetic weighted mean of the estimated progress rate by area
(i.e. the signing completion rate of relocation agreement with original
residents) and the expected time to complete the housing demolition,
relocation and settlement determined by management of the Group.
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35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH

BT+ A=+—HAIFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

The acquisition was completed on 25 August 2020.

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition at fair value:

e IR M R

35. ZRWEHBARWREEREE®

WHEEEER S _SF ) \A-TAHZK °

REBRARZARBERRZEERAE

RMB’000
ARETFT

Assets EE
Investment properties A 16,200
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Rk 427
Properties under development for sale ERPGEWME 22,104,534

Equity instruments at fair value through other RARBEFAEMEAREZBRATA

comprehensive income 48,042
Deferred tax assets FEFIBEE E 49,767
Accounts receivable FEUSBE X 8,079
Deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables EfES - FENFIERE M ERGRIE 949,871
Restricted bank deposits TR EIERITFER 923,110
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIAS 114,618
24.214.648

Liabilities 8&
Accounts payable FERTBRIR 115,668
Accruals, deposits received and other payables FEAER - Clike REMERNTRIE 947,301
Borrowings EE 2,733,000
Other non-current liabilities Hih3EmsaE 4,931,234
8,727,203
Net assets EEFE 15,487,445
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35.

36.

ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Capital contribution from controlling shareholder arising on acquisition:

35.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

ERWEHBLARAWBEEREGE®

Wi SIRE AR T E -

RMB’000
ARETIT
Consideration transferred BEEAE -
Plus: interest in an associate hn o A —FEEE A A Rl A e
— previously held interest at fair value — ERIRARBERFANER 3,871,861
— share of net liabilities previously held — D MEERFENAEFE 21,700
Plus: non-controlling interests at proportionate share hn s iz B 15 B IS F B B 2 JEE IR
of net assets acquired 3,097,489
Less: net assets acquired B B EERE (15,487,445)
8,496,395
RMB’000
ARETT
Net cash inflows arising on acquisition and cash IS BIHE £ MR &R ASFRA K&
and cash equivalent balances acquired: BUER S RIRS EEWER 114,618

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 14 November
2005 expired on 13 November 2015. On 2 June 2016, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2016.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of directors may, at its discretion,
invite any executive or non-executive directors including independent
non-executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies;
any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established by any
employees, executive or non-executive directors of each member of the
Group or its associated companies; any consultants, professional and
other advisers to each member of the Group or its associated companies
(or persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed for providing
such services); any chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company; any associates of any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company; and any employees (whether full-time or
part-time) of substantial shareholders of the Company, provided that the
board of directors may have absolute discretion to determine whether
or not one falls within the above categories, (together, the “Participants”
and each a “Participant”), to take up options (“Option(s)”) to subscribe
for shares at a price determined in accordance with the paragraph
below.
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36.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (contd)

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the board of
directors would take into account such factors as the board of directors
may at its discretion consider appropriate.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the date on which the Scheme is adopted, after which
period no further Options will be granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect, and
Options which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant.

The exercise price of a share in relation to each Option granted under
the Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the board of directors
and notified to a Participant and shall be at least the highest of:

(a)  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the business day on which
an offer is accepted by the grantee or if such date of acceptance
by the grantee is not a business day, the immediately preceding
business day;

(b) a price being the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date on
which an offer is accepted by the grantee (provided that the new
issue price shall be used as the closing price for any business
day falling within the period before listing of the shares where the
Company has been listed for less than five business days as at the
date on which an offer is accepted by the grantee); and

(c)  the nominal value of a Company’s share.

The total number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
Options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of commencement of dealings in
the shares on the Stock Exchange (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), unless
the Company obtains an approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating such 10% limit. As at the date of this annual
report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
was 285,800,000 shares, representing approximately 5.61% of the total
shares as at the date of the annual report.
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36.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (cont«d)

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme, the maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme and the option to which the Offer relates
shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken effect when
the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the Offer
duly signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting thereof is
received by the Company within 30 days from the date upon which the
Offer is made.

On 28 June 2016, the Company granted share options under the
Scheme to certain Participants which will enable the Grantees to
subscribe for a total of 285,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company.
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36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (conta) 36. RGO ZNMNESHM =)

Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme ARARMBRBZTEAREOERERR - —F+
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December —A=+—BERZZE_ZTEE+-_A=+—HEKT
2020 are as follows: ERIERIESFIBAOT ¢

Number of options
EREHA

Balance at Transfer Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
Exercisable 1 January during during during during 31 December price per
Date of grant period 2021 the year the year the year the year 2021 share
R=%=-% R=2=-%
-R-8 TZA=1-A
BHAg friEZm MEsR  RERBE  RERRE  RERGR  RERAR hes  BROEE
(defmmdyyyy) — (ddimmyyyy) (Note 4) HKS
(R/A/%) (B/B/%) (liit4) BT

Executive directors (Note 1) YAEZ(MF) 28062016 280612016t 10,500,000 - - - - 10,500,000 1,846
27/06/2026
28/06/2016%
2710612026

Executive directors (Note 2) YEZ(HH2) 28/06/2016  28/06/2017t0 10,500,000 - - - - 10,500,000 1.846
27106/2026
28/06/2017%
27/06/2026

Executive directors (Note 3) YTEE(ME3) 280602016 28/06/2018t0 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000 1.846
27106/2026
28/06/2018%
2710612026

Employees (Note 1) RE(H#1) 28/06/2016  28/06/2016t0 60,750,000 - - - - 60,750,000 1.846
27/06/2026
28/06/2016%
2710612026

Employees (Note 2) EEWH2) 28/06/2016  28/06/2017t0 61,430,000 - - (320,000) - 61,110,000 1.846
27106/2026
28/06/2017%
27/06/2026

Employees (Note 3) EE(Hit3) 28/06/2016  28/06/2018t0 81,960,000 - = (480,000) - 81,480,000 1.846
27106/2026
28/06/2018%
2710612026

Others (Note 1) Eh(Hi1) 28/06/2016  28/06/2016t0 3,900,000 - - - - 3,900,000 1.846
27/06/2026
28/06/2016%
2710612026

QOthers (Note 2) Eh (i) 28/06/2016  28/06/2017 to 900,000 - - -
27106/2026
28/06/2017%
27/06/2026

Others (Note 3) E(Hi23) 28/06/2016  28/06/2018t0 1,200,000 - - -
27106/2026
28/06/2018%
2710612026

900,000 1.846

1,200,000 1,846

245,140,000 = = (800,000) - 244,340,000

Bxercisable at the end of the period ~ EIRR F476E 244,340,000
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36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (contd)

Date of grant

Bt R E
(ddmmiyyyy)
(B/R/%)

Exercisable

period

&l
(dd/mmiyyyy)
(B/R/%)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—

36. RGN ESEHMH o

Number of options

EEas

Balance at

Transfer
during
the year

RERER

Granted
during
the year

RERFH

Exercised
during
the year

RERTE
(Note 4)
(Hi#4)

Lapsed
during
the year

RERER

Balance at
31 December

—Ft=A=t-ALFE

Exercise
price per
share

BRIRE
HK$
AT

Executive directors (Note 1)

Executive directors (Note 2)

Executive directors (Note 3)

Employees (Note 1)

Employees (Note 2)

Employees (Note 3)

Others (Note 1)

Others (Note 2)

Others (Note 3)

ATES(WEL) 280612016

HITES(MH2) 28062016

YIER(WH3) 2800612016

B8 (Hit1) 28/06/2016

BE(H22) 28/06/2016

E&(HZ3) 28/06/2016

Azl 28/06/2016

Ef(iz2) 28/06/2016

Hth(Hi3) 2806/2016

28/06/2016 to
2710612026
28/06/2016%
27106/2026
28/06/2017 to
27106/2026
2/06/2017%
2710612026
28/06/2018 to
27106/2026
28/06/2018%
27106/2026
28/06/2016 o
2710612026
28/06/2016%
27106/2026
28/06/2017 to
27106/2026
2/06/2017%
2710612026
28/06/2018 to
27106/2026
28/06/2018%
27106/2026
28/06/2016 o
2710612026
28/06/2016%
27106/2026
28/06/2017 to
27106/2026
2/06/2017%
2710612026
28/06/2018 to
27106/2026
28/06/2018%
27106/2026

10,500,000

10,500,000

14,000,000

63,510,000

63,870,000

85,568,000

3,900,000

900,000

1,200,000

(2,760,000

(2,440,000)

(3,608,000)

10,500,000

10,500,000

14,000,000

60,750,000

61,430,000

81,960,000

3,900,000

900,000

1,200,000

1.846

1.846

1.846

1846

1.846

1.846

1.846

1.846

1.846

253,948,000

(8,808,000)

245,140,000

Exercisable at the end of the period

FAU TR

245,140,000
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36.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (conta)

Note 1:  The options were vested immediately on the date of grant.

Note 2:  The options granted are subject to the vesting period from the date of
grant up to 27 June 2017.

Note 3:  The options granted are subject to the vesting period from the date of
grant up to 27 June 2018.

Note 4:  The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise for share

options during the year was HK$2.22 (2020: HK$2.62) per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 800,000 shares (2020:
8,808,000 shares) were exercised at RMB1,212,000 (2020:
RMB14,574,000).

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 28 June
2016, the date of grant, was HK$1.820.

There is no performance condition for the Options to vest.

The fair values of the Options determined at the date of grant using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model were HK$276,156,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB236,030,000). During the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, no expense was incurred in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the best estimate of the
directors of the Company. Changes in variables and assumptions may
result in changes in the fair value of the Options.

36.
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37.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Hong Kong

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme.

The Mainland China

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the government of the Mainland China. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries of their employees to
the state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme contributions amounted
to RMB35,408,000 (2020: RMB8,085,000). No forfeited contributions
have been used to reduce the level of contributions in both years.

200 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

37.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

RAKBERETE
&8

AEEEZN—BEREAEEEZEEBRILZAE
~EeE(RESAE ) - B B ERER
AR S T EGAIERFIE LB B EERE
it - RESFHBZEERAEB 2 EED FRIE
MBELETEAER ESTE - BEREDHE
HE BERBEADRIZRAIEE 2 R 8iE
DEEIEFN - AEEpRESFEARELEEER
RIRERE S A BIVEHIEE 5K -

BiEaBaRT MR A WRED B L RIKEFG
BRI ARBIRZABRAFTAZ L RERAE
&2 AR

FREI Rt

ANER BT B A 3 PR JBS 1 B 2 i B 2 B e B s IURT
BEZBERERRKENE - HBAREARREE
Feh THERBREREMBHNTEMHZR - K
5 B3 LR IR AR R BIAIE 2 B EERNR B ZAT
EERTEEH -

FRN - ORINEAEBIHFUR AR 35,408,0007T(—
T _FF : AR¥S8,085,0007) « REEFER -
BHE RS U TR A ROBUE AR FRKF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

38.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing properties commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristic of
the underlying assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio.
For this purpose the net debt is defined as borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain
a net debt to equity ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group’s overall strategy in capital management remains unchanged
from prior year.

38.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

MERREENBEREBE

OBJECTIVES
Categories of financial instruments @I AR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN AT ENSREE 8,264,773 10,586,447
Equity instruments at fair value through other & RQA R BEFF ALt EmEKES 2 BRAT A
comprehensive income 450,423 501,261
Financial liabilities sRas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost IR A EN SR EE 36,421,859 32,392,095
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMTE 26,251 111,612
Lease liabilities HEAE 164,475 102,373

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: currency risk,
interest rate risk, price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group currently does not have any written
risk management policies and guidelines. However, the directors of
the Company meet periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are described below.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.1

e MR E

MBEREERNBERRE @

Currency risk 39.1 E¥@Ek
Certain subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency AArlETHEARI BB EE RAGBINE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose the FHE - MASEEBRIMNERR - AEEBERIE
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not have |EDFINERPE ZIRCR - AT - BEEERY)
a policy to hedge the foreign currency exposure. However, the BLf ﬁ?ﬁﬁl\ ERE) - WRABZREEERID
management monitors the related foreign currency fluctuation FEIR BRI G K LA R E R SNE RS -
closely and will consider entering into foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge significant portion of the foreign currency risk
should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency NEBUINESHEZ EEENEE A ERR
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the SEHBZEREBERNT ¢
reporting date as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 8%
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EB-—F =% —E-—F ==
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT ARET T AREFT
Us$ =5 110,726 200,714 3,867,825 3,872,213
HKS BIT 454,398 320,410 2,470,068 2.436,163
Sensitivity analysis BRRE ST

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of US$ and HKS.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign currency.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to directors of the Company’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items assuming the balances at the
end of the reporting period outstanding for the whole year and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in
profit where RMB strengthen 5% against the relevant currency.
For a 5% weakening of RMB against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and the
balances below would be negative.
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BURE - 5% BAA R R E SR EERING
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BURRENITEERAINEN T Z WA NE
HR (BRASHRESREEFEREE)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.1

39.2

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

39. BiIEMEENRERBE®)

Currency risk (Cont'd) 39.1 E¥@ER(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd) BERE ST ()
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
us$ Epw
Profit or loss b=k 140,891 137,344
HK$ BT
Profit or loss B 75,588 79,341
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EEERE  ARFEREBRTREFARE
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year R E DT ARERRAERNINERE
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
Interest rate risk 39.2 FZ@EK

The Group has significant borrowings (see note 29 for details)
with floating interest rate which are exposed to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Certain bank loans and certain other borrowings, certain
restricted bank deposits, certain bank balances, convertible
bonds, senior notes and bond, and lease liabilities (see note 28
for details) carried at fixed rate which exposed the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. During the year, the Group has not hedged
its cash flow and fair value interest rate risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 (2020: 50) basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to directors of the Company’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being
undertaken globally, including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly risk-free rates.
Details of the impacts on the Group’s risk management strategy
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform and the progress
towards implementation of alternative benchmark interest rates
are set out under “interest rate benchmark reform” in this note.
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BE_T—

A=t ALEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.2

39.3

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

If interest rates had been 50 (2020: 50) basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the year would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB46,817,000 (2020: RMB14,490,000), net of interest that
would be capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy.

Sensitivity analysis on bank deposits is not presented as the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s exposure to
interest rate fluctuations on bank deposits is insignificant.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in
note 43.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its accounts
and other receivables, amounts due from a joint venture,
related companies and non-controlling interests, and amount
of contingent liabilities in relation to the financial guarantees
provided by the Group. The amounts presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowances
for credit losses, estimated by the Group’s management based on
prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers, except for amounts due from a joint venture, related
parties and non-controlling interests of RMB769,099,000 (2020:
RMB786,155,000) in aggregate as at 31 December 2021. The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the funds have been
deposited with various creditworthy financial institutions located in
Hong Kong and the Mainland China.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. BiBEREENBRERBE @)
OBJECTIVES (conta)

393 FERBREEMNMEE)

39.3 Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company
considered that the default risk for other receivables, amounts due
from a joint venture, related parties and non-controlling interests
is very low due to their sound credit worthiness, financial position
and historical repayment records.

For amount due from a joint venture, the management of the
Group assessed the profitability of the underlying project of the
joint venture and its recoverability. Due to its profitability, the
directors of the Company considered that the default risk is low.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

For properties under development which are subject to pre-sales
agreements, the Group generally typically provides guarantees
to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties for
certain amount of the total purchase price of the property. If a
purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the
term of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand
the Group to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any
accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group
is able to forfeit the customer's purchase deposit and sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank.
Therefore, the management considers it would likely recover
any loss incurred arising from the guarantee by the Group. The
management considers the credit risk exposure to financial
guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited because
the facilities are secured by the properties and the market prices
of the properties are higher than the guaranteed amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model for lease receivables with significant balances
individually.

As at 31 December 2021, the lifetime ECL of account
receivables recognised is approximately RMB68,873,000 (2020:
RMB40,617,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND MERREENBEREBE@

OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.4 Liquidity risk 394 RBELER

Despite uncertainties mentioned in note 3.1, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its cash flow requirements in the next
twelve months. The directors of the Company are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group does not have any
significant liquidity risk exposure.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term
financial liabilities.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the non-derivative financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on current rates at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflows based on the earliest period
in which the Group can be required to pay, that is if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other bank borrowings
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMB MR

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. BiBEREENBRERBE @)

OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd) 394 FBESEKE)

Total
Weighted Less than After 1 After 2 contractual
average 1 year year but years but undiscounted
effective oron less than less than After cash Carrying
interest rate demand 2 years 5 years 5 years flows amount
i 352 —ERR —EHE MELL ATRELN
SRS RER MELR BEEUR I%#k BRERELE REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥®TR AR¥Tx
2021 —E--F
Financial liahilities SHAE
Accounts payable TR - 3642441 - - - 3642441 3,642,441
Accruals and other [T ER REMER
payables T - 1,591,715 - - - 1,591,715 1,591,715
Borrowings EE 541 8,466,691 3,633,032 13,908,185 3,383,110 29,391,018 24,993,731
Senior notes and bond BEZBREHR 10.10 1,896,189 3,512,974 - - 5,409,163 4,731,720
Convertible bonds BRES 13.55 606,672 1,149,260 - - 1,755,932 1,488,503*
Leases liabilities HEEE 8.83 31,045 25,364 55,699 153,750 265,858 164,475
Financial guarantee RBERAEN
contracts (note 43) (H543) 1,814,427 - - - 1,814,427 -
18,049,180 8,320,630 13,963,884 3,536,860 43,870,554 36,612,585
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39. BIXEKREENBEREE®)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

394 REBELER(E)

Total
Weighted Less than After 1 After 2 contractual
average 1 year year but years but undiscounted
effective oron less than less than After cash Carrying
interest rate demand 2 years 5 years 5 years flows amount
ETH —FR5% —FLE RELA £ ATREH
BIRA= BEX EAR BFMA T4k RengELE RHEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARBTT ARt ARETT ARETT AR%Tx
2020 —T-%
Financial liabilities cHARE
Accounts payable BRI - 1,262,086 = = = 1,262,086 1,262,086
Accruals and other [T B R R EAER
payables I - 479,495 - - - 479,495 479,495
Borrowings Fi% 5.76 9,120,355 4417788 11,466,582 1,537,982 26,542,707 23,864,489
Senior notes and bond TEERES 9.70 2,591,472 368,004 3,250,705 - 6,210,181 5,366,051
Convertible bonds —W’H&%# 13.48 95,465 97,029 1,874,989 - 2,067,483 1,531,586*
Leases liabilities HEAE 9.50 26,226 26,226 54,663 41,949 149,064 102,373
Financial guarantee IBERAN
contracts (note 43) (H1:#43) - 2128831 = = - 2128831 =
15,703,930 4909,047 16,646,939 1,579,931  38839,847 32,606,080

*

The carrying amount of the convertible bonds disclosed here

includes the carrying amount of the related derivative components.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle

under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on the expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be

* Ut B2 45 BB 1) AR AR (B R BR T (B 2 45 AR B 0T A2
TEBDIREE

EEF ABBHEARE HNFIAR MR S5 )58
AEBER  AEERBRHIREEEREAEX
MRS LR - BRGSHRES  F5ER
RIBEZPRZENZFIAN R BEIERIE - A
i - EfhET AR R - BURRNSRA B AR
BRMEZRNR ZHHEXEERRMBRER

payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject RGBS AT BB 1% o
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of term
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The directors believe that such term loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

Maturity analysis of term loans subject to a repayment on demand

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

39. BiIEMEENRERBE®)

394 HRBHELEM(E)

T RBUALPH A RE SEE R i e R TR E
RipEE | R EENE BN BE DT - %
ZoHEBERENMNEAENFERE -
It ZESWEA L HR DT [HRER R
BMEEARENSERD - EXRNEE NI
MR - EERRRIT IR RITRERBESR
SRENEFEHR - BHEAREZEERETHRER
R O BEE B 5k B HEE -

MAERERERERNEREFEREERR

clause based on scheduled repayments is as follows:

HHEBEATMOT

Total
On Less than 6to 1to5 undiscounted Carrying
demand 6 months 12 months years cash flows amount
~MEAZE RFRRE
RER  DORAER +t=EB —FZaF REAE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TE AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%¥TrR
31 December 2021 —ZT=——%£
+=A=+—H - 192,075 688,004 191,088 1,071,167 1,045,710
31 December 2020 —ZT-TF
+=A=+—H - 937,620 637,911 16,368 1,591,899 1,568,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—

A=t ALEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.5

39.6

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in connection with equity
instrument at FVTOCI. The Group closely monitors the fluctuation
of the trading prices and value of underlying assets and assesses
the impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

If prices of equity security has been 5% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s investment
revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB16,891,000 (2020: RMB18,797,000).

The Group was also exposed to other price risk arising from the
outstanding derivative financial instruments with predetermined
maturity date. The fair value of these derivative financial
instruments was calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing
Model detailed in note 30.

However, the management considers that the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of these derivative financial
instruments which involves multiple variables are interdependent
and the Group’s exposure to fluctuation of the fair value is
minimal.

Interest rate benchmark reform

Several of the Group’s LIBOR and HIBOR bank loans will be
subject to the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group is
closely monitoring the market and managing the transition to new
benchmark interest rates, including announcements made by the
relevant IBOR regulators.

A :J Ll

. BBERE

39.5

39.6

e ISR R M EE
BHWBERE BB

Bt

AREEFZ BIRA R EEF AR 2R
BRATABRE 2 BREAR - AEETYEER
%1“%&*@?@ﬁ%f‘@ﬂ’]?&iﬂ%&ﬂﬁﬁ%@?&

BEALESGEMBRERLFE
A i FE 5 (B ARG AN, B A 5% - TRTE EAfth
B R Z!»‘EZTﬁiéiﬁiﬁ%fﬁﬂ%i

A AR 16,891,000 ( —E - F
£ AR#18,797,0007T) °

AEENEEHREMETREIHAZ HRITE
TESRITAZHEMEBRRR - ZFTESR
TANAREBETER A RREEER
& EBHENES0 ©

CERERR EF#H%&%@TE@E&I

L{ﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬂﬂﬁm{ﬁ*ﬁﬁ”&&ylﬁﬁﬁ 2
E’J—J """"" ‘A% BAKEZ AR BERSAR
HARE  HEETZRARNSEEESD 7fﬁjt,$§
RERE -

FREEYE
REE S TLIBORKHIBORIRITE i = E FI
FKEAENENTE - AEEE tJJEQ@Em /R:II B

ERREEHEENZNER - BHEEBEIBOR
EERBIEHNASE -

T —FFHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.6

Interest rate benchmark reform (Cont’d)
LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all LIBOR settings
will either cease to be provided by any administrator or no longer
be representative:

o immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case of all
sterling, euro, Swiss franc and Japanese yen settings, and
the 1-week and 2-month US dollar settings; and

° immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the
remaining US dollar settings.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average (“HONIA")
has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to
discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been adopted in
Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will co-exist.

(i) Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform

The following are the key risks for the Group arising from
the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the
relevant alternative benchmark rates and without detailed
fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with the
Group’s counterparties are not successfully concluded
before the cessation of LIBORs, there are significant
uncertainties with regard to the interest rate that would
apply. This gives rise to additional interest rate risk that was
not anticipated when the contracts were entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the
various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward
looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months)
at the beginning of that period and include an inter-bank
credit spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are
typically risk-free overnight rates published at the end of the
overnight period with no embedded credit spread. These
differences will result in additional uncertainty regarding
floating rate interest payments.

212 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

39. BiIEMEENRERBE®)

396 FIREERE(E)

LIBOR

TRTISITREEREHER - FTALIBORER
RATBEBEE T BHEMERARE - TTH
EAREIML

. EE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—H#%&G
PR Bt WA RBEE
& UKk—E2HRMEANETEEN
=) &k

. EE-_Z-=—FAA=+THEGLHAE
BTIHNETEEMS)

HIBOR

7 T R TR 15 35 B(THONIA L) B # 3% Bl &
HIBORM & A A & « W I 4% 51 &l (= 1 fF A
HIBOR - HBBIRMZFIE T % + BIHIBOR &
HONIA#S £ BFE -

(i) FIEZENBERAER

ATRAEEESBEEANTRAR

= AERAE

S5, 1) R 3B U 2 A B R R ) e I
FRBERGERNEOME @ MEREE
HF T HEEHENEALBORZATAR
BEERK R - AIF AR T e A A
ENEATHRERE  MUSTERES
& HRT MBS R BETRBI B9 RRANF R

IBOREE & B R EEM K 7 FFARA
E®ER - IBORBN XK SR (203
18 7 ) 7 46 s 3t 7% SRR 3 0 AT R =0
HAE . ghaEiRiTREERE - m
BREENE —RASNRBERAREMD
ERBERNE  EPITERAEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.6 Interest rate benchmark reform (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates
which are typically published on overnight basis will require
additional liquidity management. The Group’s liquidity risk
management policy has been updated to ensure sufficient
liquid resources to accommodate unexpected increases in
overnight rates.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest
rate benchmark reform on contracts which have not
been transitioned to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates (e.g. arising from differing interpretation of existing
fallback terms), there is a risk of prolonged disputes with
counterparties which could give rise to additional legal
and other costs. The Group is working closely with all
counterparties to avoid this from occurring.

Interest rate basis risk

Interest rate basis risk may arise if a non-derivative
instrument and the derivative instrument held to manage
the interest risk on the non-derivative instrument transition
to alternative benchmark rates at different times. This risk
may also arise where back-to-back derivatives transition at
different times. The Group will monitor this risk against its
risk management policy which has been updated to allow
for temporary mismatches of up to 12 months and transact
additional basis interest rate swaps if required.

Progress towards implementation of alternative benchmark
interest rates

As part of the Group’s risk management for transition,
new contracts entered into by the Group are linked to the
relevant alternative benchmark rates or interest rates which
are not subject to reform to the extent feasible. Otherwise,
the Group ensured the relevant contracts include detailed
fallback clauses clearly referencing the alternative
benchmark rate and the specific triggering event on which
the clause is activated.

For a floating rate loan that is linked to HIBOR, the Group
had confirmed with the relevant counterparty HIBOR will
continue to maturity.

| 1|f il
TR VERY I

e SRR MR
39. MXEMEENBREBEEZ®)

39.6 MREEWE(E)

(i) FYEBELEDHAELR ()

nBELRE

BRI IR R EE R ) E R R A
ITHEEUERFTERNIORBDESE
B AEENRPESRARERRRE
REH - NRRAARRARBDEIREN
TRERASM PR R A R -

FAARR

il REERL 9 R BIE AR E R EER
RN EOBEMNEEERNEERN G H
(2N R 53R 6 8 PR 6K D[R R 1 Ay
B B RE I FH RAFEN
B - ML AT AE @ E A REINER R E
RN - REBIEEFAEHFHERS
TELAB R I IIRIER -

FIRLERR

R FFVEE IR IENTAE T A AIE @ f 69 3607
ETARMTETARTREHEEES
BREAERE - R & A M R E A
B o ZEBRTAIEREHEITETAR
TRERBHRBERES - FEEES
HEfpE R B Rz AR - AR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.6 Interest rate henchmark reform (Cont’d)

(if)  Progress towards implementation of alternative benchmark
interest rates (Cont'd)

The Group is planning to transition its LIBOR contracts
through introduction of, or amendments to, fallback
clauses into the contracts which will change the basis
for determining the interest cash flows from LIBOR to
alternative reference rate at an agreed point in time.

The following table shows the total amounts of outstanding
contracts and the progress in completing the transition to
alternative benchmark rates as at 31 December 2021. The
amounts of financial liabilities are shown at their carrying
amounts and derivatives are shown at their notional
amounts.

Financial instruments
prior to transition Maturing in

BEANEMTIA RTF3 215

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

39. BiIEMEENRERBE®)

396 FIREERE(E)

(i) EEREEFFERE (F)

REELEABERSENSIARIERHE
FRGF - BRSEEFERSRENE
A LIBOR 38 20 A% 10 175 5 Iy ) Bt ) 24 (X
SERE - HMBEELIBOREH

TRBETIR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
AR EONBERTRAEZER
FEFEHEE - RIAENS TR
EESY  MITETAAIARESLESR
5l o

Carrying amounts/  Transition progress for
notional amounts  financial instruments
BREE,
FEeE SBMIABEEE
RMB’000
ARETT

Non-derivative financial liabilities

FITESHEE

Bank loans linked to GBP LIBOR 2022

HFEE IBOREMAKIRITE —Eo—F

Bank loans linked to HIBOR From 2022 to 2024
HiHIBOREMARIEITE B FE-TF
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. MXEMEENBREBEEZ®)
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.7 Fair value measurement of financial instruments 39.7 @WMIENAAEETE
This note provides information about how the Group determines AW FRBEARERNABELHS REE
fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities. ReBBEAREBENER
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair MMEREENmE - ANEEFSSRTAT
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value, BAREBEE - EEFAAAEBER  AEE
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. R BRBERER TS TEEER o WirE
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third F-—RUASE  ~AEEeZRE=HE5EK
party qualified valuer to perform the valuation or to establish the (HERMETHE SRR B R 2 ME R kAR
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 2 ANBUE ©
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities BB M B EURN N BEFENAEE2FHE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis ERTHEENABE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are AEBET cMEERSRABRSHREHR
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The BAREBEE - TRIBEEBAOWEEZE
following table gives information about how the fair values of CRHEERSHREBEAABENER(LER
these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in FTR A B ER T R B ASE) -

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at 31 December
RT-A=+-AMDAER

2021 2020
Financial assets/ —E_-F % Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and
financial liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000 hierarchy  key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
SREE SRAE ARETR  ARETL AREEZR  HERNRIZHAHE TERTRZHAYE
Derivative financial instruments 26,251 111,612 Level 3 Binomial option pricing model The  Volatility of the share prices
fair value is estimated based on determined by reference to
the risk free rate, discount rate, the historical share prices of
share price, volatility of the the Company (Note 1).
share prices of the Company,
dividend yield and exercise
price.
fTEemIE = _EABETEEANLEEN LEERRAELRERET
REERTIE BRE R RREREAFL) -
B ADRRERE  BREX
RITEERESE
Equity instrument at fair value through 406,557 447 042 Level 1 Quoted bid price in an active N/A
other comprehensive income market.
RARBETAEMRELRE KA E— NERTHEIEAERE- NEm
TA

2 (FEHERESRART 215
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

OBJECTIVES (conta)

39.7 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont'd)

Fair value as at 31 December
RT-ZA=+-AWAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—F+-A=1+—HAItFE

BREREENBRERBE®)

39.7 eMIENAREBEFEE)
EBlE;IE0N A EE T HE
AR EBE(E)

AT IR A
EREHAEY

2021 2020
Financial assets/ —E--F “T-EF Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and
financial liabilities RMB’000 RMB'000 hierarchy ~ key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
SREE SRHER AR¥TRE ARETT AREESR AERTREZMAHE TEFARERAHE
Equity instrument at fair value through 43,866 54219 Level 3 Market approach by applying The ratio of market capital to net
other comprehensive income market multiples such as the book value from comparable
ratio of market capital to net companies is determined
book value from comparable by the mean of comparable
companies and adjusted companies as at the valuation
by discount on lack of date (Note 2)
marketability
RARBETALM2EYE 2 BRA F=  THE EPERATELRRAR  AELRARTSEANELEK
I8 ZTBER(mEEAEY EFEZLETIAABLR
BREFELE) - TRz AENEEESCTHEE
GBI TR E(Hfat2)

Discount for lack of marketability
taking into account the
external valuer’s estimate on
the length of time and effort
required by the management
to dispose of the equity
interest which is determined
as 15% to 20% (Note 2)

S RINEEEREERER
EREMT 2 BARAMNE
ZENEHZEE  Hem
Hmmt ITEETE R15%
E20%(Hiz2)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. MXEMEENBREBEEZ®)
OBJECTIVES (contd)

39.7 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Cont'd) 39.7 eWMIANAAREENEE)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities A E B EL D BlEG B A E B2 FE

that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont'd) ERZEE BN EEE)

Notes: Kz -

Note 1:The higher the volatility of the share prices of the Company, the Bl - AR BERERERS  TESRTANAAR
higher the fair value of the derivative financial instruments, and vice BEANARS  RZIHA - BATESHIA
versa. For the volatility of the share prices of the Company used AR BEFEMRANRRABRERKE &
in the fair value measurement for derivative financial instruments, 2BKIFE30 ©

please refer to note 30.

Note 2:The higher the ratio of market capital to net book value from Hiat2 - ATE LR AR 2z MG ANAHREFELE
comparable companies, the higher the fair value of the equity Am o BATAMA A EERE  R2ZIT
instrument, and vice versa. The higher of the discount for lack RezhBRBEZINERS  RATA
of marketability, the lower the fair value of the equity instrument, MARBEINDK  RZINA - BRARA]
and vice versa. No sensitivity is presented as the directors of the EERAEBE AR 2 EMEH E T
Company considered that the slight change in relevant inputs would ARBEELEEATE  WHEZYISRE -

not have a significant impact to the fair values.

There is no transfer between different levels of the fair value RRAEEE  AABESRSA 2B EE
hierarchy for both years. % o
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FE=MAREBEFTENHE

Conversion/early redemption
option derivative
R RAEESESTETA

2021 2020

—E-—F —ET-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Net carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BNEEFE 111,612 222,207
Derecognition of derivatives BIERERITAE T A - (143,196)
Recognition of derivatives HRITETR - 130,624
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss R IEZEFERKA A BEIE (83,674) (93,506)
Exchange difference b H XA (1,687) (4,517)
Net carrying amount as at 31 December R+ = A=+—BHEEFE 26,251 111,612
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—F+-A=1+—HAItFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 39. BIRRBEENEERBE®)
OBJECTIVES (conta)
39.7 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Cont'd) 307 SRMIENAABENEE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities A E IR EL D 7 (B EFr B A EE & &
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont'd) ERTHEENN A EEE)
Equity instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income
BRAABEFAEM
2EKEZBATE
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Net carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BAERmSFE 54,219 =
Acquired on an acquisition of a UGS — R B A Bl A (f7a£35)
subsidiary (note 35) - 48,042
Fair value (loss) gain recognised in other REAM 2 E KSR A 2 EE (BB K
comprehensive income (10,353) 6,177
Net carrying amount as at 31 December R+ A=1+—BHREFE 43,866 54,219

Except for the senior notes and bond as detailed in note 31, the
directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded as amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

The fair value of such financial assets and financial liabilities
(categories within Level 3 hierarchy) are determined in accordance
with general accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T——F+-A=1+—HAItFE

e MR E

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 40. RIBEEBIEL 2 EBYHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRAASERETHEEZ EEEHFS
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. ReRFEHRSEE - mﬂﬁxﬁiﬁ%iZﬁfﬁ Ei%fﬁﬁ
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows RESIBEREERERASEZEARERERD
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated EARETReREZRE -
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Debt Derivative
Amounts due component of component of
to related Dividend convertible  Seniornotes  convertible Lease
parties payables  Borrowings honds and bond honds Liabilities Total
FEft TERES BERE  TRRES
BYLSE EfRE & EHHS kfEF fTEIASS BERE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT AR%ETr ARETT ARETL
At 1 January 2020 R-E-TF—-f-H - - 19,456,079 1,493,257 5,027,123 222,207 118,054 26,316,720
Financing cash flows REERET - (282672) 1,280,385 (288,607) (41,059) - (26,225) 641,822
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEHBAR - - 2,733,000 - - - - 2733000
Foreign exchange translation NELE - - (868,372) (102,656) (270,593) (4,517) - (1,246,138)
Interest expenses MERX - - 1,263,397 285,303 519,199 = 10544 2,078,443
Fair value adjustment ArEEAE - - - - - (93,506) - (93,506)
Loss on non-substantial REERNTIE 2 S RE EN
modification of financial FEREZERR
liabilities at amortised cost - - - - 131,381 - - 131,381
Loss on substantial modification AR EH 2 EAEFER
of convertible bonds = - - 32,671 - (12,572) = 20,105
Dividend declared BIRRE - 282,672 - - - - - 282,672
At 31 December 2020 RZE-E5+-/F=1-H - - 23,864,489 1,419,974 5,366,051 111,612 102,373 30,864,499
Financing cash flows BEERER 1,101,729 (696) (66,617)  (114,953)  (1,042,110) - (26565 (149,212)
Foreign exchange translation SNERE - - (302,323) (36,363) (73,711) (1,687) = (414,084)
Interest expenses FlEFR - - 1,498,182 193,594 481,490 - 11,281 2,184,547
Fair value adjustment ARBEERE - - - - - (83,674) - (83,674)
New leases entered (note 14) BT HRE(HF14) - - - - - - 71,386 71,386
Dividend declared EIRRE - 696 - - - - - 696
At 31 December 2021 RIE--5+-5=+t-0 1,101,129 - 24993731 1,462,252 4,731,720 26,251 164,475 32,480,158
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41. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital and other commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

commitments:

41. 7iE

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

EARREMAE

RIREIR - REEFATAME

2021 2020
s —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Contracted but not provided for: EREEES R
— Investment properties under —ERIREmE
development 385,162 32,787
— Properties under development —ERPFEYE
for sale 5,026,738 3,407,074
5,411,900 3,439,861
(b)  Operating lease arrangements (h) REHERH
The Group as lessor REFERHAA
All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed FIEREL RSN MERER —E -+ F%
lessees for the next one and twenty years. BEAEEBA ©
Lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: THEMNEKRHEENTKAT
2021 2020
B —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Within one year —FNR 662,623 505,136
In the second year FoF 655,177 429,446
In the third year F=F 411,407 327,592
In the fourth year FEYF 323,235 250,752
In the fifth year ERF 244,533 164,127
After five years hEE 1,148,914 298,171
3,445,889 1,975,224
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—

A=t ALEE

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(a)

(b)

Pledge of assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
assets being pledged for bank and other borrowings.

42.

e MR E

EERH

(a)

BEEA

R|ERR - AEEATEEERERIERR
TREMEE 2 HER -

2021 2020

—EB-—F T CTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Properties under development for sale BRPFEME 3,519,770 2,071,008

Properties held for sale FEME 126,421 1,436,806
Equity instrument at fair value through AR BEFAEMEZEAKRZZBRATA

other comprehensive income 406,557 -

Investment properties BEME 21,933,016 19,408,275

Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 784,148 802,444

Pledged bank deposits PIRIRT T30 2,547,603 2,671,572

29,317,515 26,390,105

Note: As at 31 December 2021, except for assets pledged above, secured
bank loans with aggregate amount of RMB5,944,586,000 (2020:
RMB4,984,327,000) and secured other borrowings with amount of
RMB2,077,473,000 (2020: RMB2,124,292,000) are secured by
the equity interests of subsidiaries of the Group (see also note 29).

Restrictions on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB164,475,000 are recognised
with related investment properties of RMB308,580,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: lease liabilities of RMB102,373,000 and
related investment properties of RMB178,200,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor and the
relevant leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

| 1|f i
TR VERY I

(b)

Bt : RZE-_—F+-_A=1+—8 KLtk
WZEEN AERETERBESEAR
#5 944,586,000 ( — B - T F : AR
4,984,327,0007T ) R EEFHMEE AR
#2077,473,0000C( — B =T F: AR
2,124,292,0007T ) (3 A 5 B K1 88 A 7] 2 ik e
{EIEAR (BRI 2B KT 5E29) -

BERS

ok R=—FB - —F+ - =+—HEE%
B A R308,580,000 THAHEEEA
R#164,4750000( —E-2F : S A E
AR #102,373,0007T R BEREMEAAR
#178,200,0007t ) - R HBAFMFEREE
BEMNEAEZRSIN  BERHETEHINTRZR
W B EEENSBERERARSGE
o

T —FFHR
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43.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had financial
guarantee contracts relating to guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
for certain purchasers amounting to approximately RMB1,814,427,000
(2020: RMB2,128,831,000). The guarantees are secured by the
Group'’s pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB196,683,000 (2020:
RMB69,650,000).

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default on the
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to
repay the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest
and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks.

The Group’s guarantee period commences from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the earlier of the buyer obtaining
the individual property ownership certificate or the full settlement of
mortgage loan by the buyer.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group issued financial guarantee to a
bank in respect of banking facility granted to an independent third party
with an amount of nil (2020: RMB&9,200,000).

The directors of the Company consider that it is not probable for the
Group to sustain a loss under these mortgage guarantees as during the
periods under guarantees, the Group can take over the ownerships of
the related properties and sell the properties under default to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the banks. The Group has not recognised
these guarantees as their fair value at initial recognition is considered
to be insignificant by the directors of the Company. The directors of
the Company also consider that the fair market value of the underlying
properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage loans guaranteed by
the Group in the event that the purchasers default payments to the banks
for their mortgage loans. The director considers that it is not probable
for the Group to sustain a loss under the guarantee for the independent
third party as during the periods under guarantee due to its sound credit
worthiness, financial position and historical repayment records.

222 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

43.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—T-—HF+-_A=1+—HIFE

BMBIREREL

HE-_Z- S+ -A=+—"RHItFEE " ~5H
RETEINZBEREREERNTEERED
NEARE]L8LIA427000TL(—E-FE : AR
2,128,831,0007T ) = 4 B R AR &£ B A KPR 1T
FARAREL96,683000( —E-_FF: ARK
69,650,000 ) VEHK -

REBEFRER  WZEESERRBMAR - BIAE
BAEREEWNRENNRBERERENELE
MNRITOEME TSRS -

AEBENERBAERZBEFREANE B2
BEXDRSEASEMAEERTEBFERBESRA
REERE)RRLE -

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H8 ' "EEHKRTEL
FZHZRITRBERRITERITUBER  ©€8AS
(ZZ=Z=F : AR¥B89,200,0007T) °

ARAEERR  NEERERPREAAAEREZ
ERBERMEXER  MAKEEEANERLT
AERERRMMENART L ERBAYE  AKE
REBMRITINOEFCE - ANARREFRR
REZEERRNFERRN A A BELTEK &
AEEIDRERZEER - ARREENRA
BEhEREERTRIBER  HRAYENRATE
RABBASEMERORERZBER - EFR
R ERBUFE=F2EE  UBRARBEER
ROEE RAT » AR B PMER AN KA BEE B F
=HZERMEREE -
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44. BEBHIRS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, BRZEGRAMBRR M S AEEEIN  AEH

the Group has the following transactions with related parties during the FANEBH T ETORZOT ¢

year:

(a) Balances with related parties (a) PBAWGE 248k
Details of the balances with related parties at the end of the AR HA R BR A AEFIERAR S ISR
reporting period are disclosed in the consolidated statement of MERE KHIFELS 22&26‘4:‘1332&%
financial position and notes 16, 22 and 26.

(b)  Key management personnel compensation (h) FEEBEASHMH
The directors are of the opinion that the key management E=RA EEABEBRREARRRITE
personnel were solely the executive directors of the Company. = E1‘J‘$ Tiﬂ TESHWH BRI ELLF
Remuneration paid to the Company’s executive directors is PR o

disclosed in note 11.

Wi
— lﬂL\E}”l *-l-:-
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—

45. AT BB R

—Ft=A=t-ALFE

COMPANY
2021 2020
—E_—fF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITBRARNEE 3,381,353 3,381,353
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURK BB A B FRIE 10,769,464 10,174,378
Property, plant and equipment Y  BRE R E 16,792 32,880
Right-of-use asset FREEE 11,927 24,939
14,179,536 13,613,550
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURH B~ RIFRIE 4,986,991 4,773,422
Deposits paid, prepayments and other Bfi&RE - ERRIEREMEKFIE
receivables 49,811 1,521
Bank balances and cash RITHEEBRRIRE 235,918 449,495
5,272,720 5,224,438
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables JEET B A R E M ERTFRIE 6,491 10,849
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHMT B A Bl Z0E 2,553,383 2,183,353
Borrowings Ny 1,804,680 1,740,021
Debt component of convertible bonds AR ESEE D 498,021 =
Derivative component of convertible bonds ~ BI# AR & 5674 T B Z55 1,594 =
Lease liabilities HEaE 11,432 12,259
4,875,601 3,946,482
Net current assets REEETFE 397,119 1,277,956
Total assets less current liabilities BmEERABARS 14,576,655 14,891,506
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45. KA BB BEMR Rz @)
COMPANY (conta)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Non-current liabilities kRBAS
Borrowings B 229,746 589,120
Debt component of convertible bonds AR EFEE I D = 468,306
Derivative component of convertible bonds ~ FI#AXESLTA T AZ S = 22,511
Lease liabilities HEaffkE = 11,706
229,746 1,091,643
Net assets BEFE 14,346,909 13,799,863
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital i 42,465 42 458
Reserves @& 14,304,444 13,757,405
Total equity MR 14,346,909 13,799,863
HUANG Jingshu HUANG Hao Yuan
EWE R
CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FTREHTES WITES
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (cont'd)

Note:

Details of the movement in the Company’s reserves are set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
—Ft= A= +—BLEE

HE—T—

45. KB AARRET @)

ARRIEBEE) 2 SHEHFILAT

Convertible Share
Share preference option Exchange Contributed Retained
premium share reserve reserve surplus profits Total
BEE  ARRELR BRERE ER A BaEHS RERF @zt
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREBFL AREFT ARETT ARETT
Balance as at 1 January RZZE-Z5—HR—R
2020 2% 7,073,804 6,064,905 210,718 30,165 (18) 283,102 13,662,676
Profit for the year FEEF| - - - = = 363,225 363,225
Exercise of share options ~ T{EBEAR#E 22,006 = (7,511) = = = 14,495
Conversion of convertible HRARRE LR
preference shares 65,385 (65,704) = = = - (319)
Dividend declared and BEERRKTHRE
made - - - - - (282,672) (282,672)
Balance as at 31 December R=T-ZTF+—H
2020 and 1 January =t—HE
2021 —T-—%—§
—B2&E% 7,161,195 5,999,201 203,207 30,165 (18) 363,655 13,757,405
Profit for the year FERA - - - = = 545,834 545,834
Exercise of share options T BB ARE 1,841 = (636) = = = 1,205
Balance as at 31 December R=—ZE——%+_FH
2021 =t+—H2&% 7,163,036 5,999,201 202,571 30,165 (18) 909,489 14,304,444
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46. FEMBATNFEE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited liability RIZEZ—FR-ZZ-_ZF+-A=+—HFZEN
company, as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: BREI(IABRARNFBAT :

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Effectively attributahle Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interests (Place of operations)
WEARER ERAL/ R BRTRARLERE/EREA ERELRARR TEEH(SEE)
Directly Indirectly
HE 553
LVGEM Suzhou HK 156 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Administration vehicle of
(2020: 100%)  the Group (HK)
SREEN B 156MERAEELET R - 100% BEAKETRIEEE)
(ZEZFE:100%)
PVGL HK 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Investment holding (HK)
(2020: 100%)
5 % 10,000 EREEL BT 2K - 100% REER(ER)
(ZFZF5: 100%)
Suzhou Garden Villa Development & Mainland China (Note ()~ US$20,550,000 - 95%  Property development and
Management Co., Ltd. (2020: 95%)  investment (Mainland China)
BN RERRRYREEERAA RN (HiEE) 20,550,000% 7 - 9% WEERRFA(PEIRM)
(ZZ=ZTF : 95%)
Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited Mainland China 1US$26,600,000 - 100%  Property development and
(“SNHGF”) (2020:100%¢)  investment (Mainland China)
FNFAHERRAR(ENTS])  hERH 26,600,000% 7% - 100% MEERRRA(PEIRH)
(Z2Z24% : 100%")
Suzhou New Heritage WZA Limited Mainland China (Note (b))~ US$15,000,000 - 100%  Property development and
(2020: 100%)  investment (Mainland China)
BRMAESREEERERAR mER(HE D) 15,000,000% T - 100% MEERREE(PEIRH)
(ZZ2F5:100%)
New Heritage WJA Limited Mainland China (Note (b))~ US$13,000,000 - 100% Property development and
(2020: 100%)  investment (Mainland China)
RIIEERRAT RE R (b)) 13,000,000% T - 100% #E%EREA(TER)
(ZEZF%:100%)
Shenzhen LVGEM Asset Management ~ Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB16,000,000 - 100%  Property management service
Co., Ltd. (2020:100%)  (Mainland China)
M AEERARAR B (AE (b)) AE#16,000,0007 - 100% WFERRE(FERL)

(252550 100%)
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conta) 46. TENBARNFE @)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Effectively attributable Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interests (Place of operations)
WEAREHE HRMAL/ RS BRTRBREBRE /ZMER EREERAER TEER(EEHY)
Directly Indirectly
BE Rtk
Shenzhen LVGEM Hotel Co., Ltd. Mainland China (Note (b)) RMB10,000,000 100%  Hotel operation services
(2020:100%)  (Mainland China)
R Mg R BEERAR HER(ATE (b)) AK%10,000,0007C 100% EEEERS(TERH)
(ZZZFF : 100%)
Shenzhen LVGEM Jiyuan Property Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB500,000 100%  Property management service
Management Service Co., Ltd. (2020: 100%)  (Mainland China)
R TERETEEREERAT RE (A (b)) ARH500,0007C 100% #EERRH(FERH)
(Z2ZZF: 100%)
Shenzhen LVGEM Marketing Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland China (Note (b))  RMB1,000,000 100%  Consultancy services
(2020: 100%)  (Mainland China)
AT REHERIERAR B (AE (b)) ARH1,000,0007 100% AR (R EIRE)
(ZBZZF : 100%)
Shenzhen LVGEM Property Mainland China (Note (b)) RMB5,000,000 100%  Property management services
Management Co., Ltd. (2020: 100%)  (Mainland China)
R TERNEEEERLA B A (ATEE (b)) AR5,000,0007 100% YEERRH(HERH)
(ZFZTF : 100%)
Shenzhen LVGEM Real Estate Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB150,000,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (2020: 100%)  (Mainland China)
R TEREHEREERAR mEIR () AR 150,000,007 100% #E%R(FERT)
(ZFZTF : 100%)
Zhengxinglong Real Estate (Shenzhen)  Mainland China (Note (b)) HK$40,000,000 100%  Property development
Co.,Lid. (2020: 100%)  (Mainland China)
FREFHECR)ERAR HEIR () 40,000,000 7 100% WE#RE(RERD)
(ZZZFF: 100%)
Shenzhen Longkanghong Investment ~ Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB270,000,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (2020: 100%)  (Mainland China)
RmERARERRERLA EIR(HE (D) AR 270,000,007 100% MEERE(PERM)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conta) 46. TEMBRAMNFT @)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Effectively attributahle Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interests (Place of operations)
WEAR AR EMAL/ B8 BETRAREBREHERER EREGRAER TEER(E%HE)
Directly Indirectly
BE Ef3
Huazhou LVGEM Real Estate Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB210,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co.,Ltd. (2020:100%)  (Mainland China)
M EHEREERAR B (A (b)) AK210,000,0007C - 100% % E(PER)
(ZEZF%:100%)
Zhuhai LVGEM Donggiao Investment Mainland China (Note (b)) ~ RMB1,851,429,172 - 91%*  Property development (Mainland
Co.,Ltd.(“Zhuhai Donggiao”) (2020:91%*)  China)
HBTgRRERARRAA e (A (b)) ARHE1851,429,1727L - 91%* WEER(TERM)
(IERAE)) (Z2ZEF:91%Y)
Zhengxinglong Real Estate (Zhuhai) Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB407,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Co.,Ltd. (2020:100%)  (Mainland China)
EEERHERE)ERAR B A(ATRE (b)) AR8407,000,0007T - 100% WxER(PERH)
(ZFZF5 : 100%)
Guangzhou Yugjing Real Estate Mainland China (Note (b)) RMB10,000,000 - 93% Property development (Mainland
Development Co.,Ltd. (2020:93%)  China)
BNTESRHEREERAT HRE (AR (b)) AR#10,000,0007 - 9% MEEE(TEmMH)
(ZZ=FF:93%)
Jianmai Limited (“Jianmai”) BVI 200 shares of US$1 each - 95%  Investment holding (HK)
(2020: 95%)
REARDNA(ZE)]) EREBREE 200RGRABEIZT LB - 9% RARR(EE)
(ZZ=TF : 95%)
Wisdom Concept Development Limited ~ HK 2 shares of HK$1 each - 95%  Property development (HK)
(2020: 95%)
HYREERAF 5 2REREELBTLRG - %% NEERE(EE)
(ZZZ2F - 95%)
Olinda Limited HK 20 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Property development and
(2020:100%)  investment (HK)
Olinda Limited Bk 20REREELET 2K - 100% WEEERRFEA(EE)
(ZEZF%:100%)
Gemstones BVI 1 share of US$1 100% - Treasury vehicle (BVI)
(2020: 100%)
28 ERERRES 1R1=n R 100% - EREMETH(ZBEMRES)

. III“ ; \
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conta) 46. TENBARNFE @)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Effectively attributable Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interests (Place of operations)
WEAEEHE HRAL/ Rt BRTRBREBRE / FHER EREERAER FTEER(EEHY)
Directly Indirectly
BE 5f3
Zone Asia Investments (HK) Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Investment holding (HK)
(2020: 100%)
LTRE(FR)ERLA BE \RSREELET 2R - 100% REER(EE)
(Z22FF : 100%)
World Margin Limited HK 800,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Treasury vehicle (HK)
(2020: 100%)
ERERAF Bk 800,000 R BRE AL T2 B3 - 100% REBETE(ES)
(ZBZFF : 100%)
GBAIC BVI 1 share of US$1 100% - Investment holding (BVI)
(2020: 100%)
NERBEHM ZRERRES 1R1IET 2B (A 100% - REER(ZBEMRES)
(ZBZZF:100%)
ICDL HK 10,000 share of HK$1 each - 80%*  Investment holding (HK)
(2020: 80%)
BEHm Bk 10,000 BREELET 2 RS - 80%* HREAZR(EE)
(ZZZFF: 80%)
Shenzhen Sida Industrial Co., Ltd. Mainland China (Note (b)) ~ RMBO - 80% Property development and
(2020:80%) investment (Mainland China)
ATEEEEERAR mEIR () AREOT - 80% MERRRFE(TENS)
(ZZZZF:80%)
Shenzhen LVGEM Enterprise Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB300,000,000 - 80% Property development and
Management Group Co., Ltd. (2020:80%) investment (Mainland China)
MITERCFERERERAT HEIR (M) AR#300,000,0007T - 80% MEBRERAE(FEN)
(ZEZTF :80%)
Shenzhen LVGEM Hexing Real Estate  Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB10,000,000 - 80% Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (2020: 80%)  investment (Mainland China)
TR BRMEERARA RERL(E D) AKH#10,000,0007 - 80% MEERRRE(PEIN)
(ZBZ2F : 80%)
Shenzhen Lvgem Tiansheng Mainland China (Note (b))~ RMB1,286,000,000 - 80% Property development and
Industrial Co., Ltd. (2020: 80%)  investment
MTEEREEXERAE RER (AT (b)) ARH1,286,000,0007 - 80% MEEXERTE

*

(ZZ2F5:80%)

* BB

Approximate percentage.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conta) 46.

Notes:

(a) This subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture
under the Mainland China law.

(b) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under
the Mainland China law.

(c) Except for Zhengxinglong, which issued the First Tranche Domestic Bonds
on 16 August 2021, and Gemstones, which issued New Senior Notes
in 2020 as disclosed in note 31, none of the remaining subsidiaries had
issued any listed debt securities at the end of the reporting period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affect the results for
the year or form a substantial portion of the assets and liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Al 1

e IR M R

FENBATNFEE)
Hiat -

@ EHBADREFEANGERERATILEAE
27 -

o

(b) % EMERRRETEAERELR/IEBED
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(0 RIEHEEN-_Z-_—FNATREBETE—HE
AESF) RBE(NMESIMEE AR —F —F4F
BITHELERE)N REBSHR - HRHE L AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A RS R A
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conta)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Material non-controlling interests BAFERER

Summarised consolidated financial information of ICDL and its
subsidiaries and Zhuhai Donggiao that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

46. FEMBATNFE @)

—Ft=A=t-ALFE

ERASERTRAMBARNURKERB(EERE
ROFFERE S ) < SRR TS BRI E RSN T - T
BB ERBERNEEA AR Z S8

Proportion of Total comprehensive Accumulated
equity interest held by income (expenses) allocated to non-controlling
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests interests
AEGAFERERNES
FERBRFEHRELH UONGE: -t Rt FERER
Name of subsidiary 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
MBARERE —E--f _"ZT-% B "% B CZITZ%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT AR%TR ARBTT
ICDL and its subsidiaries BEHTRENEAR 20%* 20%* 179,997 (3659) 3,275,141 3,095,144
Zhuhai Donggiao KRG 9%* 9%* (1,362) (53) 158,619 (1,050)
Individually immaterial BRI TBEALHEE I
subsidiaries with non- bl Fs =N N/A N/A
controlling interests T A NEFA 6,250 (2,473) 71,767 67,813
184,885 (6,185) 3,611,527 3,161,907

*

Approximate percentage

* BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—ZT--—F+-A=1+—HIFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (conta) 46. TEMBRAMNFT @)

Material non-controlling interests (Cont'd) BAEERER(E)

ICDL and its subsidiaries

()  EEHHREHNELE]

2021 2020
—B-—-F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Non-current assets EMENEEE 4,215,204 125,501

Current assets MENEE 26,317,476 24,900,487

Non-current liabilities FEREEE (10,963,522) (8,693,102)
Current liabilities nREAE (3,195,500) (859,101)
Net assets EEFE 16,373,658 15,473,785

Equity attributable to owners of the Company VNYNSI Y fr v T 13,098,517 12,378,641

Equity attributable to non-controlling interests of #2523 2 JEFE AR E S FE(EHE =

ICDL 3,275,141 3,095,144

Total equity HEm AR 16,373,658 15,473,785

Other income HAbA 18,114 7,678

Other gains and losses Eftb s R Es1E (2,409) 3,846

Fair value gain on investment properties WEMEZ AR EEKRE 1,394,330 =

Expenses Fx (510,162) (29,817)
Profit (loss) for the year FERN(EE) 899,873 (18,293)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company A2 FIARE fE(5 B F (538 ) 719,876 (14,634)
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 12 ASHE = FE (R B (B548) 179,997 (3,659)
Profit (loss) for the year FEAF(ER) 899,873 (18,293)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEFTAR S5 (787,798) (14,504)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBATAR S FR (489,688) (264,760)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BE EEATE (FTA)R &5 1,303,336 (83,344)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMB MR

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 46. FEMBATNFERE @)
Material non-controlling interests (Cont'd) BAEERER(E)
(i) Zhuhai Donggiao (i)  HEEE

2021 2020
—E=—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Non-current assets FEMENE EE 182,995 89,193
Current assets MBEE 5,233,581 1,884,431
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (2,097,955) (1,761)
Current liabilities mEAE (878,392) (135,659)
Net assets EEFE 2,440,229 1,836,204
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR AR (G 2 2,281,610 1,837,254
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests SRS PR (G 158,619 (1,050)
Total equity e AERE 2,440,229 1,836,204
Other income EAhug A 586 241
Fair value gain on investment properties BWEMEZ AR EEKE 93,476 7,044
Expenses s (108,608) (7,855)
Loss for the year FEEE (14,546) (570)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RARIRREGEE (13,184) (517)

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests of G RIE 2 I RS IR (1R
Zhuhai Donggiao (1,362) (53)
Loss for the year FEEE (14,546) (570)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEBFTAREFHE (2,429,802) (1,830,087)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities WE B (FTA)ESF5E 219,880 (30,041)
Net cash from financing activities AVESEB TSRS F R 2,648,759 1,843,929

234 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



Financial Summary

MR

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the AEERERAEAVREFECEEARBEERBE(RBEEE

last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial ET—+F ZET-NFERZFE-NF+ZA=+—H

statements for the years ended 2017, 2018 and 2019 as below. For the years LEFEZBFIBREERVHERR)OT - BHE_S-_TFR

ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 which extracted from the annual report :'—:,f:—¢+ A=t+—HLEFERBHEE T -_—FF
2021 was restated as appropriate, is set out below. o WA EH (@A) o

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

—tF —T-N\F TN ZZEZTF —B-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARBTR

RESULTS #45
Revenue Wi 2,967,751 4,515,685 6,902,448 5,424,827 4,378,017
Profit from operation RERH 2,111,059 2,813,503 4,623,298 5,849,185 4,160,684
Finance costs BE KA (613,592) (657,995) (1,256,165) (1,533,101) (1,710,896)
Share of results of a joint venture L —EA S ARIES (93) (8) 2) (2) (2)
Profit before tax R 50 AT &2 ) 1,497,374 2,155,500 3,367,131 4,316,082 2,449,786
Income tax expense Fri8Bim s (458,811) (925,097) (1,617,168) (865,007) (1,114,869)
Profit for the year FERA 1,038,563 1,230,403 1,749,963 3,451,075 1,334,917
Attributable to owners of the Company 2 ISR fE 15 1,035,392 1,237,167 1,749,884 3,453,380 1,152,576
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—tF ZT-N\F TN ZZTZTF B —F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR¥T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 22,654,001 24,171,470 26,459,769 25,897,846 32,349,191
Current assets REAE 14,142 819 19,240,634 22,276,514 48,369,152 52,592,862
Current liabilities meaE (9,650,864)  (11,689,752)  (17,760,664)  (15903,122)  (19,171,711)
Non-current liabilities eIV (17,076,753) (20,283,409) (17,940,786) (30,478,253) (36,329,553)
Net assets BEFE 10,069,203 11,438,943 13,034,833 27,885,623 29,440,789
Equity attributable to ARFRE LR
owners of the Company 9,836,062 11,331,448 12,927,859 24,723,716 25,929,262
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List of Principal Properties

ESELY/ES

1. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BREY=

Properties

E/ES

LVGEM Zoll 1866 Shopping Mall located at
the eastern side of Meilong Road and
the southern side of Zhongmei Road

Bao’an District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

{37 7 A B 3 2R AR AR i B 2 [ g e B SR B
iR AR AR R 1866/

LVGEM Zoll Chanson Shopping Mall and
car parking spaces located at
the western side of Minzhi Road

Minzhi Community
Bao’an District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

URPREERE R TEZRR AR REHK
PRAIE AR =B B IER Y O R B

Various commercial units of
LVGEM Chanson Meilu Garden
located at the western side of Minzhi Road

Minzhi Community
Bao’an District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

URPEERERA MELRRAERRGHR
AR EEXER % EE R B

Various commercial units of City Garden
located at the western side of Longxiang Avenue
and the eastern side of Huangge Road

Longguang District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

UNPEERE R TRREREARNBAEAR
IR AN 325 TE R 2 (R S B

LVGEM Zoll Hongwan Shopping Mall located at the 100%
northern side of North Ring Avenue and
the eastern side of Meilin Road

Futian District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

{3 7 B R AR i 4 R dE 3RO B AL A K
HEMRES SR AIAVAR R B MU ZRB M
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R B FEE

Approximate
Total Gross
Floor Area
(square meter)

BARREER
(EFK)

54,360

36,890

330

4,650

76,810

Type
Rl

Commercial
[EES

Commercial

=

Commercial
[EES

Commercial

5]

Commercial
[EES

Lease Term

M

70 years from
31 August 2004 to
30 August 2074
—EENFN\A=F—HE
—EENFNA=FA
ABEI70F

70 years from
6 August 2010 to
5 August 2080
—E-EFNARNHEE
—ENZFENAAA
ABHE70F

70 years from
6 August 2010 to
5 August 2080
—ZE-EF\ARBE
—ENZEFNARRA -
BEI70F

70 years from
22 February 2001 to
21 February 2071
ZZEE—HF-_RF-+-HZF
—Er+—F-A-+—8"
RERT0F

70 years from
16 December 2011 to
15 December 2081

T —F+-A+RHE
—EN—F+=-A+hHAH"
BH705F



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (o)
REWHE 2)

Interest

Attributable
to the Group

Properties

L/ES

Various commercial units of LVGEM Hotel 100%
located at the western side of Xinzhou Road and
the northern side of Xinzhou Sixth Road
Futian District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

AP B B 7R 31 T I e N B P 1B 2
FM7SEEAL RIAR = S TAEEDA IS 2 A S

Various commercial units of 100%
Lanwan Peninsula Community located at
the northern side of Furong Road
Futian District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

AP B E R A AT 12 H R 18 58
F R S ERE A

PRACRAIREE S

Various commercial units, office units and 100%
car parking spaces of Tower A of
NEO Urban Commercial Complex located at
the junction of Shennan Boulevard and
Xiangmihu Road
Futian District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

7R B E R & RY I T 42 H B ORE A E &
7B AT B O NEOER T P %5 4R & RS ARE % 18]
PISEEENL - PEABEN KRB

Various commercial units and car parking 100%
spaces of Tower B and Tower C of
NEO Urban Commercial Complex
located at the junction of Shennan Boulevard
and Xiangmihu Road
Futian District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

R EERE RITiEHRRBAE R
BENEZERKINEOE T 5454 2BEE K
CEEZ{Em B R =

Various commercial units of Phase Il of 100%
LVGEM Garden located at the western side of
Xinzhou Road and the northern side
of Fugiang Road
Futian District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

2P HH B BRI 7 e [ 3 s 7 1
rass A Al AR =R IEE — HZ (Erg SR &AL

e 3 Ll

REEEGER

List of Principal Properties

Approximate
Total Gross

Floor Area
(square meter)
BREEREE
(FFFHK)

4,410

Type
Wl

Commercial

=

2,810 Commercial

=

108,360 Commercial

=

26,100 Commercial

[EES

20,610

Commercial

[EES

“‘_

Lease Term

HH

70 years from

30 December 2003 to

29 December 2073
—EE=F+-A=1+HE

- e Sy iy by o = I

A H704F

70 years from
20 September 2001 to
19 September 2071
“TT-FAA_tAZ
—E—FARtNE
AHEI70F

50 years from
8 May 2005 to
7 May 2055
—EERFERANRE
“ERRFRALEAR
7 EA504F

70 years from

26 February 2002 to

25 February 2072
—EE_F-_A-+REZE

B -F-A-+RA

RE70F

70 years from
5 February 2001 to
4 February 2071
—EE—F-_ARAZE
—T+—F-AMH -
AEI70F

45 (FE)RERRARDT
T -
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List of Principal Properties
FEYE

1. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conr)
BREWE )

Interest Approximate
Attributable Total Gross
Properties to the Group Floor Area Type
(square meter)
LES AEEEGEZE MOLEZFEER E
(FFHK)

LVGEM Zoll Mangrove Bay No. 1 Shopping Mall 100% 26,000 Commercial
located at the junction of EES
Shazui Road and Jindi First Road
Futian District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

A R B & 3R R | T 4 R [ 0 0 B B 2 3 — B
RERMGZRERABHESRENS L

Various commercial units and ancillary units of 100% 3,820 Commercial
LVGEM Garden Estate located at [5ES
No. 1185 Jin Dao Tian Road
Luohu District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC
IR EEREE T EAE S EEE1185%54)
FREZEmEEG REEERN

A parcel of land and blocks located at 89% 37,150 Industrial
Yi Jia Industrial Park, Fugian Road, I%
Guanlan Street
Bao’an District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

R BEERERIME R REREERATE
UREETER BTN ERERE

LVGEM Zoll International Garden Shopping Mall 100% 22,170 Commercial
Zone A located at Hexi Street, Huazhou [EHE
Guangdong Province, The PRC

IR B B R A E N TR EE A iE AR = RS B
TERIB Y OARR

LVGEM Zoll International Garden Shopping Mall 100% 23,590 Commercial
Zone B4 located at Hexi Street, Huazhou [EES
Guangdong Province, The PRC

7 PP B B LN TR E AT 8 AR = AP BB
Y. OBARE

Hong Kong LVGEM NEO located at No. 123 Hoi 100% 55,390 Commercial

Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong [EHES
UREBNEEEGREEI2REBEENEONE

Sunshine Bay Project located at Village 1, 100% 45,970 Commercial
Commune No.3, Mittaphea Town, (EES
Shihanoukville Municipal, Cambodia

AR ZE T B Fa e 2% se s oRIE T8 58 =12
— SN E BRI E
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Lease Term

HH

50 years from
23 November 2012 to
22 November 2062
T —Ft+—A=-t=HZ

70 years from
9 March 1998 to
8 March 2068
—hNANFE=ANEE
ZERNF=ZANR -
ABHT70F

50 years from
8 July 2002 to
7 July 2052
—EEFLANHE
“THR-F+AtAH -
A B0

40 years from
23 April 2012 to
22 April 2052
—E-—FMAZT=RAZE
“ERFMA+ A
A HI40F

40 years from
23 April 2012 to
22 April 2052
—E—_FMA—+=HZE
“TER-FOAZ+=A
AHA0F

From 29 November 1988 to
30 June 2047

—NJNF+—AZt+hBEZE
—EWEFRA=ZTH

No lease term

REHR



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (o)
REWHE 2)

Properties

L/ES

LVGEM Zoll Jinhua Shopping Mall
located at 98 Shi Shan Road
New District
Suzhou City
Jiangsu Province
The PRC
oz P HP BT AR gk T 38T [ 0 LY B 9855 Y
SR VEPRIREREY R O

Villa J101 of Phase | of Suzhou Garden Villa
located at No. 98 Shishan Road
New District
Suzhou City
Jiangsu Province
The PRC

2 F R BT AR A AR T 2718 40 L B OB 87 2 5

—HJ101 52

Flats 1A, 8C, 17C and 18D, of Jin Xing Tower of

Phase Il of Suzhou Garden Villa located at
No. 98 Shishan Road

New District

Suzhou City

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

27 R BT B A &N T 3R LU BRO8SR 87 5250

FE_HSREMELA - 8C - 17CR18DE

Flats 1D of Jin Bon Tower of
Phase Il of Suzhou Garden Villa located at
No. 98 Shishan Road
New District
Suzhou City
Jiangsu Province
The PRC
AP BT #R &)1 77 37 & 80 LU R 985R
RIS = HASR B IDE

LVGEM Zoll Yuexi Shopping Mall
located at No.199 Tayun Road,
Yuexi, Wuzhong Development District,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province, The PRC

A2 BT ARE #7102 P 5 38 [ MOR S 88 3K

1995k AR AL I MURBE W 0

Commercial units of Zhong He Ti Xiang Garden

located at No.209 Haitang Road,
Heshan District, Yiyang, Hu’nan Province,
The PRC

2 FA R B A & 2 T b LU [ B 2 B 2095
PIZRE LS [EREE

Interest
Attributable
to the Group

REEEGER

95%

95%

95%

95%

100%

100%

- '-.;m'ﬁu"_l.

List of Principal Properties

Approximate
Total Gross
Floor Area
(square meter)

B8R TR
CEAK)

15,504

270

600

160

12,220

3,610

Type
Wl

Commercial

[EES

Residential
*=E

Residential
*=

Residential
G2

Commercial
[EES

Commercial

[GES

Lease Term

HH

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
—m E+A+hBZE

ﬁﬁﬁmi

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
—NNW=F+A+hBZE

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
—NN=F+A+hBZE

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
—nn F+ATIEE

Fﬁﬁmi

40 years from 1 August 2003
to 31 July 2043
ZET=F)\A—H=Z

“TM=FtA=+—H"

AEI40F

40 years from 1 April 2007
to 31 March 2047
—ETLEMA—BE

TN+ E=Z/A=+—H"

A& HI40F

45 (FE)RERRARDT
T -
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List of Principal Properties
FEYE

1. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conr)
BREWE )

Interest Approximate
Attributable Total Gross
Properties to the Group Floor Area
(square meter)
LES AEEEGEE HOEEEER
(FFHK)

Residential units of Hongwan Garden located 100% 1,360
at Meilin Road East,Bei Huan Avenue,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, The PRC

(P B & 5 8RS [Th 48 B [ 3038 K38 DAL AR RS
AR B ELEE R /) 2 BT E B AL

Dongguan LVGEM Zoll Shopping Mall 100% 59,060
located at Baoshan Road
Zhangmutou
Dongguan City
Guangdong Province
The PRC
URAPBEREREMEAREAE LIENREES
aicdi LSl

Various street-level commercial units of Zone A of 100% 5,710
LVGEM International Garden
located at the northwest of
Juzhou Park, Hexi Road,
Huazhou County, Maoming City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
Az A B SR 8 A T LN B0 PERAB A M A B
Pl 4r = B TEAR 1) Z (B g SE B AL

Various street-level commercial units of Zone Bof ~ 100% 14,050
LVGEM International Garden
located at the northwest of
Juzhou Park, Hexi Road,
Huazhou County, Maoming City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
AR B ERE AT N AEEEMN AR
FadL AN A S BIRIEHBERN S EEEEEN

Various street-level commercial units of Zone E of 100% 7,370
LVGEM International Garden
located at the northwest of
Juzhou Park, Hexi Road,
Huazhou County, Maoming City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
AR BEERE KRBT NG AEEENAE
FAL A S ERIEREE N S RIS EEEEN

Various street-level commercial units of the Southern 100% 3,200
District of LVGEM Joyful Town Business Centre
located at West Mingzhu Station, Mingzhu North
Road, Shangchong,
Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
AR BEREPNE T EME EERATRIL R ERTRLS
BRINAR S B E R O &M ZEa
[SE::vE

240 LVGEM (CHINA) REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

Type
5l
Residential

F=E

Commercial
[EES

Commercial
[EES

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[5ES

Lease Term

HH

70 years from 16 December
2011 to 15 December 2081

I = =
E-TN\—F+=A
+HH - BHET70F

40 years from 21 November
2013 to 20 November 2053

—Z=ft—H-t—H=
—EhR=F+—HA=1+8"
AHA0F

40 years from 23 April 2012 to
22 April 2052

—E——FMA-+=HZF
—TR-FMA=Z+=AH
ABHA0F

40 years from 23 April 2012 to
22 April 2052

—Z——FMA-+=HZE
—ER-FMA=+=H"
AHIA0F

40 years from 23 April 2012 to
22 April 2052

—E-—FWAZ+=RZE
—TR-_FMA-Z+=H"
A EIA0%F

40 years from 20 July 2018 to
19 July 2058

- NFtA=Z+H
E2-TR)N\ELATAA
AHIA0F



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conrw)

REWM=E )
Interest
Attributable
Properties to the Group
L/ES AEEEERERE
Six retail commercial units of 80%
Wendefu Garden located at
No.2002 Houhai Avenue,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
iz o B R R LU B 1275 K38 200255
NEEERN A AETEMEET
Part of the apportioned land proposed to be 95%
developed into retail commercial properties of the

LVGEM urban renewal project located at
Donggiao Community, Nanping Town,
Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC
RFEEREHREmEMERFHERELRGR
W EEIEE PREEATEREYENT S

Fn i)t 3

Commercial units under construction of the Northern 100%
District of LVGEM Joyful Town Business Centre
located at West Mingzhu Station,

Mingzhu North Road, Shangchong,
Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC
IRFBIERE R ETEMNE - ERERILEEAZRL
AR RENEEHP O REEEEEN
Vacant land pending development of Phase Il of 100%
the Wanda Plaza Project of Zone G1 of LVGEM
International Garden located at the northwest of

Juzhou Park, Hexi Road,
Huazhou County, Maoming City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC

7 A AR B SR 5 A T b SRl ER B AN A
PR AIRAR = BB TEMGL R — B = RIS E
BRI

,lk'iil‘b'"

ly

List of Principal Properties

Approximate

Total Gross
Floor Area Type Lease Term
(square meter)
BRERERE Ei HE
(FFHK)
660 Commercial 70 years from 18 May 1998 to
[E S 17 May 2068
—AANFERATNRZE
ZERNNERA+TLER
ABEI70F
N/A Commercial 40 years from 17 April 2020 to
T @ [E S 16 April 2060
:§_§¢E A+tHZ
—= / N=Z = f’EP;EI H +/ \ El
AEI40F
16,750 Commercial 40 years from 20 July 2018 to 19
[EES July 2058
— - )\FtA=-t+HZE
 ZER/\&FLATAR
A HRA0SF
83,750 Commercial 40 years from 23 April 2012 to
[EES 22 April 2052
ZE-FMA-t=HF
“TR_FMA=+=H -
E%,Hﬂ40¢

m-

e
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List of Principal Properties
FEYE

1. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conr)
BREWE )

Interest Approximate
Attributable Total Gross
Properties to the Group Floor Area
(square meter)

L/ES FEBELES BOAERERE
(FI3K)

Various street-level commercial units of Zone D of ~ 100% 4,500
LVGEM International Garden located at
the northwest of Juzhou Park, Hexi Road,
Huazhou County, Maoming City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
TRHBEERE] %mMM%JEﬁ EFMAE
Pt BIR 47 = B TER DR /) B S e 2 B

Various service apartments of Block A of 100% 25,380
Hongshu Huafu located at the intersection of
Shazui Road and Jindiyi Road Futian District
Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province
The PRC

(PR BIE R AR e B E D W3S R i — %
RABABENARNZERE LS

Various commercial units of Block 1 of 100% 1,560
LVGEM Amazing Plaza located at the intersection
of Qiaoxiang Road and Beihuan Road,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province
The PRC

ﬁ#¢l?%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁm5ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
RERNGZEEZSESIRNZENEE

Commercial portion of residential, commercial and  80% 249,069
office complex located in the core area of
Nanshan District, Shenzhen City, being
adjacent to Shennan Avenue and
in proximity to Science Park and
the sub-district of Overseas Chinese Town
Az PRI T e L 6 A 0 [ 15 ( B2 AR R P K38
I%ﬁﬂ&@&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁTﬁi?
BAEMMAERENIRE KNEFEEILD
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Type
5l

Commercial
[EES

Residential
T=

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Lease Term

HH

40 years from 23 April 2012 to
22 April 2052

—E——_FPWPA=-+=HZ
—ER_FMAZ+=H

50 years from 23 November
2012 to 22 November 2062
—TfFt-A=t=HZ%

50 years from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2066
=Z—+F—-A—HZF
—TANF+—A=+—8"
BEIS0F

70 years from 10 September
2021 to 9 September 2091

—E—FNATHE
ZER—FNANE
BERT0F



PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
BREDGEWE

Interest
Attributable
Properties to the Group

(sg.m.)

R FEEEERE BOSLETR
(oK)

Residential and commercial units of ~ 100%
Hongshu Huafu Sifang Zone
located at the southest corner of the
intersection of Shazui Road and
Jindiyi Road Futian District
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province
The PRC

IR EER BRI TaEED
PERE A& b — B 32 PR s SR e R
EATBIER MG A RETR
EELEE

17,590

Residential and commercial units 100%
of LVGEM International Garden
located at the northwest of
Juzhou Park, Hexi Road,
Huazhou County, Maoming City
Guangdong Province
The PRC

I A Bl B E 7 A b N SRR R BR
BN AR L R 4R = BB FE
EEREFIER

535,270

Residential, commercial and 100%
industrial complex located at
Liguang Village, Guanlan Town
Bao'an District
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province
The PRC
LR BlESR A AT E LR
HRERANMEEREE

85,330

Approximate
Total Site Area

List of Principal Properties

Approximate

Total Gross Estimated Date
Floor Area Type of Completion Progress
(sg.m.)
BRBERER 8l e B8 ERAMR
(FF7K)
164,570 Residential/ 2024 Under
Commercial —ZZMM%F construction
%, /T Tigrrs
1,693,750 Residential/  2022-2026 Under
Commercial —ZE——F% construction
/% TERE TiETH
562,690 Residential/ 2024 Demolition and
Commercial —Z — N4 relocation plan
T/ % in progress
EITIRE
BE ES
#ZE(FEDHEREFRAR 243
T —FFHR




List of Principal Properties
FEYE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (contw)

Approximate

BRPGEYED)
Interest
Attributable Approximate
Properties to the Group Total Site Area
(sq.m.)
/ES FEBEGER BOLHRBRER
(FE7K)
Commercial and office 100% 22,260
complex located at West Mingzhu
Station, Mingzhu North Road,
Shangchong,
Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province
The PRC
AP EER ARG T _RRARILEE
e El DS E IS SN
Residential, commercial and hotel 91%

complex located at No.37

Maofeng Road, Xiangzhou District

Nanping Town, Zhuhai City,

Guangdong Province

The PRC
URFEERERETENREFE

KEHITHOET « HEEE

Villa located at Deep Bay Road near ~ 95%
Mong Tseng Village and
Mong Tseng Wai,
Lau Fau Shan,
Yuen Long,
New Territories,
Hong Kong
SR B A TTERF LR SRS s 8 A
WHERFIZE

Residential, commercial and 80%
office complex located in
the core area of Nanshan
District, Shenzhen City, being
adjacent to Shennan Avenue and
in proximity to Science Park and
the sub-district of Overseas
Chinese Town
A L E ORI (ZEREA
B WRERHRE AR =) ]
THEE - BERRAERREETAR
&
Residential and commercial located ~ 51%
at intersection of National
Highway 105 and Tourist Road,
Shangchong, Xiangzhou District,
Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province,
The PRC
R BEREIR T AMNE HERE
106RUE BT R AR B Fr ) (EE
ES
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Total Gross Estimated Date
Floor Area Type of Completion Progress
(sq.m.)
WREREEE B FEEt TR B ERMRR
(FERK)
196,960 Commercial/ 2025 Under
Office —“E-RF construction
[SE Y VN TiR#ESTH
754,900 Residential/ 2023-2026 Under
Commerciall —E-_=F% construction
Hotel —ECNF TR
F=E %/
BE
23,880 Villa 2024 Planning stage
pallEd —E P AR
4,557,450 Residential/ From 2025 Under
Commerciall ZZ —RF#E construction
Office/Hotel TRR#EITH
=%/
WRE/ B
J&
1,941,393 Residential/ To be determined Demolition and

Commercial i€ relocation
(EEP S plan in
progress
EITIRBRTE
FE
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